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DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms should have the following meanings in this report:

Company, CSA, China

Southern Airlines
Group

CSAH

Xiamen Airlines
Guizhou Airlines
Zhuhai Airlines
Shantou Airlines
Chonggqing Airlines
Henan Airlines
Hebei Airlines
Jiangxi Airlines
Finance Company
CSA Logistics
Cargo Company
CSA Leasing

Nan Lung

SACC

SACM

American Airlines
PRC

CSRC

NDRC

SASAC

CAAC

IATA

Daxing Airport

China Southern Airlines Company Limited

China Southern Airlines Company Limited and its controlling subsidiaries
China Southern Air Holding Company Limited

Xiamen Airlines Company Limited

Guizhou Airlines Company Limited

Zhuhai Airlines Company Limited

Shantou Airlines Company Limited

Chongaing Airlines Company Limited

China Southern Airlines Henan Airlines Company Limited
Hebei Airlines Company Limited

Jiangxi Airlines Company Limited

China Southern Airlines Group Finance Company Limited
China Southern Airr Logistics Company Limited

China Southern Airlines Cargo Co., Ltd.

China Southern Air Leasing Company Limited

Nan Lung Holding Limited

Shenzhen Air Catering Co., Ltd.

Southern Airlines Culture and Media Co., Ltd.

American Airlines, Inc.

the People’s Republic of China

China Securities Regulatory Commission

National Development and Reform Commission
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
Civil Aviation Administration of China

International Air Transport Association

Beijing Daxing International Airport
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SSE

Stock Exchange
Articles of Association
Listing Rules

Model Code

Corporate Governance
Code

SFO

Available Seat Kilometres or
“ASK”

Available Tonne Kilometres
or “ATK”

Available Tonne Kilometres
- passenger

Available Tonne Kilometres
- cargo

Revenue Passenger
Kilometres or “RPK”

Revenue Tonne Kilometres
or “RTK”

Revenue Tonne Kilometres
- cargo or “RFTK”

Revenue Tonne Kilometres
- passenger

Aircraft Utilisation Rate
Passenger Load Factor
Overall Load Factor
Yield per RPK

Yield per RTK

Yield per RFTK
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Shanghai Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Articles of Association of China Southern Airlines Company Limited

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
(Iqu ;ct(; (’;he Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

the number of seats made available for sale multiplied by the kilometres flown

the tonnes of capacity available for the transportation multiplied by the kilometres flown

the tonnes of capacity available for passenger multiplied by the kilometres flown

the tonnes of capacity available for cargo and mails multiplied by the kilometres flown

i.e. passenger traffic volume, the number of passengers carried multiplied by the kilometres flown

i.e. total traffic volume, the load (passenger and cargo) in tonnes multiplied by the kilometres

flown

i.e. cargo and malil traffic volume, the load for cargo and mail in tonnes multiplied by the
kilometres flown

the load for passenger in tonnes multiplied by the kilometres flown

Flight hours that aircraft can serve during specified time
RPK expressed as a percentage of ASK

RTK expressed as a percentage of ATK

revenue from passenger operations divided by RPK
revenue divided by RTK

revenue from cargo and mail operations divided by RFTK
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CORPORATE PROFILE

The Group is the biggest airline in China with the
most developed route network and the largest annual
passenger traffic.

The Group is the airline with the most developed route network, and the largest passenger traffic
in China. By the end of the reporting period, China Southern Airlines operated a fleet of 908
passenger and cargo transport aircraft including Boeing 787, 777 and 737 series, Airbus 350, 330
and 320 series, and COMAC ARJ21, formed a developed route network covering China, and the
rest of Asia, and effectively connecting Europe, America, Australia and Africa, and had 20 branches,
7 controlling civil aviation subsidiaries, 5 bases, 21 domestic offices and 52 overseas offices across
the world. In January 2024, the Company was awarded the “Three-Star Diamond Award for Flight
Safety”, the top award for flight safety from the CAAC.

In recent years, by focusing on the construction of route network structure with hubs as the core,
strategic markets as the key and market development as support, the Company has striven to build
two comprehensive international hubs in Guangzhou and Beijing, and a network-based airline has
taken shape gradually. In 2023, the Company continued to further invest in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. At the same time, the Company was dedicated to improving the
quality of the Beijing hub, and has become the largest main base airline in Beijing Daxing Airport.
CSA has formed a new development layout with “Guangzhou Hub in the south and Beijing Hub in
the north”.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chinese Name:
Chinese Short Name:
English Name:
English Short Name:
Legal Representative:

Registered Address:

Address:

Place of Business in Hong Kong:

Website of the Company:

Telephone:
Fax:

E-mail:

Sina Weibo:
Service Hotline
Mobile APP:

WeChat Mini Program

WeChat Official Account:

WeChat QR Code:

WeChat ID:

Place of Listing of A Shares:

BT EROBR AR

Mz

China Southern Airlines Company Limited

CSN

Ma Xu Lun

Unit 301, 3/F, Office Tower Guanhao Science Park Phase |, 12 Yuyan Street,

Huangpu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC

China Southern Air Building, 68 Qixin Road, Baiyun District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

Province, PRC

Unit B1, 9th Floor, United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong

WwWw.csair.com
+86-20-86112480
+86-20-86659040
ir@csair.com
http://weibo.com/csair
+86 95539

China Southern Airlines
China Southern Airlines

China Southern Airlines

CS95539

SSE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Short Name of A Shares: R ZE
Stock Code of A Shares: 600029
A Share Registrar: China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited Shanghai Branch

188 South Yanggao Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai

Place of Listing of H Shares: The Stock Exchange

Short Name of H Shares: CHINA SOUTH AIR

Stock Code of H Shares: 01055

H Share Registrar: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Domestic Legal Adviser: Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP (Guangzhou)

Overseas Legal Adviser: Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Domestic Auditors: KPMG Huazhen LLP

Overseas Auditors: KPMG (Registered PIE Auditor under the Accounting and Financial Reporting

Council Ordinance)
Controlling Shareholder: China Southern Air Holding Company Limited

Principal Bankers: China Development Bank
The Export-Import Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank
Agricultural Bank of China

Designated Website for Information www.hkexnews.hk
Disclosure (H Shares):

Place Where Annual Report is Made The Board Office of China Southern Airines Company Limited of China Southern Air
Available for Inspection: Building, 68 Qixin Road, Baiyun District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC
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As at 27 March 2024

Secretary to the Board:

Joint Company Secretaries:

Securities Affairs Representative:

Authorised Representatives under the Listing Rules:
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Ma Xu Lun

Han Wen Sheng

Luo Lai Jun

Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho
Gu Hui Zhong

Guo Wei

Cai Hong Ping

Chen Wei Hua

Chen Wei Hua
Liu Wei

Xu Yang

Ma Xu Lun
Chen Wei Hua
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Supervisors
Ren Ji Dong
Lin Xiao Chun
Yang Bin
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS

I. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS
OF THE GROUP AS AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(I)  Principal Accounting Information

Unit: RMB million

Increase/

2023 2022 (decrease) %

Operating revenue 159,929 87,059 83.70
Net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (4,140) (32,699 (87.34)

As of 31 December

Increase/

2023 2022 (decrease) %

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 37,071 41,275 (10.19)
Total assets 309,596 312,246 (0.85)

(Il) Principal Financial Indicators

2023 2022 Increase/(decrease) %

Basic loss per share (RMB/share) (0.23) (1.90) (87.89)
Diluted loss per share (RMB/share) (0.23) (1.9 (87.89)
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Il. SUMMARY OF OPERATING DATA
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For the year ended 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2023 2022 %

Traffic
Revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) (million)
Domestic 207,816.73 96,986.98 114.27
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 1,809.23 175.05 933.54
International 37,321.27 4,916.03 659.17
Total: 246,947.23 102,078.06 141.92
Revenue tonne kilometres (RTK) (million)
Domestic 19,654.63 9,693.44 104.88
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 183.60 22.86 703.14
International 9,952.88 6,767.36 47.07
Total: 29,791.11 16,383.66 81.83
RTK — passenger (million)
Domestic 18,229.18 8,546.25 113.30
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 157.48 15.50 916.05
International 3,277.65 435.37 652.85
Total: 21,664.31 8,997.12 140.79
RTK — cargo (million)
Domestic 1,425.45 1,047.19 36.12
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 26.12 7.36 254.83
International 6,675.24 6,331.99 5.42
Total: 8,126.80 7,386.54 10.02

Annual Report 2023
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

For the year ended 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2023 2022 %

Passengers carried (thousand)
Domestic 131,571.96 61,666.94 113.36
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 1,535.76 157.23 876.75
International 9,093.37 812.95 1,018.57
Total: 142,201.09 62,637.12 127.02
Cargo and mail carried (thousand tonnes)
Domestic 840.80 633.62 32.70
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 23.03 6.87 235.38
International 721.09 686.17 5.09
Total: 1,584.92 1,326.66 19.47
Capacity
Available seat kilometres (ASK) (million)
Domestic 266,515.67 145,654.49 82.98
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 2,441.55 410.36 494.97
International 47,260.23 7,775.72 507.79
Total: 316,217.46 158,840.57 105.55
Available tonne kilometres (ATK) (million)
Domestic 30,348.36 16,139.85 88.03
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 316.95 55.49 471.21
International 14,233.28 10,026.28 41.96
Total: 44,898.59 26,221.62 71.23
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For the year ended 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2023 2022 %
Available tonne kilometres (ATK) — passenger (million)
Domestic 23,986.41 13,108.90 82.98
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 219.74 36.93 494.97
International 4,253.42 699.81 507.79
Total: 28,459.57 13,845.65 105.55
Available tonne kilometres (ATK) — cargo (million)
Domestic 6,361.95 3,030.95 109.90
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 97.21 18.55 423.90
International 9,979.86 9,326.47 7.01
Total: 16,439.02 12,375.97 32.83
For the year ended 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2023 2022 percentage point
Load Factor
Passenger load factor (RPK/ASK) (%)
Domestic 77.98 66.59 11.39
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 74.10 42.66 31.44
International 78.97 63.22 15.75
Average: 78.09 66.35 11.74
Overall load factor (RTK/ATK) (%)
Domestic 64.76 59.44 5.32
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 57.93 41.20 16.73
International 69.93 67.50 2.43
Average: 66.35 62.48 3.87
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

For the year ended 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2023 2022 %
Yield
Yield per RPK (RMB)
Domestic 0.54 0.51 5.88
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 0.89 2.66 (66.54)
International 0.58 2.00 (71.00)
Average: 0.55 0.59 6.78)
Yield per RFTK (RMB)
Domestic 1.05 1.31 (19.85)
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 6.31 11.96 (47.24)
International 2.04 3.07 (33.55)
Average: 1.88 2.83 (33.57)
Yield per RTK (RMB)
Domestic 5.82 5.33 9.19
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 9.66 24.23 (60.13)
International 3.54 4.32 (18.06)
Average: 5.08 4.94 2.83
Cost
Main business cost per ATK (RMB) 3.20 3.93 (18.58)
Flight Volume
Kilometres flown (million) 1,772.78 994.39 78.28
Hours flown (thousand)
Domestic 2,465.30 1,373.92 79.44
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 20.52 3.17 547.93
International 356.29 179.62 98.36
Total: 2,842.11 1,556.70 82.57
Number of flights (thousand)
Domestic 1,000.31 578.26 72.99
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 10.42 1.84 466.81
International 65.22 21.44 204.26
Total: 1,075.95 601.54 78.87
Note:

Operating data is rounded to two decimal places. Discrepancies between the column sum and the total sum or between the increase/
decrease and the total sum are due to rounding of percentage numbers.
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lll. SUMMARY OF FLEET DATA

As at 31 December 2023, the scale and structure of fleet and the delivery and disposal of aircraft of the Group were as follows:
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Unit: numiber of aircraft

Total number

Number of Disposal  of aircraft at
Number  aircraft under Number of Delivery during during the the end of
of aircraft finance  aircraft under  the reporting reporting the reporting
Aircraft Models purchased lease operating lease period period period
Passenger Aircraft
A380 Series 0 0 0 0 2 0
A350 Series 6 14 0 4 0 20
A330 Series 8 21 7 0 4 36
A320 Series 147 74 139 22 6 360
B787 Series 6 23 10 0 0 39
B777 Series 1 14 0 0 0 15
B737 Series 137 60 189 0 11 386
EMB190 6 0 0 0 0 6
ARJ21 6 23 0 9 0 29
Freighter
B777 Series 10 7 0 2 0 17
Total 327 236 345 37 23 908
Note:

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate net book value of the aircraft and engines of the Group was RMB187,995 million.

Annual Report 2023
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HIGHLIGHTS
OF THEYEAR ™

JANUARY m=Q

China Southern Airlines CZ312 from
Toronto to Guangzhou successfully landed
at Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport,
marking the first international flight landing
after the implementation of the new entry

FEBRUARY

China Southern Airlines’ Beijing Daxing-
Istanbul route was officially launched, being
not only the first international long-haul route
launched by China Southern Airlines at Beijing
Daxing Hub, but also the first intercontinental

policy of China. route launched by a domestic airline at
Beijing Daxing Airport. In recent years, China
Southern Airlines has been continuously
building a high-quality Beijing Daxing
aviation hub, and continuously expanding its
international route network covered by Beijing
Daxing hub.

AUGUST meeeeQeessssss LY =eeessssss——ms

A domestically-produced ARJ21 aircraft with
the registration number B-91AG was officially
put into operation, marking China Southern
Airlines’ fleet reaching 900 aircraft.

“Rural Revitalisation in Hotan, Xinjiang”
themed aircraft of China Southern Airlines
completed its first flight. The Company
fulfilled its corporate social responsibilities
by deepening the unique aviation assistance
model and practically promoting the
implementation of its paired-up assistance
projects in Xinjiang.

SEPTEMBER mss=Quss== OCTOBER =

During the summer season, China Southern
Airlines carried more than 26 million
passengers, with passenger traffic exceeding
the level in the same period of 2019.

China Southern Airlines participated in the
first “CATA Aviation Conference” organised
by the China Air Transport Association, where
the Company showcased its achievements in
scientific and technological innovation, safety
management, and green development.



, A T
O M ARCH meessQOesss—— APRIL

China Southern Airlines held the brand launch
event of “China Southern Air Shuttle”. The
Company launched its upgraded new service
brand, “China Southern Air Shuttle”, aiming to
create a new travel experience of “Free Flying,
Happy Journey” for its customers.

meaQOeeesssss N E soessseQeeessss— \AY

The Company and New Zealand government
jointly announced the resumption of
Guangzhou-Christchurch direct flights. In the
future, China Southern Airlines will increase
its capacity input to build an “air bridge” for
business and cultural exchanges between
China and New Zealand.

a e L

zozsﬁxxmaﬂl:ﬁngmﬁﬁw

I R e GO W I S T

Q== NOVEMBER mss=Qu== DECEMBER

China Southern Airlines was awarded the
“Best Practice Case of Board of Directors of
Listed Company”. The awards for board of
directors received by the Company for these
years in a row indicate that the governance
and development of board of directors of
China Southern Airlines are among the best of
listed companies in China.

Operating
Results
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On 22 April 2023, which was the Earth Day
as well as the social responsibility day of
China Southern Airlines, at 7:32 a.m., the
“Social Responsibility” CZ3603 flight of China
Southern Airlines from Guangzhou to Dalian
successfully took off.

o

China Southern Airlines launched the first
domestic premium reception for baggage
service at Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport, which provides services such as
passenger enquiries, baggage enquiries,
and abnormal baggage handling, providing
passengers with more attentive and refined
services.

China Southern Airlines flight CZ3100 from
Beijing Daxing to Guangzhou landed smoothly
at Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport,
marking the successful completion of China
Southern Airlines’ 2023 safe flight year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

\\
)

I. BUSINESS REVIEW
() Discussion and Analysis of Operations

In 2023, the global economic growth was still slow due to factors such
as tightening monetary policies and sluggish trade. The World Economic
Qutlook report published by the International Monetary Fund shows
that the global economic growth in 2023 is 3.1%. China adhered to the
general tone of seeking progress while maintaining stability and achieved
sound economic recovery. The GDP of China for the year reached
RMB126 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.2%.

Ma Xu Lun
Chairman
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During the reporting period, with the joint efforts of the management and all employees, the
Group recorded 2.842 million safe flight hours, and carried 142 million passengers and 1.585
million tonnes of cargo and mail. We were honoured as the “Best Airline of the Year” by Civil

Aviation Passenger Service Evaluation (‘CAPSE”) for six consecutive years and awarded the
“Five-Star Diamond Award” by the World Brand Lab, being the only domestic airline winning
the award. In January 2024, the Group was awarded the “Three-Star Diamond Award for
Flight Safety”, the top award for fight safety from the CAAC.

In 2023, despite the complex environment and severe challenges, China’s civil aviation industry witnessed orderly resumption of
transportation and production. The Total Transport Turnover, Passenger Volume, and Cargo and Mail Volume for the whole year
were 118.83 billion tonne-kilometres, 620 million passengers and 7.354 million tonnes, respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 98.3%, 146.1% and 21% and back to 91.9%, 93.9% and 97.6% of 2019 levels, respectively. The Group coordinated
safety production and operation and actively promoted the implementation of reform and development strategies.

1. Safety Management

During the reporting period, the Group gave top priority to aviation safety and developed sustainable and high-quality safety with
continuous improvement in safety and quality. We implemented the outlook on overall national security, coordinated development
and security in a scientific manner, deepened the construction of seven safety systems and consolidated the responsibility system
on safety production among all employees. We established and implemented the mechanism on significant safety decisions and
plans and improved the mechanism on special studies on regular safety production. We refined the responsibility system, specified
the safety responsibilities of all business management functions and developed a unified regulatory mechanism on regional
and local safety. We carried out special investigation and remediation of significant hidden safety hazards and implemented
classification-based management for the skill recovery of professionals. During the reporting period, the Group achieved 2.842
million hours of safe flight with a leading position in the industry in terms of safety.

Annual Report 2023 021
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Number of )

Number of Group
Customers Frequent Flyers
29,000 99.06

Million

2. Operation management

During the reporting period, the Group focused on enhancing the core market competitiveness to facilitate quality and efficiency
improvement in operation. We improved the operation of Guangzhou and Beijing as core hubs, implemented the strategy of
maximising marginal contribution of flights and actively facilitated the increase and resumption of international flights. We vigorously
promoted the establishment of the customer management system, continuously improved online and offline reach scenarios of
passengers with digital and ecosystem-based concepts and prepared tailored aviation product portfolios to build an open and
comprehensive aviation platform. We seized the new normal of the freight market, implemented the new development concept
and planed and invested in the construction of freight hubs to achieve the linkage of domestic aviation and ground networks. We
expanded the transportation of live animals, high-end precision instruments and other goods with high value. During the reporting
period, the Company’s group customers and frequent flyers reached 29,000 and 99.06 million, respectively. The Cargo and Mail
Volume recorded a year-on-year increase of 19.47%.

3. Operation Service

During the reporting period, the Group steadily improved its operation quality with continuous improvement in brand image.
We focused on improving flight punctuality and frontal bay rate of flights at contact berths, established working mechanisms on
operation under extreme weather and guarantee of shuttle operation and constantly reduced the transit time at hubs with the
focus on improving the travelling convenience and sense of fulfilment of passengers. We refined the service quality management
system, optimised the entire-chain business process and structure of services, developed the global service support centre and
introduced “kapok” and “cloud” featured air services. We deepened the brand management strategy and built the Guangzhou-
Beijing core hub brand, the “affinity and refinement” service brand and the “Green Flight” responsibility brand. During the reporting
period, the Company was awarded the “Five-Star Diamond Award” by the World Brand Lab and has been honoured as the “Best
Airline of the Year” by CAPSE for six consecutive years.

022  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

-ooooooooo&

HT I
I
N

1
The Proportion of the

Group’s Transits at Daxing
Airport

17.8%

4. |Implementation of Strategies

During the reporting period, the Group actively served national strategies and solidly promoted high-quality development.
We continued to build Beijing hub with high quality, fully seized opportunities in the accelerated recovery of the industry and
continuously carried out the planning of domestic and overseas networks. We continued to focus on the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, sped up in restoring the network of domestic and overseas airlines at Guangzhou hub and
coordinated policies on integrated sales channels in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. We preliminarily set
up the operation model of ecosystem-based platforms, continuously perfected the establishment of supply chains, constantly
implemented fine management of the fleet and improved resources allocation and operational efficiency. We steadily advanced
the digital transformation, developed the new-generation IT architecture of “cloud platform & dual middle-platform” and facilitated
the system construction on the IT R&D ecology, achieving automatic flight dispatching. During the reporting period, the proportion
of the Group’s transits at Daxing Airport increased to 11.8% while domestic market share in Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Zhuhai
and Huizhou reached 37%. The Company was awarded the Silver Prize in Benchmark Competition at the “Blooming Cup” 5G
Application Contest by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

Annual Report 2023 023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5. Reform and Development

During the reporting period, the Group further fulfiled reform tasks and continuously consolidated the development foundation.
We improved the modern corporate governance systems of state-owned enterprises with Chinese characteristics, focused on
enhancing the standard operation of the board of directors, implemented the powers and functions of the board of directors of
subsidiaries based on different levels and categories and perfected rules on authorisation and delegation of power. We promoted
the downward penetration of the tenure system and contractual management and deepened the linkage mechanism of salary and
performance. We established and improved the system and mechanism of scientific and technological innovation and boosted
efforts in achieving breakthroughs in significant aviation-related technological innovation with focus on digital technology, advanced
manufacturing, green and low-carbon and other sectors. We revised the overarching approach for high-quality development,
resolved title defects of assets and optimised the manual management platform and the compliance risk management system.
During the reporting period, the Group obtained 115 new state-authorised patents, established 24 business platforms, and
developed 1,249 sharing capabilities. The Company was awarded the “Best Practice of the Board of Directors” by the China
Association for Public Companies.

6. Social Responsibility

During the reporting period, the Group proactively fulfiled its social responsibilities and boosted assistance efforts in industrial
revitalisation. We systematically advanced work on “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”, introduced high-efficiency and energy-
saving aircraft, carried out aircraft weight reduction programs, continuously promoted the “petroleum-to-electricity” transformation
for ground vehicles, and adopted refined jet fuel management and other measures on energy saving and emission reduction.
We completed the platform of “Employees’ Voices” and put it into use, carried out pilot programs on improving employees’ life
quality and organised activities to improve crew health through sports. We boosted efforts in industrial, talent, cultural, ecological
and organisational revitalisation in rural areas, innovated assistance measures and deepened the characteristic assistance
model of CSA. During the reporting period, the fuel consumption per tonne-kilometre of the Company was reduced to 2.732
tonnes/10,000-tonne-kilometres.
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(I) Industrial Position of the
o > Company

1. Information of Development
of International and Domestic
Aviation Industry

(1) Development of International Aviation
Industry

Global air travel demand constantly recovered in 2023.
According to IATA, in 2023, the global air passenger
traffic in terms of RPK increased by 36.9% year on
year, back to 94.1% of the level in 2019. In particular,
the international air passenger transport increased
by 41.6% year on year, nearing 90% of the level in
2019; the domestic air passenger transport increased
by 30.4% year on year, surpassing the level in 2019.
In terms of market, the performance in the Asia-
Pacific, North American and European markets was

Han Wen Sheng
Vice chairman and president
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outstanding. Due to the rapid recovery of China’s domestic market, the international passenger transport of airlines in the
Asia-Pacific region increased by 126.1% year on year, becoming the main driver for the growth of the global air passenger
transport business.

Cargo transport demand was recovering to its normal level. According to IATA, the global air cargo demand was 58 million
tonnes in 2023, representing a decrease of 3.6% as compared to 2019. In the second half of 2023, the global air cargo
demand recovered steadily, with the performance being particularly strong in the fourth quarter, and the air cargo demand
for the whole year was substantially at the same level as 2022.

With the gradual recovery of the air transport capacity, the total revenue of global airlines was estimated to reach USD896
bilion in 2023, representing a year-on-year increase of 21.7% and reaching 107% of the level in 2019. The total net profit
was USD23.3 billion and airlines across different regions saw significant improvement in their financial position.

Development of China Aviation Industry
According to the data released by CAAC:

In 2023, China’s total civil aviation industry achieved a total traffic volume of 118.83 hillion tonne-kilometres, a passenger
traffic volume of 620 million and a cargo and mail throughput of 7.354 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase
of 98.3%, 146.1% and 21%, respectively. In 2023, China’s civil aviation invested more than RMB115 hillion in fixed assets,
exceeding RMB100 billion for four consecutive years; the total number of transportation airports reached 259, with a total
capacity of 1.56 hilion passengers. The Provisional Regulations on the Administration of the Flight of Unmanned Aircraft
were promulgated and put into effect; the Beijing Convention and the Beijing Protocol were ratified and entered into force.
The C919 aircraft was formally put into commercial operation; the BeiDou system formally joined the standards of the
International Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO).
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Features of Aviation Industry

The development level of civil aviation industry is an important display of the comprehensive
national strength

The development of the civil aviation industry provides vast room for the technological innovation of related fields. Especially,
the upstream aviation manufacturing industry may drive the development and innovation of material, metallurgy, chemical,
mechanical manufacturing, special processing, electronics, information and many other industries. It is a strategic
industry and forerunner high-tech industry for a country’s economic development and an important symbol of a country’s
modernisation, industrialisation, science and technology, and comprehensive national strength.

Civil aviation industry is featured with commonality

Civil aviation industry plays a role that other transport methods cannot replace in promotion of international communication,
providing service for public travel, emergency rescue and disaster relief, and many other social and public services. Aviation
passenger transport is the basis for the development of the tourism industry and a safeguard for international political,
economic and cultural communications. Aviation transport is routinely used for international transoceanic passenger
transport. Aviation cargo transport is a must for the development of trade, logistics, high-tech and many other industries and
the basis for the development of courier and postal industry.

Civil aviation industry is featured with “five high and one low”

The civil aviation industry is featured with “five high and one low”, being high risk, high technology, high investment, high
volatility, high demand and low profitability. Specifically, the risk sources are very complex and diverse, and there are many
uncontrollable factors, and the air transport is affected by political and economic situations, natural disasters and pandemic.
The civil aviation industry is featured with high degree of technology content, long industry chains and advanced technology-
integration. The investments in fixed assets are high, especially, the cost of introducing aircraft, operation cost, and
maintenance cost. The demand for air transportation is either induced demand or derived demand, which fluctuates with
the fluctuations of the economic cycle. The public have a high level of concern and demand for the safe operation of civil
aviation. The average annual return on net assets of global air transportation industry is less than 2% over the past 40 years,
which is much lower than the average rate of return on social capital.

Industrial Position

The Group is the biggest airline in China with the most extensive route network and the largest annual passenger traffic.
As at the end of reporting period, the Group has operated a fleet of 908 passenger and cargo transport aircraft including
Boeing 787, 777, 737 series, Airbus 350, 330, 320 series, etc. The Group has the densest network by forming a developed
route network covering China, and the rest of Asia, and effectively connecting Europe, America, Australia and Africa. The
Group has 20 branches, 7 controlling aviation subsidiaries, 5 bases, 21 domestic offices and 52 overseas offices. In January
2024, the Company was awarded the “Three-Star Diamond Award for Flight Safety”, the top award for flight safety from the
CAAC.
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In recent years, by focusing on the construction of route network structure with hubs as the core, strategic markets as
the key and market development as support, the Company has striven to build two comprehensive international hubs in
Guangzhou and Beijing, and a network-based airline has taken shape gradually. In 2023, the Company continued to further
invest in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. At the same time, the Company was dedicated to improving
the quality of the Beijing hub, and has become the largest main base airline in Beijing Daxing Airport. CSA has formed a new
development layout with “Guangzhou Hub in the south and Beijing Hub in the north”.

(Ill) The Business of the Company

() Principal Business

The scope of business of the Company covers: provision of scheduled and non-scheduled domestic, regional and international
air transportation services for passengers, cargo, mail and luggage; provision of aircraft repair and maintenance services; acting
as agent for other domestic and international airlines; provision of air catering services (operated by branch office only); provision
of airline ground services; civil aircraft training (operated by branch office with proper licence); asset leasing; project management
and technical consultancy; sales of aviation equipment; travel agency business services; merchandise retail and wholesale; health
and medical examination services; Intermet sales (except for sale of commodities subject to licensing); insurance and insurance
agency business; domestic trade agents; professional design services; Type 1 value-added telecommunication services; Type
2 value-added telecommunication services; advertisement preparation; advertisement publication; advertisement design and
agency; Internet data service; Internet information service; information system integration service; loT technical services; social
and economic consulting services; information technology consulting services; information consulting services (except information
consulting services subject to licensing). (For all projects subject to approval in accordance with laws, the business activities can
only be carried out after obtaining approval from relevant authorities in accordance with the laws.)

(1) Operating Model

With building a world-class enterprise as the goal, the Company has determined the overarching approach for quality development
featuring “adhering to five concepts of development, implementing five strategies, promoting six campaigns and achieving six
transformations”, and the development vision of “14th Five-Year Plan”, which closely focuses on the “building a world-class air
transportation enterprise with global competitiveness”. It is clear that by 2025, a synergistic development pattern will be initially
established with the main industry of air transportation as the core and the supporting industries as the backbone. The Company
has developed an implementation plan for accelerating the construction of a world-class enterprise, launched a special operation
entitles “mending shortcomings, improving quality and creating a First-class enterprise”, and clarified the objectives and measures
for building a world-class enterprise.

The Company adheres to the “five development” concepts of safety, high quality, innovation, cooperation and sharing; focuses
on the “five strategies” in relation to hub network, ecosystem, innovation-driven, lean management and control, and brand
management; carries out “six campaigns” on launching a special operation entitles “mending shortcomings, improving quality
and creating a First-class enterprise”, accelerating the construction of Beijing Daxing Hub, implementing reforms to deepen and
enhance the action, pushing forward the digital transformation with all-out efforts, pushing forward the adjustment and optimisation
of the five major structures, and comprehensively creating services that are “optimised in five aspects”; and strives for “six
transformations” from speed-oriented to quality-oriented, from comprehensive market expansion to exploring key areas, from a
relatively single industry to high relevance and diversified industries, from planning management and control to market operation,
from the traditional business model to digitalisation and ecological circle, and from extensive management to refined management.
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(IV) Analysis on the Core Competitiveness

The Company’s five core competitive strengths have begun to take shape, including its powerful and well-rounded scale
and network advantages, its network development pattern with Guangzhou-Beijing as its dual core hubs, its resource
synergy capabilities combined with integrated operation and matrix management, its influential, high quality brand service and
comprehensive leading information technology standards.

1.

Powerful and well-rounded scale and network advantages. The Group had a fleet size of over 900 transport aircraft
and advanced fleet performance. The Group has the densest network by forming a developed route network covering
China, and the rest of Asia, and effectively connecting Europe, America, Australia and Africa. With the largest volume of
passenger traffic and the most frequent flyer scale, the Company is the first airline in China with its amount of passenger
traffic exceeding 100 million. At present, the Company has 20 branches in Xinjiang, Beiing, Shenzhen, northern cities of
China and other cities and 7 controlling aviation subsidiaries, including Xiamen Airlines. Establishment of branches and
subsidiaries could better coordinate resources including local market, airports, large customers, channels and media, and
supply transiting customers to the hubs. Meanwhile, the Company has set up 5 regional bases, 21 domestic offices and
52 overseas offices in all continents. The Company has formed a comprehensive sales network with branches, holding
subsidiaries, regional marketing centres and offices.

Constantly enhanced the network strategy with Guangzhou and Beijing as core hubs. By focusing on the construction of
developed route wide and accessible network with hubs as the core, strategic markets as the key and market development
as support, CSA has provided sustainable, safe and fast travel options for your freight and passenger customers, and
has striven to build two comprehensive international hubs in Guangzhou and Beijing to achieve two-wheel drive, thereby
establishing a new profit model and development mode, and gradually develop a network-based airline. CSA deeply
cultivated in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, endeavored to build the Guangzhou hub into a model
of an international aviation hub co-constructed with provinces and cities. Presently, CSA has expedited the restoration of
the domestic and international route network of the Guangzhou Hub, making positive contribution to the construction of a
world-class city cluster and international technology innovation centre for Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
and the construction of “Belt and Road Initiative”. At the same time, CSA insisted to build Beijing hub with high quality. As
the largest main base company of Beijing Daxing Airport, CSA fully grasped the new opportunities for development during
the period of accelerated recovery of the industry, the Company’s efforts to accelerate the construction of the Daxing hub,
continued to do a good job in the domestic and international network planning and layout, and forming the “four in, four out”
flight wave as soon as possible.
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Constantly improved control and resources interoperability of integrated operation. With its scale of having multiple bases,
hubs, models and fleet, the Company has formed an initial control pattern of “headquarters for overall management,
branches and subsidiaries, regional marketing centre, offices for execution, matrix unit for construction”, enabled more
concentrated core resource, powerful coordinated command and timely dynamic responses, so as to enhance efficiency
of resources distribution. CSA has strengthened the platform construction and consolidated the support system through
a sound management mechanism, and basically formed an integrated operation management framework of “centralised
management and control, efficient decision-making, smooth communication, and coordinated system”, which has
significantly improved flight operation efficiency. CSA continued to formulate the strategy to improve flight regularity from
the customer’s perspective and optimise the flight capacity adjustment process. CSA continued to deepen its marketing
reforms, strengthened capacity matching with the market, and enhanced marketing service quality management and the
construction of customer management system, so as to continuously optimise its marketing management and control
layout.

Striving for the world’s first-class brand service. CSA has always taken high-quality safety, products, services, technology,
operations, etc. as an important support for the brand, to create the “Guangzhou-Beijing” core hub brand, “affinity and
refinement” service brand, “green flight” responsibility brand, and continuously improved service quality, committed to
building an international first-class service brand. Its brand influence has continued to increase at home and abroad. With the
goal of providing “humanised, digitalised, refined, personalised and convenient” air travel quality service, CSA realised “people
enjoying traveling, goods delivered smoothly”. The flight on-time performance rate of the Company has maintained leading
position in the industry for eight consecutive years. CSA comprehensively performed political and social responsibilities
including revitalising rural areas and energy conservation and emission reduction, which strongly demonstrated the positive
images of “Sunshine CSA” and “responsible state-owned enterprise”. In 2023, CSA was awarded the “Five-Star Diamond
Award for Airline Company” by the World Brand Lab.

All-rounded leading position of information system. CSA has always adhered to innovative development, with the main focus
on promoting the deep integration of digital technology and production and operation. It focuses on the digital construction
of five major business areas, namely, core business, industrial sectors, management functions, frontline collaboration, and
business decision-making, and constructs a new model of digital operation and management with ubiquitous perception,
precise insight, intelligent collaboration, and agile response. Based on the new-generation IT architecture of “cloud platform
& dual middle-platform”, CSA continued to optimise its information systems in the areas of passenger marketing, operation
control, ground services, aviation safety, cargo transport, corporate management and public platforms, which greatly
improved operational efficiency, safety quality and service standards. The digitalisation construction focusing on digitalised
customer, digitalised employee, digitalised process and digitalised company proceeded steadily. CSA comprehensively
promoted the implementation of the “ecosphere strategy”, preliminarily set up the operation model of ecosystem-based
platforms, and continuously perfected the establishment of supply chains. CSA provided fast travel and ecosystem-based
products tailored to the needs of passengers and cargo customers, and continued to build China Southern e-Travel,
realising the full coverage of the “a hassle-free journey with one mobile device” function, and leading the industry in key
indicators such as the number of social media fans, cumulative downloads and monthly active users.
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(V) Safety Assurance Input

During the reporting period, the Group firmly implemented the important statements of President Xi Jinping on work safety and
his important instructions on civil aviation safety, and focused on cultivating and practicing the core values of “life first, safety
first, performing responsibilities in compliance with rules, and rigorousness and pragmatism”. We adhered to the overall strategy
of safety management of “focusing on the long-term, focusing on implementation, and preventing risks”, deeply promoted the
construction of the seven major safety systems, solidly carried out investigation and rectification of hidden hazards, effectively
prevented and controlled significant safety risks, and played a greater role in winning a hard battle of “enhancing management,
improving capabilities, and preventing risks” to break new ground for safety work.

Firstly, in terms of “enhancing management”, the Company established and implemented five mechanisms for major safety
decision-making, promoted the coverage of primary responsibilities and job responsibilities lists across all secondary entities. The
Company strengthened the construction of key officer teams, selected and equipped the safety management and professional
teams at all levels with sufficient and appropriate officers. The Company released standards and review lists for the seven major
safety systems, gradually promoted the review and maturity evaluation for the seven systems. The Company carried out special
rectification of major safety hazards and improved the integrated on-site supervision mechanism for operations.

Secondly, in terms of “improving capabilities”, the Company tracked personnel with slow recovery progress and lacking
qualifications, strengthened technical assistance, improved the training responsibility tracing mechanism, and strictly enforced
competency standards for critical teams and positions such as flight, maintenance, and operation control. The Company
comprehensively implemented EBT on wide-body aircraft, established a safety management capability and quality model, and
relevant courses.

Thirdly, in terms of “preventing risks”, the Company promoted the integration of the dual prevention mechanism with the
Company’s safety management system, specifically controlled prominent risks such as engine flameout, the resumption of
operation of B737-8, and non-stop construction at airports, and cracked down on “air rage” behaviours according to law. The
Company promoted the application of the joint risk prevention and control work mechanism in areas such as security and fire
safety, established a mechanism for sharing and promoting advanced safety management practices, advanced the voluntary
reporting sharing “community” and mobile App projects, and enhanced the organisational resilience to respond to risks.

Il. Financial Performance

Part of the financial information presented in this section below is derived from the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements that have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

The net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB4,140 million was recorded in 2023 as compared to the
net loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB32,699 million in 2022. The Group’s total operating revenue
increased by RMB72,870 million or 83.70% from RMB87,059 million in 2022 to RMB159,929 miilion in 2023. Passenger load
factor increased by 11.74 percentage points from 66.35% in 2022 to 78.09% in 2023. Yield per RPK decreased by 6.78%
from RMBO0.59 in 2022 to RMBO0.55 in 2023. Yield per RTK increased by 2.83% from RMB4.94 in 2022 to RMB5.08 in 2023.
Operating expenses increased by RMB43,790 million or 37.99% from RMB115,262 million in 2022 to RMB159,052 million in
2023. Operating profit of RMB5,557 million was recorded in 2023 as compared to operating loss of RMB22,542 million in 2022.
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lll. Operating Revenue

2023 2022

Operating Operating Changes

revenue Percentage revenue  Percentage  in revenue

RMB million % RMB million % %

Traffic revenue 151,445 94.70 80,901 92.93 87.20
Including: Passenger revenue 136,170 60,017 126.89
— Domestic 112,946 49,723 127.15

— Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 1,608 466 245.06

— International 21,616 9,828 119.94
Cargo and mail revenue 15,275 20,884 (26.86)

Other operating revenue 8,484 5.30 6,158 7.07 37.77

Mainly including:

Commission income 3,164 2,073 52.63
Cargo handling income 820 1,128 (26.98)
Hotel and tour operation income 750 497 50.91
Ground services income 473 282 67.73
General aviation income = 431 Not
Applicable

Total operating revenue 159,929 100.00 87,059 100.00 83.70
Less: fuel surcharge income (12,143) (6,054) 100.58
Total operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge 147,786 81,005 82.44

Substantially all of the Group’s operating revenue is attributable to airlines transport operations. Traffic revenue accounted for
92.93% and 94.70% of the total operating revenue in 2022 and 2023, respectively. Passenger revenue and cargo and mail
revenue accounted for 89.91% and 10.09%, respectively, of the total traffic revenue in 2023. During the reporting period, the
Group’s total traffic revenue was RMB151,445 milion, representing an increase of RMB70,544 milion or 87.20% from prior
year, mainly because of the increase in passenger revenue. The other operating revenue of the Group is mainly derived from
commission income, cargo handling income, hotel and tour operation income and ground services income.

The increase in operating revenue was primarily due to an increase in passenger revenue by 126.89% from RMB60,017 million in
2022 to RMB136,170 million in 2023. The total number of passengers carried increased by 127.02% to 142.20 milion passengers
in 2023. RPKs increased by 141.92% from 102,078 million in 2022 to 246,947 million in 2023, mainly due to an increase of traffic
volume with recovery of industry.

Domestic passenger revenue, which accounted for 82.94% of the total passenger revenue in 2023, increased by 127.15% from
RMB49,723 milion in 2022 to RMB112,946 million in 2023. Domestic passenger traffic in RPKs increased by 114.27%, while
passenger capacity in ASKs increased by 82.98%, resulting in an increase in passenger load factor by 11.39 percentage points
from 66.59% in 2022 to 77.98% in 2023. Yield per RPK increased by 5.88% from RMBO0.51 in 2022 to RMB0.54 in 2023.

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan passenger revenue, which accounted for 1.18% of total passenger revenue, increased by
245.06% from RMB466 million in 2022 to RMB1,608 million in 2023. For Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan flights, passenger traffic
in RPKs increased by 933.54%, while passenger capacity in ASKs increased by 494.97%, resulting in an increase in passenger
load factor by 31.44 percentage points from 42.66% in 2022 to 74.10% in 2023. Passenger yield per RPK decreased from
RMB2.66 in 2022 to RMBO0.89 in 2023.

032  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

International passenger revenue, which accounted for 15.87% of total passenger revenue, increased by 119.94% from RMB9,828
million in 2022 to RMB21,616 milion in 2023. For international flights, passenger traffic in RPKs increased by 659.17%, while
passenger capacity in ASKs increased by 507.79%, resulting in an increase in passenger load factor by 15.75 percentage points
from 63.22% in 2022 to 78.97% in 2023. Passenger vield per RPK decreased from RMB2.00 in 2022 to RMB0.58 in 2023.

Cargo and mail revenue, which accounted for 10.09% of the Group’s total traffic revenue and 9.55% of total operating revenue,
decreased by 26.86% from RMB20,884 million in 2022 to RMB15,275 million in 2023 mainly due to the decrease of freight unit
price.

Other operating revenue increased by 37.77% from RMB6,158 million in 2022 to RMB8,484 miilion in 2023 mainly due to the
increase in commission income, hotel and tour operation income and ground services income.

IV. Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2023 amounted to RMB159,052 miillion, representing an increase of RMB43,790 million or 37.99%
comparing to that of 2022. Total operating expenses as a percentage of total operating revenue decreased from 132.40% in
2022 10 99.45% in 2023.

Operating expenses 2023 2022
RMB million Percentage (%) RMB million  Percentage (%)

Flight operation expenses 76,799 48.29 51,241 44.46
Mainly including:

Jet fuel costs 52,050 32,669

Aircraft operating lease charges 1,110 791

Flight personnel payroll and welfare 12,428 10,602
Maintenance expenses 14,390 9.05 11,224 9.74
Aircraft and transportation service expenses 26,487 16.65 17,506 15.19
Promotion and selling expenses 6,349 3.99 4,355 3.78
General and administrative expenses 4,150 2.61 3,511 3.05
Depreciation and amortisation 27,165 17.08 24,266 21.05

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets (123) (0.08) 449 0.39
Hotel and tour operation expense 656 0.41 418 0.36
External air catering service expense 432 0.27 343 0.30
Financial institution charges 139 0.09 72 0.06
Cargo handling expense 552 0.35 537 0.46
Others 2,056 1.29 1,340 1.16
Total operating expenses 159,052 100.00 115,262 100.00

Flight operation expenses, which accounted for 48.29% of total operating expenses, increased by 49.88% from RMB51,241
million in 2022 to RMB76,799 milion in 2023, mainly due to the increase of jet fuel costs as a result of the increased flight volume.

Maintenance expenses, which accounted for 9.05% of total operating expenses, increased by 28.21% from RMB11,224 milion in
2022 to RMB14,390 million in 2023 due to the increase in aircraft utilisation rate with the recovery of the industry.
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Aircraft and transportation service expenses, which accounted for 16.65% of total operating expenses, increased by 51.30%
from RMB17,506 million in 2022 to RMB26,487 milion in 2023. The increase was primarily due to the increase in landing and
navigation fee as a result of the increase in the amounts of take-off and landing.

Promotion and selling expenses, which accounted for 3.99% of total operating expenses, increased by 45.79% from RMB4,355
million in 2022 to RMB6,349 million in 2023, mainly due to the increase in sales commissions and computer reservation services
expenses as a result of the increased flight volume.

General and administrative expenses, which accounted for 2.61% of the total operating expenses, increased by 18.20% from
RMB3,511 million in 2022 to RMB4,150 million in 2023, mainly due to increase in general corporate expenses.

Depreciation and amortisation, which accounted for 17.08% of the total operating expenses, increased by 11.95% from
RMB24,266 milion in 2022 to RMB27,165 million in 2023 mainly due to the increase in depreciation and amortisation of aircraft
and engines as a result of the increased number of aircraft and flight hours, respectively.

Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of RMB123 million was recorded in 2023.
(2022: Provision for impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of RMB449 miillion).

V. Operating Profit

Operating profit of RMB5,557 milion was recorded in 2023 (2022: Operating loss of RMB22,542 million). The increase of the
operating profit is mainly due to an increase of traffic volume with recovery of industry.

VI. Other Net Income

Other net income decreased by RMB981 million from RMB5,661 million in 2022 to RMB4,680 million in 2023, mainly due to a
decrease of government grants received in the year.

VIl. Income Tax

Income tax expense decreased by RMB730 million from RMB2,166 million in 2022 to RMB1,436 million in 2023, mainly due to a
decreased profit in profit making subsidiaries.

VIII. Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB101,497 milion. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recorded a net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB34,107 million, a net cash outflow
from investing activities of RMB17,898 million and a net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB26,592 million, which in total
resulted in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB10,383 million.

The Group is dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations, its ability to maintain existing external
financing, and its ability to obtain new external financing to meet its debt obligations as they fall due and to meet its committed
future capital expenditures. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. As at 31 December 2023, the Group has obtained credit
facilities of RMB396,794 million in aggregate granted by several banks and other financial institute, among which approximately
RMB266,766 milion was unutilised. The Directors of the Company believe that sufficient financing will be available to the Group
when and where needed.
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The analyses of the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities are as follows:

Composition of interest-bearing liabilities

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

RMB million RMB million

Lease liabilities 88,493 94,762
Borrowings 116,216 119,780
Long-term payables 289 531
Fixed rate interest-bearing liabilities 148,417 158,809
Floating rate interest-bearing liabilities 56,581 56,264

Analysis of interest-bearing liabilities by currency

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

RMB million RMB million

UuSsD 43,742 41,271
RMB 159,084 171,176
Others 2,172 2,626
Total 204,998 215,073

Maturity analysis of interest-bearing liabilities

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

RMB million RMB million

Within 1 year 85,144 107,377
1 year but within 2 years 32,421 31,768
2 years but within 5 years 66,436 53,924
5 years and afterwards 20,997 22,004
Total 204,998 215,073

Interest expense and net exchange loss

Interest expense decreased slightly by RMB78 million from RMB6,006 million in 2022 to RMB5,928 million in 2023.

Net exchange loss decreased by RMB2,932 million from RMB3,619 million in 2022 to RMB687 million in 2023, mainly due to a
lower degree of depreciation of Renminbi against the US dollar in 20283.
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The Group’s capital structure at the end of the year is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 Change

RMB million RMB million
Total liabilities 257,229 256,887 0.13%
Total assets 309,596 312,246 (0.85%)
Increased by
0.82 percentage
Debt ratio 83.09% 82.27% point

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt ratio
as of the end of 2023 remained stable as compared to that as of the end of 2022.

IX. Major Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, no property, plant and equipment of the Group were mortgaged for bank borrowings (31 December
2022: nil).

X. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital commitments (excluding investment commitment) of RMB112,358 million (31
December 2022: RMB106,644 milion). Of which, RMB102,883 milion was related to the acquisition of aircraft, engines and
related flight equipment (31 December 2022: RMB97,329 million) and RMB9,475 million was related to other projects of the
Group (31 December 2022: RMB9,315 million).

The Group had investment commitments as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

RMB million RMB million

Authorised and contracted for:
Share of capital commitments of a joint venture 19 52
Capital contributions for acquisition of interest in an associate 2,431 171
2,450 223

 Authorised but not contracted for:

Share of capital commitments of a joint venture 46 14
2,496 237
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Contingent liabilities

@

The Group leased certain properties and buildings from CSAH which were located in Guangzhou, Wuhan, Haikou,
etc. Although such properties and buildings were used by CSAH before being leased to the Group, as known to the
Group, such properties and buildings lack adequate documentation evidencing CSAH’s rights thereto. Pursuant to the
indemnification agreement dated 22 May 1997 entered into between the Group and CSAH, CSAH has agreed to indemnify
the Group against any loss or damage arising from any challenge of the Group’s right to use the aforementioned properties
and buildings.

The Group entered into certain agreements with CSAH in prior years to acquire certain land use right and buildings from
CSAH. The change of business registration of such land use right and buildings are still in progress. CSAH issued letters
of commitment to the Company, committing to indemnify the Group against any claims from third parties to the Group, or
any loss or damage in the Group’s operation activities due to lack adequate documentation of the certain properties and
buildings, without recourse to the Group.

The Company issued an undertaking to China Southern Airlines General Aviation Limited (“General Aviation Limited”) in
prior years that the Company has injected the relevant assets and liabilities into General Aviation Limited on 1 July 2016
and General Aviation Limited has received all the assets and actually owned, controlled and used. In the event that any
third party claims rights against General Aviation Limited due to defective land use rights and property rights or General
Aviation Limited suffers losses due to defective land use rights and property rights affecting the normal business operations
of General Aviation Limited, such losses shall be borne by the Company and the contributed assets may be replaced in an
appropriate manner if necessary.

The Company and its subsidiary, Xiamen Airlines, entered into agreements with certain pilot trainees and certain banks to
provide guarantees on personal bank loans amounting to RMB696 million (831 December 2022: RMB696 million) that can
be drawn by the pilot trainees to finance their respective flight training expenses. As at 31 December 2023, total personal
bank loans of RMB102 million (31 December 2022: RMB143 million), under these guarantees, were drawn down from the
banks. During the year, RMBO0.1 million has been made by the Group due to the default of payments of certain pilot trainees
(2022: RMBO0.2 million).
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XI. Reconciliation of Differences in Financial Statements Prepared
under PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards

(I) Difference in net loss and equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company in financial reports disclosed under IFRS Accounting Standards

and PRC GAAP
Unit: RMB million
Net loss attributable to Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company shareholders of the Company
31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
Amounts under PRC GAAP (4,209 (32,682 36,784 41,057
Adjustments under IFRS Accounting Standards:
Capitalisation of exchange difference of specific
loans (1) ©) (25) 11 14
Government grants (2) 1 1 )] @)
Adjustment arising from the Company’s business
combination under common control (3) - - 237 237
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment (4) 126 - 126 -
Income tax effect of the above adjustments 1 6 1) 2
Effect of the above adjustments on non-controlling
interests (56) 1 83) 27)
Amounts under IFRS Accounting Standards (4,140) (32,699 37,071 41,275

038  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

About Us

(Il) Explanation of differences between PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting

Standards

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, exchange difference arising on translation of specific loans and related interest
denominated in a foreign currency is capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying assets. Under IFRS Accounting Standards,
such exchange difference is recognised in income statement unless the exchange difference represents an adjustment to
interest.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, assets related government grants (other than special funds) are deducted from the
cost of the related assets. Special funds granted by the government and clearly defined in the approval documents as
part of “capital reserve” are accounted for as increase in capital reserve. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, assets related
government grants are deducted to the cost of the related assets. The difference is resulted from government grants
received in previous years and are recognised in capital reserve under PRC GAAP.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, the Company accounts for the business combination under common control by
applying the pooling-of-interest method. Under the pooling-of-interest method, the difference between the historical carrying
amount of the acquiree and the consideration paid is accounted for as an equity transaction. Business combinations under
common control are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, relevant comparative figures are
restated under PRC GAAP. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, the Company adopts the purchase accounting method for
acquisition of business under common control.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, impairment loss of non-current assets cannot be reversed. Under IFRS Accounting
Standards, an impairment loss is reversed if there is indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an
asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Xll. Capital Needs for Maintaining the Existing Business Operation and

Completing the Investment Projects under Construction

Commitments

Contractual
arrangement

Financing

Time schedule methods

Commitments in respect of aircraft,

RMB102,883 million

Investment commitments of
RMB2,450 million

Other commitments of RMB3,597

Authorised and RMB21,059 million within 1 year (inclusive of  Own funds or
contracted 1 year); debt financing
RMB25,591 million after 1 year but within 2
years (inclusive of 2 years);
RMB22,708 million after 2 years but within 3
years (inclusive of 3 years);
RMB33,525 million after 3 years
Authorised and RMB1,514 million within 1 year (inclusive of 1 Own funds
contracted year);
RMB936 million after 1 year but within 2 years
(inclusive of 2 years);
Not applicable

engines and flight equipment of

Authorised and Own funds or

million contracted

debt financing

The Group’s ability to pay off the payable due liabilities mainly depends on the Group’s net inflow of working capital and the ability
to obtain external financing. As for future capital commitment and other financing demand, as of 31 December 2023, the Group
has obtained a maximum credit line of RMB396,794 million for 2023 and subsequent years from several PRC banks, of which,
the unused bank credit lines reached approximately RMB266,766 milion. The Group believes that it will be able to obtain such

financing.
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XIll. Analysis of Operational Information from Industrial Perspective
1.  Major information of operations

Average Daily utilisation Passenger Total load
Models age (years) rate (hours) load factor (%) factor (%)
Passenger aircraft
A350 series 2.3 9.8 76.7 53.4
A330 series 9.8 7.0 74.4 51.0
A320 series 9.3 8.9 76.0 67.8
B787 series 7.0 9.7 79.0 55.2
B777 series 7.2 6.0 77.5 471
B737 series 10.2 9.2 80.5 70.7
EMB190 10.9 4.4 84.6 61.0
ARJ21 1.7 35 78.6 76.5
Freighter
B777 series 8.5 15.2 / 76.4
Average 9.2 8.9 78.1 66.4

2. Capital arrangement for introducing aircraft and related equipment during

the reporting period
Unit: number of aircraft
Capital arrangement

Number of aircraft
Models introduced during Operating Finance introduced during
the reporting period lease lease Purchased the reporting period
A350 series 0 4 0 4
A320 series 21 0 1 22
B777 series 0 0 2 2
ARJ21 0 9 0 9
Total 21 13 3 37

3. Capital expenditure plan and relevant financing plan for aircraft and related
equipment

Capital expenditure

commitments of aircraft Contractual Financing

and related equipment arrangement Time schedule methods

Commitments in respect of aircraft, Authorised and RMB21,059 million within 1 year (inclusive of 1 Own funds or
engines and flight equipment of contracted year); debt financing
RMB102,883 million RMB25,591 million after 1 year but within 2

years (inclusive of 2 years);

RMB22,708 million after 2 years but within 3
years (inclusive of 3 years);

RMB33,525 million after 3 years.
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4. New flight routes during the reporting period and future launching plan

During the reporting period, the Company launched new flight routes or destinations: Yinchuan-Shenyang, Shenzhen-
Xishuangbanna, Harbin-Changsha-Kunming, Dalian-Qingdao-Chengdu Tianfu, Changsha-Yuncheng-Changchun, Chongqing-
Zhengzhou-Dalian, Wuhan-Hohhot, Zhengzhou-Yining, Chongging-Kuala Lumpur, Hangzhou-Hailar, Chongging-Yuncheng-Dalian,
Fuzhou-Wuhan-Hailar, Urumai-Kunming, Guangzhou-Kashgar, Shenzhen-Kashgar, Beiing Daxing-Doha, Chongqging-Wuhan-
Shenyang, Tianjin-Chengdu Tianfu, Chongaing-Wuhan-Changchun, Huizhou-Kunming, Guangzhou/Shenzhen-Hanoi; Beijing
Daxing/Dalian/Guangzhou/Harbin/Shanghai Pudong/Shenyang-Osaka.

In 2024, the Company will aim to maximise total marginal contribution, increase capacity investment in the domestic market and
improve the quality of revenue on international routes. Domestic routes are planned to increase Guangzhou-Zhengzhou-Bayannur,
Shenzhen-Wuhan-Lvliang and other routes. International and regional routes are planned to increase Guangzhou-Doha, Beijing
Daxing-Riyadh, Shenzhen-Riyadh, Urumgi-Yerevan, Shenzhen-Mexico City-Tijuana-Shenzhen, Beijing Daxing-Macau and other
routes.

XIV. Analysis on Investments

1.  Major equity investment

Unit: RMB million
Whether the
Subject is
principally Itemin
Name of engaged in financial Investment Progressas Expected  Effectson ~ Whether

the Principal ~investment  Investment  Investment  Shareholding Whetherto statements (f Sowrceof  Partners (i period atthe balance revere current profit involvedin ~ Date of
investee  business  businss  method  amount  proporon  consolidate applicable)  funds applicable) (fany)  shestdate  (f any) orloss lawsuits  disclosure  Index of disclosure

Schuen Arpassenger No Captd inction 4,680 RYS No Itgrestsin -~ Ownfunds  / / RMB2.34 billon / Ivestment -~ No 30 December - tp:/www.sse.comen/
Arines  and cargo assocates fave been full foss of 023

Company  transportation peid-up RMB2.34

Limted bion

2. Major non-equity investment

Nil.
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3. Financial assets carried at fair value

Unit: RMB million
Amount of
disposal/
Changes in Total fair  Impairment  Amount of  redemption
fair value for value change for the purchase for for the
Opening  the current  recorded in current  the current current Other Ending
Asset class balance period equity period period period changes balance
Shares 680 (107) 399 / / / / 573
Derivative instruments 29 (11) / / / (14 / 4
Others 28 79 21 / 6,146 / / 6,253
Total 737 39) 420 / 6,146 (14) / 6,830
(1) Securities investment
Unit: RMB million
Gains or
losses from Profit and
changesin Accumulated ~ Amount  Amount  loss from
fair value fair value  purchased sold investment
Initial Beginning  during the changes duringthe during the during the
Security Security investment  Sources of book reporting includedin reporting reporting reporting  Closing
type Security code  abbreviation cost funds value period equity period period period book value Accounting item
Shares 000099 Citc Offshore 9 / 21 5 13 / / / 26 Other non-current
Helicopter Co., Ltd. financial assets
Other N/A China Air Sevice Ltd. 2 / 1 / () / / / 1 Other non-current
financial assets
Other N/A Aviation Data 1 / 27 3 2 / / / 30 Other non-current
Communication financial assets
Corporation
Shares 0069 Travelsky Technology 3 / 659 (112) 386 / / 4 547 Other investments in
Limited equity securiies
Total / / 4 / 708 (104) 40 / / 4 )

(2) Private equity investment
Nil.
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(3) Derivative investment
Unit: RMB million
Gains or Proportion of
losses from Accumulated ~ Amount closing book
changesinfair fairvalue  purchased Amount sold value in the
Initial value during  changes  duringthe  during the Company’s
investment  Beginning the reporting includedin  reporting  reporting Closing closing net
Type of derivative investment amount  book value period equity period period book value  assets (%)
Jet fuel forward contracts 0 0 4 3 / 5 4 0.008
Total 0 0 4 3 / 5 4 0.008

Remarks on whether there have been material
changes in the accounting policy and
accounting measurement principles for the
hedging business during the reporting period
as compared with the previous reporting
period

Remarks on actual profit or loss during the
reporting period

Remarks on the effects of hedging
Source of fund for derivative investment

Remarks on risk analysis and management
of derivative postions during the reporting
period (including but not limited to market
risk, liquicity risk, credit risk, operational risk
and legal risk)

Changes in market price or product fair value
of invested derivatives during the reporting
period, where specific methods and relevant
assumptions and parameters used shall be
disclosed in the analysis of derivatives' fair
value

Lawsuits involved (if applicable)

Disclosure date of announcement of the board
on approving derivative investment (if any)

Disclosure date of announcement of the general
meeting on approving derivative investment (f

any)

At initial recognition, the Group recognises jet fuel forward contracts as financial assets or financial libilties measured at fair
value through profit or loss based on the business model for managing financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial instruments.

After initiel recognition, such financial instruments were subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or losses included in profit
orloss.

There were no material changes as compared to the previous reporting period.

During the reporting period, a fair value gain of RMB4 milion was recognised for aviation fuel hedging contracts, and a fair value
loss of RMB15 million was recognised for interest rate hedging contracts. As of 31 December 2023, all interest rate hedging
positions held by the Company had been closed.

Based on the comparison on major terms, the target on hedging has been achieved.
Credit facilties from financial institutions and its own funds.

During the reporting period, derivative positions were exposed to market, liquidity, credit, policy and other types of risks. Following
the hedging principles, the Company selected derivatives with simple structure, high liquicity and recognisable risks, established
and improved the derivative business management system, strengthened counterparty management and appraisal and adopted
other measures to actively manage and control risks.

As at the end of 2023, the fair value of jet fuel forward contracts was RMB4 million, and there were no stock exchange rate
and interest rate hedging contracts. During the reporting period, a fair value change loss of RMB15 milion was recognised
for interest rate hedging contracts. The fair value of jet fuel forward contracts is mainly calculated based on the corresponding
lock up period of jet fuel futures prices, while the fair value of interest rate hedging contracts is mainly calculated based on the
floating interest rate curve and risk-free interest rate curve.

N/A

On 28 February 2023, the Company held the twelfth megting of the 9th session of the Board of the Company to consider and
approve the hedging plan and proposal of the Company for 2023,

N/A
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XV. Major Assets and Shareholding Disposal

During the reporting period, there was no disposal of any major assets or equity investments by the Company.

XVI. Analysis on Major Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures and Associates

1. Fleet and operational data of major holding companies of the Company:

Number of
passengers Cargo and
Name of Number  Proportion carried  Proportion mail carried  Proportion Proportion Proportion
subsidiary of aircraft (%)  (thousand) (%) (tonne) (%) RTK (million) (%) RPK (million) (%)
Xiamen Airlines 211 2324 36,385.61 2559 1904336 12.02 5,740.80 1927 59,986.22 24.29
Shantou Arines 21 2.31 3,301.12 2.32 13,2180 0.83 408.80 1.37 444668 1.80
Zhuhai Airiines 16 1.76 2,688.33 1.89 9,663.6 0.61 395.00 1.33 435345 1.76
Guizhou Airlines 20 2.20 3814.27 2.68 20,840.8 1.31 51749 1.74 5,534.69 2.24
Chongaing Airines 30 3.30 5,228.66 368 18,4659 117 693.70 2.33 7,566.38 3.06
Henan Airines 30 3.30 5,168.05 363 33,9156 2.14 694.31 2.33 7,358.84 2.98

Note: The operational information of Xiamen Airlines includes operational information of its subsidiaries, Hebei Airlines and Jiangxi Airlines.

2. Analysis on operations of major controlling companies of the Company

Shantou Guizhou Chongqing
Xiamen Airlines Airlines  Zhuhai Airlines Airlines Airlines Henan Airlines  CSA Logistics
Establishment date August 1984 July 1993 May 1995 June 1998 May 2007  September 2013 June 2018
Legal representative Xie Bing Cui Huajie Wang Changjiang Yi Honglei Zhao Zaikui Lu Zhongjian Liu Zubin
Registered capital 140 28 25 12.81 12 60 18.18
(RMB100 million)
Shareholding 55% 60% 60% 60% 60% 60% 55%

In 2023, Xiamen Airlines earmed operating revenue of RMB33,562 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 67.15%; and
net profit of RMB603 million as compared to a net loss of RMB2,122 million for the same period of last year. As of 31 December
2023, Xiamen Airlines’ total assets amounted to RMB56,352 million, and its net assets amounted to RMB20,229 million.

In 2023, CSA Logistics earned operating revenue of RMB16,605 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 22.90%, and a

net profit of RMB2,429 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 47.81%. As of 31 December 2023, CSA Logistics'’s total
assets amounted to RMB17,392 million and its net assets amounted to RMB13,688 million.

044  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

3. Information of other major joint ventures and associates

Name of Proportion of shares held at
investee companies Major business Registered capital the investee companies (%)
Direct Indirect

1. Joint ventures

Guangzhou Aircraft Alircraft repair and maintenance USD65,000,000 50 0
Maintenance Engineering services
Co., Ltd.

MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Aircraft repair and maintenance USD163,100,000 50 0
Co., Ltd. services

2. Associates
Finance Company Financial services RMB2,000,000,000 41.81 6.78
SACM Advertising agency services RMB200,000,000 40 0

XVIl. Industry Landscape and Trend
(1) Development trend of international civil aviation industry

In 2023, the global passenger traffic maintained a strong recovery momentum and the air cargo demand gradually resumed
normal. IATA expects the global air transport industry is likely to maintain the continuous growth trend in 2024. It is expected
that the annual revenue of the air transport industry will reach US$964 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.6%.
The number of global travelers is expected to exceed 4.7 billion, hitting a new high since 2019. Meanwhile, IATA also pointed
out that the recovery of the air transport industry is relative fragile, which is likely to be affected by the global economic satiation,
geopoalitical conflicts, tight supply chains and other external factors.

(2) Development trend of China’s civil aviation industry

Looking ahead to 2024, China’s civil aviation industry improved generally. In 2024, China’s transportation and production will
resume natural increase and domestic passengers will maintain steady increase. It is expected that the number of domestic
routes will reach 630 million. The international passenger market will speed up in recovery. It is expected that the number of flights
will reach about 6,000 each week by the end of 2024, resuming to about 80% of that of 2019. China’s civil aviation industry
has entered the stage of quality and efficiency improvement. The supply-side structural reform of the civil aviation industry will
be further deepened; the allocation of resources and elements will continue to be optimised; and the application of scientific and
technological innovation results will speed up. It is expected that by the end of the “14th Five-year Plan” period, aviation services
will cover 93.2% of prefectural-level administrative district, 91.6% of the population and 94.5% of total economy across China. The
proportion of the passenger traffic volume in comprehensive traffic systems will be increased to 35%, which will vigorously serve
the new development paradigm featuring dual circulation, in which domestic and overseas markets reinforce each other, with the
domestic market as the mainstay.
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XVIll. Development Strategy of the Company

With building a world-class enterprise as the goal, the Company has determined the overarching approach for quality development
featuring “adhering to five concepts of development, implementing five strategies, promoting six campaigns and achieving six
transformations”, and the development vision of “14th Five-Year Plan”, which closely focuses on the “building a world-class air
transportation enterprise with global competitiveness”. It is clear that by 2025, a synergistic development pattern will be initially
established with the main industry of air transportation as the core and the supporting industries as the backbone. The Company
has developed an implementation plan for accelerating the construction of a world-class enterprise, launched a special operation
entitles “mending shortcomings, improving quality and creating a First-class enterprise”, and clarified the objectives and measures
for building a world-class enterprise.

The Company adheres to the “five development” concepts of safety, high quality, innovation, cooperation and sharing; focuses
on the “five strategies” in relation to hub network, ecosystem, innovation-driven, lean management and control, and brand
management; carries out “six campaigns” on launching a special operation entitles “mending shortcomings, improving quality
and creating a First-class enterprise”, accelerating the construction of Beijing Daxing Hub, implementing reforms to deepen
and enhance the action, pushing forward the digital transformation with all-out efforts, pushing forward the adjustment and
optimisation of the five major structures, and comprehensively creating services that are “optimised in five aspects”; and strives for
“six transformations” from speed-oriented to quality-oriented, from comprehensive market expansion to exploring key areas, from
a relatively single industry to high relevance and diversified industries, from planning management and control to market operation,
from the traditional business model to digitalisation and ecological circle, and from extensive management to refined management.

XIX. Business Plan for 2024

Looking ahead into 2024, with global inflation steadily declining and China’s economic recovery accelerating, the global economy
will confront various challenges due to the impacts of tightening monetary policies and geopolitical conflicts. According to the
International Monetary Fund’s projection, global economic growth is expected to be 3.1% in 2024.

In 2024, as the fundamentals of China's economy, which is resilience, promising, dynamic and long-term positive, remain
unchanged, China is expected to consolidate and boost the momentum of economic recovery and continuously promote the
effective improvement in quality and reasonable expansion in quantity of its economy.

Facing the complex and severe domestic and international situation, the Group will be prepared to respond to various risks and
challenges, comprehensively advance the implementation of the overarching approach for high-quality development to ensure
sustainable and high-quality safety. It will enhance and improve operational standards, fully strengthen service control, accelerate
the implementation of significant strategies, practically facilitate the deepening and improvement of reform and constantly stride
forward towards the goal of building the Group into a world-class aviation transportation enterprise.

1.  Firmly guarding the safety bottom line and continuously improving safety
quality

The Group will coordinate development and safety, establish the concept of “big safety” and utilise the seven safety systems to
improve the safety governance capability. We will promote the deep integration of system functions and digital technology with
safety production and operation and achieve the comprehensive optimisation of safety management procedures; we will conduct
strict management on safety officer team and enhance the members’ capabilities on safe duty performance; we will carry out
strict management on the qualifications of flight teams and regularly organise performance appraisal in a scientific manner; we wil
strictly respond to flight safety, adverse weather and other traditional risks and attach great importance to non-traditional safety
factors and risks; we will facilitate the digital transformation of safety work and enhance the risk prevention capabilities through
technological means. In 2024, the Group will continue to maintain the stable trend of safety operation.
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2. Reinforcing core market competitiveness and improving operation

The Group will comprehensively improve the core market competitiveness, solve key constraints and focus on quality and
efficiency improvement. We will strengthen the connection and coordination of core hubs and network and vigorously advance
complete access to the network; we will facilitate the implementation of the customer management system and develop customer
operation capabilities covering all the online and offline touchpoints; we will refine the establishment of product systems and
diversify product portfolios for personalised demands; we will deepen the building of ecosystems and expand the cooperation
with industrial segments; we will reinforce the core competitiveness in cargo transport and transform the Company towards a
provider of logistic services covering the whole value chain. We will boost support to the digital transformation and focus on the
development in digital marketing, intelligent logistics and digital operation; we will improve the efficiency of cost management and
refined management.

3. Continuously improving the operation quality to create a top service brand

The Group will continue to improve operational efficiency, comprehensively enhance service quality and further advance brand
building. We will further promote the integrated operation, optimise the business structure of operation control and improve the
appraisal model on the value of management work; we wil enhance the aircraft utilisation rate, further explore the potential of
fuel saving and improve the level of refined operation and management; we will deepen the integration of services with marketing
and operation and perfect the closed-loop management mechanism covering the full lifecycle of services and products; we
will establish the characteristic brand management system of CSA and continuously build the core hub brand, the “affinity and
refinement” service brand and the “Green Flight” responsibility brand.

4. Accelerating the implementation of strategies and continuously expanding
the development space

The Group will maintain strategic focus, implement strategic targets on high-quality development and explore and invest in
strategic and emerging industries. We will build the Beijing hub with high quality, make every effort to secure the release of time
slots at Daxing Airport and improve the transit capability; we will enhance the market control in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area and expand the remote coverage of networks; we will further promote the optimisation of the five
major structures, intensify the lean management of the fleet and facilitate the adjustment of the industrial structure; we will further
promote the digital transformation, speed up the construction of IT R&D ecology and platform, establish the route operation
management system and realise whole-process resource management and efficient collaboration from scheduling to execution of
flight plans.

5. Promoting the deepening and improvement of reform and stimulating
impetus and vitality

The Group will deepen and improve reform and vigorously promote the reform of systems and mechanisms. We will continue to
improve the modern corporate governance of state-owned enterprises with Chinese characteristics and optimise relevant systems
of the board of directors and management; we will improve the market-oriented operation mechanism, promote the downward
penetration of the tenure system and contractual management and facilitate the refined management of total salary and labour
costs; we will step up efforts in achieving breakthroughs in significant technological innovation, speed up the transformation of
technological achievements and advance the professional integration of businesses; we will establish high-quality supply chain
management systems and accelerate the standardisation of aircraft maintenance covering all fields such as production operation
and engineering technology.
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From 2024 to 2026, the delivery and disposal plan of aircraft of the Group will be as follows:

Unit: number of aircraft

2023 2024 2025 2026
Number of Estimated Estimated Estimated
aircraft at number at number at number at
Aircraft the end of the end of the end of the end of
Models the period Delivery Disposal the period Delivery Disposal the period Delivery Disposal the period
Passenger Aircraft
Airbus
A350 Series 20 0 0 20 0 0 20 1 0 21
A330 Series 36 0 7 29 0 3 26 0 0 26
A320 Series 360 30 12 378 46 16 408 30 14 424
Boeing
B787 Series 39 4 0 43 6 0 49 0 0 49
B777 Series 15 0 0 15 0 0 15 0 0 15
B737 Series 386 36 17 405 0 18 387 23 30 380
Other
EMB190 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ARJ21 29 9 0 38 2 0 40 0 0 40
Passenger Aircraft
Sub-total 891 79 42 928 54 37 945 54 44 955
Freighter
B777 Series 17 2 0 19 0 0 19 0 0 19
B737 Series 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1
Freighter Sub-total 17 3 0 20 0 0 20 0 0 20
Total 908 82 42 948 54 37 965 54 44 975

Note: The introduction and disposal plan of the fleet of the Company may be subject to adjustment based on future agreements and
delivery of aircraft.
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XX. RISK FACTORS ANALYSIS
() Macro Environment Risks

(1) Risks of Fluctuation in Macro Economy

The degree of prosperity of the civil aviation industry is closely linked to the status of the development of the domestic and
international macro economy. Macro economy has a direct impact on the economic activities, the disposable income of the
residents and the import and export trade volume, which in turn affects the demand of the air passenger and air cargo, and further
affects the business and operating results of the Group.

(2) Risks of Macro Policies

Macroeconomic policies made by the government, in particular the adjustment in the cyclical macro policies, such as credit,
interest rate, exchange rate and fiscal expenditure, have a direct or indirect impact on the air transportation industry. In addition,
the establishment of the new airlines, the opening of aviation rights, routes, air ticket fares and other aspects are regulated by
the government, and the fuel surcharges pricing mechanism is also formulated by the government. The changes in the relevant
policies will have a potential impact on the operating results and the future development of the business of the Company.

(ll) Force Majeure Risks such as Serious Pandemics and Natural Disasters

The aviation industry is subject to a significant impact from the external environment, abrupt public health emergencies, such
as serious pandemics, natural disasters such as floods, typhoons and volcanic eruptions, terrorist attacks, international political
turmoil and other factors. These risks will affect the normal operation of the airlines, and thus bringing unfavourable effect to the
results and long-term development of the Company.

() Industry Risks

(1) Risks of Intensifying Competition in the Industry

Faced with ever-changing markets, if the Company fails to effectively enhance its ability to predict and adopt flexible sales
strategies and pricing mechanisms, this may have an impact on the Company’s goal of achieving expected returns. With regard
to the introduction of transportation capacity, if the Company fails to establish a corresponding capacity introduction and exit
mechanism, it may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operating efficiency. In terms of exploring the international
market, if the Company fails to further improve the operational quality of international routes, it may affect the Company’s operating
income and profit levels.

(2) Risks of Competition from Other Modes of Transportation

There is certain substitutability in short to medium range routes transportation among air transport, railway transportation and road
transportation. With the improving high speed rails network, if the Company fails to develop an effective marketing strategy to deal
with high-speed rail competition, it may affect the Company’s operating efficiency.
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(IV) Risks of the Company Management
(1) Safety Risks

Flight safety is the prerequisite and foundation for the normal operation of the airlines. Adverse weather, mechanical failure, human
error, aircraft defects as well as other force majeure incidents may have effect on the flight safety. With big size of aircraft fleet
and large amount of cross-location, overnight or international operations, the Company was confronted with certain challenges
in its safety operation. In case of any flight accident, it will have an adverse effect on the normal production and operation and
reputation of the Company.

(2) Information Safety Risks

The information safety situation is becoming more and more severe. If the Company fails to manage the information safety
affairs at company level or a higher level, increase input of information safety resources, and strengthen the information safety
management, the Company’s safety, production, operation, marketing, service, etc. may be affected, as a result of which the
Company may be affected and suffer losses.

(38) Risks of High Capital Expenditure

The major capital expenditure of the Company is to purchase aircraft. In recent years, the Company has been optimising the
fleet structure and reducing the operational cost through introducing more advanced models, disposing obsolete models and
streamlining the number of models. Due to the high fixed costs for the operation of aircraft, if the operation condition of the
Company suffered from a severe downturn, it may lead to the significant drop in the operating profit, facing financial distress and
other problems.

(V) Financial Risks of the Company

(1) Risks of Fluctuation in Foreign Currency

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place
either through the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) or other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange or at a
swap centre. Substantially all of the Group’s lease liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies, principally US dollars, Euro
and Japanese Yen. Depreciation or appreciation of Renminbi against foreign currencies therefore affects the Group’s results
significantly. In particular, fluctuations in exchange rate of US dollar against Renminbi will have a material impact on the Group’s
finance expense. Assuming risks other than exchange rate remain unchanged, the shareholders’ equity of the Group will increase
(or decrease) by RMB320 million and the net loss of the Group will decrease (or increase) by RMB320 million during the reporting
period in the case of each and every 1% increase (or decrease) of the exchange rate of RMB to US dollar at 31 December 2023.

(2) Risks of Fluctuation in Jet Fuel Price

The jet fuel cost is the most major expenditure for the Group. Both the fluctuation in the international crude oil prices and the
adjustment of domestic fuel prices by the NDRC has big impact on the cost of the Group. Although the Group has adopted
various fuel saving measures to decrease the fuel consumption volume, provided there is significant fluctuation in the international
oil prices, the operating results of the Group may be significantly affected. Assuming that the fuel oil consumption remains
unchanged, in the case of each and every 10% increase or decrease on average in fuel price during the reporting period, the
Group’s operating expenses would increase or decrease by RMB5,205 miillion for the reporting period.
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In addition, the Group is required to procure a majority of its jet fuel domestically at PRC spot market prices. There is currently no
effective means available to manage the Group’s exposure to the fluctuations of domestic jet fuel prices. However, according to a
“Notice on Questions about Establishing Linked Pricing Mechanism for Fuel Surcharges of Domestic Routes and Jet Fuel” jointly
published by the NDRC and the CAAC in 2009, airlines may, within a prescribed scope, determine the standard of fuel surcharges
for domestic routes. The linked pricing mechanism, to a certain extent, reduces the Group’s exposure to fluctuation in jet fuel
price.

(3) Risks of Fluctuation in Interest Rate

Since the civil aviation industry is featured with high investments, the gearing ratio of the airlines is generally high. Therefore, the
interest rate fluctuation resulting from the change of capital in the market has a relatively greater influence on the Group’s financial
expense, so as to further affect the Group’s operating results. During the reporting period, assuming all other risk variables other
than interest rate remained constant, 100 basis point increase (or decrease) of the Group’s comprehensive capital cost would
decrease (or increase) shareholders’ equity of the Group by the amount of RMB331 million and increase (or decrease) net loss of
the Group by the amount of RMB331 million during the reporting period. As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio (defined as
total borrowings divided by total equity) of the Company was 222%.

Annual Report 2023 051



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company hereby presents this annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 of the Group to the shareholders of the Company.

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in airlines operations. The Group also operates certain airlines related businesses, including
provision of aircraft maintenance and air catering services. The Group is the airline with the most developed route network and
the largest annual passenger traffic volume in China. For the business conditions of the Group in 2023 and major risks faced
by the Group as well as the business plan of the Group in 2024, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report. The Group has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. Please refer to pages 135 to 239 of this annual report for details. For the key
financial indicators of the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Principal Accounting Information and Financial Indicators”
and “Summary of Operating Data” in this annual report.

Dividends

Considering that the Company suffered a net loss for year of 2023, which does not meet the conditions for profit distribution as
required under the Articles of Association, the Board did not recommmend any payment of cash dividend or conversion of capital
reserve into share capital or other profit distribution of the Company for the year of 2023. The abovementioned proposal is still
subject to the approval of the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the five-year period ended 31 December 2023 (prepared
under IFRS Accounting Standards) are set out on page 244 of this annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in note 36 to the financial statements prepared under
IFRS Accounting Standards.

Interest Capitalisation
For the year ended 31 December 2023, interest expense of RMB672 million (2022: RMB690 milion) was capitalised as the

cost of construction in progress and property, plant and equipment in the financial statements prepared under IFRS Accounting
Standards.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Group and movements of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 19 to the financial statements prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s aggregate revenue from the top five customers did not exceed 2.73% of the Group’s total revenue in 2023. No sales
to the top five customers were made to related parties.

The Group’s purchases from the largest supplier were RMB14,613 million, representing 17.22% of the Group’s total purchases
in 2023. The purchases from the top five suppliers were RMB35,275 million in total, representing 41.57% of the total purchases
in 2023, of which purchases from related parties were RMB2,867 million, representing 3.38% of the total purchases in 2023.
During the year, none of the directors, their closed associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the total issued shares of the Company) had any interest in these top five suppliers.

Relationships with Customers and Suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term
goals and maintain the leading position in the market.

During the reporting period, the Group steadily improved its operation quality with continuous improvement in brand image.
We focused on improving flight punctuality and frontal bay rate of flights at contact berths, established working mechanisms on
operation under extreme weather and guarantee of shuttle operation and constantly reduced the transit time at hubs with the
focus on improving the travelling convenience and sense of fulflment of passengers. We refined the service quality management
system, optimised the entire-chain business process and structure of services, developed the global service support centre and
introduced “kapok” and “cloud” featured air services. We deepened the brand management strategy and built the Guangzhou-
Beijing core hub brand, the “affinity and refinement” service brand and the “Green Flight” responsibility brand. During the reporting
period, the Company was awarded the “Five-Star Diamond Award” by the World Brand Lab and has been honoured as the “Best
Airline of the Year” by CAPSE for six consecutive years.

The Group continued to explore how to improve its supplier management mechanisms. Since 2018, the Group has issued
the Measures for Supplier Management to promote classification and hierarchical management of suppliers, established and
improved the supplier assessment system, strengthened the contract performance management and standardised procurement
documents including the Notice on the Restricted Supplier List System, the Letter of Commitment to Integrity for Bidders, and the
Engagement Letter on Clean Cooperation, so as to standardise cooperation with suppliers from the aspects of operation, society
and environment and encourage suppliers to actively assume social responsibilities. Meanwhile, through the communication with
suppliers, the Group took the advice and suggestion of suppliers to better improve its work.

During the reporting period, there had been no material or significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had following major customers and suppliers:

Unit: RMB million

Percentage as
total operating

Name of customers Operating revenue revenue (%)
Customer 1 2,408 1.51
Customer 2 527 0.33
Customer 3 523 0.33
Customer 4 462 0.29
Customer 5 442 0.27
Total 4,362 2.73

Unit: RMB million

Percentage as

Name of suppliers Purchase total purchase (%)
China National Aviation Fuel Group 14,613 17.22
South China Blue Sky Aviation Fuel Co., Ltd 11,589 13.66
China Aviation Fuel (Beijing) Airport Aviation Oil Co., Ltd 3,494 412
MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd 2,867 3.38
AVIC Xinjiang Aviation Oil Co., Ltd 2,712 3.19
Total 35,275 41.57

Based on the nature of the Group’s business, the Group has not relied on major suppliers or customers. For details of the
customer services of the Group, please refer to the analysis on market and service under “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section in this annual report.

Taxation

Details of taxation of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 29 to the financial statements prepared under IFRS Accounting
Standards.

Enterprise Income Tax of Overseas Non-Resident Enterprises

In accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company is obliged to withhold and pay PRC enterprise
income tax on behalf of non-resident enterprise shareholders at a tax rate of 10% when the Company distributes any dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders. As such, any H Shares of the Company which are not registered in the name(s) of
individual(s) (which, for this purpose, includes shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees,
trustees, or other organisations or groups) shall be deemed to be H Shares held by non-resident enterprise shareholder(s), and
the PRC enterprise income tax shall be withheld from any dividends payable thereon. Non-resident enterprise shareholders may
wish to apply for a tax refund (if any) in accordance with the relevant requirements, such as tax agreements (arrangements), upon
receipt of any dividends.
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Individual Income Tax of Overseas Individual Shareholders

In accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations in the PRC, when non-foreign investment companies of the mainland
which are listed in Hong Kong distribute dividends to their shareholders, the individual shareholders in general will be subject to
a withholding tax rate of 10% without making any application for the entitlement for the above-mentioned tax rate. However, the
Company is a foreign investment company and, as confirmed by the relevant tax authorities, according to the Circular on Certain
Issues Concerning the Policies of Individual Income Tax (Cai Shui Zi [1994] No. 020)  BFMEA PSR & TR B BB A et
T2 5[1994]020 5%)) promulgated by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 13 May 1994, overseas
individuals are, as an interim measure, exempted from the PRC individual income tax for dividends or bonuses received from
foreign investment enterprises.

Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Stock Exchange (including enterprises and individuals) investing in the A shares of the Company listed on
the SSE (the “Northbound Trading”), the Company will withhold and pay income taxes at the rate of 10% on behalf of those
investors and will report to the tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of Northbound Trading who are tax residents of
other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to, apply to the competent
tax authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty. Upon approval by the tax authorities, the paid
amount in excess of the tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

Investors of Southbound Trading

Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the “Notice on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai Hong
Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2014] No. 81)" KBIRNEB AR5 5 BBk BB H I 5 REA AT KIBR 80 R &1 157 [2014]81
5%))), for dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the company of such H shares shall withhold and pay individual income tax at the
rate of 20% on behalf of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment funds from investing in shares
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as
that for individual investors. The company of such H shares will not withhold and pay the income tax of dividends for domestic
enterprise investors and those domestic enterprise investors shall report and pay the relevant tax themselves.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in the
financial statements prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards.

Subsidiaries

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 23 to the financial statements prepared under IFRS
Accounting Standards.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any shares during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no specific provision under the PRC laws or the Articles of Association regarding preemptive rights, which requires the
Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings when there is issuance of
shares.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company did not have any arrangement with a term providing for indemnity against liability incurred by the Directors or the
Supervisors during their tenure.

The Company has purchased insurance to protect Directors and senior management against legal actions arising from corporate
activities.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company has reviewed and confirmed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group include: Civil Aviation Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Development of the Civil Aviation Industry, Regulation on the
Civil Airport Administration, Regulation of the People’s Republic of China on Civil Aviation Security, Provisions on the Administration
of Flight Procedures and Minimum Operation Standards for Civil Airports, Provisions of the CAAC on the Administration of the
Transport of Dangerous Goods by Air, Provisions of China’s Civil Aviation Business Permits for Domestic Routes and Provisions
on the Business Licence for Public Air Transport Enterprises.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company strictly followed the laws and regulations mentioned above to ensure safe
operation of the Company, and to secure its slots execution rate and flight punctuality rate to reach the standard. The Company
applied new routes and slots according to laws and returned back in a timely manner any unused traffic rights. No punishment
was imposed on the Group by any regulatory authorities which caused material impact on the operation of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had complied with laws and regulations that had material effect on the
operation of the Group.

Management Contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of business of the Company were entered into or existed.

Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, during the year ended 31 December 2023, none
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries other than the Group, and there was no contract of significance for the provision of services between the Group and
its controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries other than the Group.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Transaction, Arrangement or
Contract of Significance

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors, Supervisors or entities
connected with the Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisting at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023 or at the
end of the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits through acquiring shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors or Supervisors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information publicly available to the Company, and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of this annual report, the Company had maintained sufficient public float as required by the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Connected Transactions

The Company entered into certain connected transactions with CSAH (the controlling shareholder of the Company) and other
connected persons from time to time. Details of the connected transactions of the Company subsisted or conducted in 2023
which are required to be disclosed herein under the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(1) De-merger Agreement

The De-merger Agreement dated 25 March 1995 (such agreement was amended by the Amendment Agreement No.1 dated 22
May 1997) was entered into between CSAH and the Company for the purpose of defining and allocating the assets and liabilities
between CSAH and the Company. Under the De-merger Agreement, CSAH and the Company have agreed to indemnify the
other party against claims, liabilities and expenses incurred by such other party relating to the businesses, assets and liabilities held
or assumed by CSAH or the Company pursuant to the De-merger Agreement.

Neither the Company nor CSAH has made any payments in respect of such indemnification obligations from the date of the De-
merger Agreement up to the date of this annual report.
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(2) Continuing Connected Transactions between the Group and CSAH (or their
subsidiaries)

A. SACM, which is 60% owned by CSAH

The Company entered into the Media Services Framework Agreement on 28 December 2021 with SACM (the “Media Services
Framework Agreement”’), to renew the media services provided by SACM to the Group under the original Media Services
Framework Agreement entered into by the Company and SACM with a term of three years on 27 December 2018, for a further
term of three years from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

Pursuant to the Media Services Framework Agreement, SACM agrees to continue to provide the Group with (i) agency services
for collecting, editing and distribution for the Group’s internal publicity media and platforms; (i) exclusive advertising agency
services for the Company and advertising agency services for the Company’s wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries; (i) agency
services for the planning, procurement and production of entertainment content in the application software of the Group’s in-flight
entertainment system; (iv) supply services for CSA Mall; (v) recruitment public relations services; (vi) newspaper placement services;
and (vii) other media services. The service fees for media services provided by the SACM and its subsidiaries to members of the
Group are determined by reference to market prices after arms-length negotiations between the parties. The market prices are
determined in the following order: (a) the prices then charged by independent third parties providing similar services under normal
trading conditions in or in the vicinity of the place where such services are provided; or (b) the prices then charged by independent
third parties providing similar services under normal trading conditions within the PRC. The Company will assign staff to check
prices and terms offered by independent third parties for similar products or services (usually through online price comparison
toals).

Pursuant to the Media Services Framework Agreement, the annual caps for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 are RMB240 million, RMB261 million and RMB282 million (excluding tax), respectively. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2021 in relation to the Media Services Framework Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the transaction amount of the Group for media services was RMB105 million.

B. Finance Company, which is 51.416% owned by CSAH

On 28 October 2022, the Company entered into a Financial Services Framework Agreement (the “Financial Services
Framework Agreement’) with the Finance Company, in order to renew the financial services provided by the Finance Company
to the Group under original financial services framework agreement entered into by the Company and the Finance Company on
27 August 2019 for a term of three years. The term of the Financial Services Framework Agreement is three years, starting from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

According to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, the financial services provided by the Finance Company to the
Group include deposit services, loan services and other financial services. The parties agreed that (1) the Finance Company
would accept deposits from the Group at rates no less favorable than those prescribed by the People’s Bank of China from time
to time for deposits of the same maturity. In order to control the risk, the Finance Company will then deposit the entire amount
with certain state-owned commercial banks and listed commercial banks. The Finance Company will ensure that the Group can
access the funds at any time; (2) the Finance Company agrees that upon application by the Company within the term of the
Financial Services Framework Agreement, the Finance Company shall provide loans or credit facilities to the Group and enter
into individual loan agreements, and the interest rate levied by the Finance Company shall not be higher than the interest rate
stipulated by the People’s Bank of China for similar loans, and the total amount of loans from the Finance Company to CSAH
and its subsidiaries other than the Group shall not exceed the sum of the Finance Company’s share capital, provident fund and
deposits of other companies other than the Group; (3) upon the request of the Company, the Finance Company is also required
to enter into separate agreements to provide other financial services to the Group, including guarantee business, financial and
financing advisory, credit authentication and other related advisory and agency services, as well as other business that the
Finance Company may operate with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission. If the Company
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is approved to issue bonds, the Finance Company may accept the Company’s engagement to provide bond issuance or
underwriting services, subject to individual agreements. The handling fees charged by the Finance Company for the provision of
other financial services shall be determined in accordance with the amount of fees that should be charged by regulatory authorities
such as People’s Bank of China or the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission. According to the above principles,
the fees charged will be equal to or lower than the fees charged by the Finance Company to independent third parties for similar
financial services.

Pursuant to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, the maximum daily deposit balance (including the relevant accrued
interest) deposited by the Group and the maximum outstanding loan amount (including the relevant accrued interest payable)
provided by the Finance Company to the Group at any particular date shall not exceed RMB20 billion, RMB21 billion, and RMB22
billion for each of the three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the deposits
placed by the Group with Finance Company were RMB8,940 million and did not exceed RMB20 billion at any date during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The provision of loan facilities to the Group by the Finance Company constitutes financial assistance by a connected person for
the benefit of the Group on normal commercial terms or better commercial terms and such loans are not secured by the assets
of the Group and therefore the provision of loan facilities to the Group by the Finance Company is exempted from all reporting,
annual review, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

For other financial services provided by the Finance Company to the Group, the Company expects that the total fees payable by
the Group to the Finance Company for each of the three years ending 31 December 2025 will not exceed RMB7.5 million, which
is less than the minimum exemption limit set out in Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the provision of other financial
services by the Finance Company to the Group is also exempted from the requirements of the Listing Rules Regarding reporting,
annual review, announcement and shareholder approval.

C. SACC, which is 50.1% owned by CSAH

The Company entered into the new Catering Services Framework Agreement (the “Catering Services Framework Agreement”)
on 28 December 2021 with SACC to renew the catering services provided by SACC to the Group under the original Catering
Services Framework Agreement entered into by the Company and SACC with a term of three years on 27 December 2018, for a
term of three years, commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024.

The service fees for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Catering Services Framework Agreement
mainly comprise four parts, i.e. meal fees, service fees, in-flight supply service fees and storage management fees. The meal fees,
being the main part, are determined with reference to raw material costs, labour costs, management fees, tax and reasonable
profit rate in the corresponding proportions of 38%, 38%, 12% and 12%, respectively. The reasonable profit rate will be
determined based on the recovery of business from the pandemic and the industry environment. Other parts of the service fees
are determined based on, where applicable, rental costs, labour costs, facilities depreciation costs and management fees. The
labour costs will be determined with reference to the average wage of the preceding year published by the Shenzhen Municipal
Government. The relevant departments of the Company will set upper price limit for meals according to the local price level and
the consumer price index in Shenzhen, and with reference to the catering standards of similar routes and the catering prices of
similar routes of other airlines. The final meal fees shall not exceed the upper price limit set by the Company.

Pursuant to the Catering Services Framework Agreement, the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB200 million, RMB230 million and RMB265 million, respectively. For detalils, please refer

to the announcement of the Company dated 28 December 2021 in relation to the Catering Services Framework Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the service fee paid by the Group pursuant to the Catering Services Framework
Agreement was RMB128 miillion.
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(3) Trademark Licence Agreement

The Company and CSAH entered into a ten year trademark licence agreement dated 22 September 1997. Pursuant to which
CSAH acknowledges that the Company has the right to use the name “E3J7 % (China Southern)” and “FF Bl 75 2= (China
Southemn Airlines)” in both Chinese and English, and grants the Company a renewable and royalty free licence to use the kapok
logo on a worldwide basis in connection with the Company’s airlines and airlines-related businesses. Unless CSAH gives a
written notice of termination three months before the expiration of the agreement, the agreement will be automatically renewed for
another ten-year term. In May 2017, the trademark licence agreement entered into by the Company and CSAH was automatically
renewed for ten years.

(4) Leases

The Group (as lessee) and CSAH or its associates (as lessor) entered into lease agreements as follows:

A

060

The Company and CSAH entered into an indemnification agreement dated 22 May 1997 in which CSAH had agreed to
indemnify the Company against any loss or damage caused by or arising from any challenge of, or interference with, the
Company’s right to use certain lands and buildings.

tc)

The Company and CSAH entered into the Asset Lease Framework Agreement (the “Asset Lease Framework
Agreement”) on 21 December 2020 to continue (i) the asset lease transactions contemplated under the original Asset
Lease Framework Agreement entered into by the Company and CSAH as at 26 January 2018 for a term of three
years; and (i) the asset lease transactions contemplated under the CSA Building Asset Lease Agreement entered into
by the Company and Guangzhou Southern Airlines Construction Company Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CSAH) as at 19 January 2018 for a lease term commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the Asset Lease Framework Agreement, CSAH agreed to (i) lease certain properties, parking lots and
equipment assets such as machinery equipment, transportation equipment and electronic equipment located in
various cities such as Nanyang, Wuhan, Changsha, Beijing, Urumai, Guangzhou and Zhanjiang held by CSAH or its
subsidiaries to the Company for the purposes of civil aviation and related businesses of the Company; and (i) lease
certain lands located in Nanyang, Wuhan, Guangzhou and Zhanjiang by leasing the land use rights of such lands to
the Company for the purposes of civil aviation and related businesses of the Company.

The annual aggregate amount of rent payable by the Company to CSAH under the Asset Lease Framework
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 is RMB346.2905 million, which
was determined with reference to the Rental Assessment Results. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the rent
incurred by the Group amounted to RMB312 million pursuant to the Asset Lease Framework Agreement.

According to IFRS 16 — Leases, the Group, as the lessee, shall recognise a lease as a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group. As such, the proposed lease transactions
contemplated under the Asset Lease Framework Agreement shall be regarded as an acquisition of asset under the
definition of transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(@) of the Listing Rules. The aggregate value of the right-of-use asset
recognised under the proposed lease transactions contemplated under the Asset Lease Framework Agreement is
RMB934,921,570.17.
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(o)  On 27 December 2023, the Company and CSAH entered into the new asset lease framework agreement (the “New
Asset Lease Framework Agreement’) to renew the transactions contemplated under the existing asset leasing
framework agreement for a term of two years from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2025.

Under the New Asset Lease Framework Agreement, CSAH agreed to: (i) lease to the Company certain properties,
parking lots, and equipment assets such as machinery, transportation equipment, and electronic equipment held by
CSAH or its subsidiaries in cities including Nanyang, Wuhan, Changsha, Urumaji, Guangzhou, Hengyang and Haikou
for the purposes of the Company’s civil aviation and related business activities; and (i) lease to the Company certain
parcels of land located in Nanyang, Wuhan, and Guangzhou by leasing the land use rights of such parcels of land to
the Company for the purposes of the Company’s civil aviation and related business activities.

For each of the two years ending 31 December 2024 and 2025, the total annual rental payable by the Company to
CSAH under the New Asset Lease Framework Agreement is RMB334.9348 miillion, which was determined based on
the results of the rental evaluation.

According to IFRS 16 — Leases, the Group, as the lessee, shall recognise a lease as a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group. As such, the proposed lease transactions
contemplated under the New Asset Lease Framework Agreement shall be regarded as an acquisition of asset under
the definition of transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(@) of the Listing Rules. The aggregate value of the right-of-use
asset recognised under the proposed lease transactions contemplated under the New Asset Lease Framework
Agreement is RMB617,075,500.

On 28 December 2022, the Company entered into a new Property and Land Lease Framework Agreement (the “Property
and Land Lease Framework Agreement”) with CSAH to renew the property and land lease transactions under the
original Property and Land Lease Framework Agreement entered into by the Company and CSAH with a term of three years
on 30 December 2019 for a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. Pursuant to the Property and
Land Lease Framework Agreement, CSAH agreed to (i) lease certain properties, facilities and other infrastructure located
in various cities such as Beijing, Shenyang, Chaoyang, Dalian, Changchun, Harbin, Jilin, Urumqgi and overseas locations
held by CSAH or its subsidiaries to the Company for office use related to the civil aviation business development; and (i)
lease certain lands located in Shenyang, Chaoyang, Dalian, Changchun, Harbin and Urumai by leasing the land use rights
of such lands to the Company for the purposes of civil aviation and related businesses of the Company. The annual rental
is determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties, based on the fair market rental of the relevant properties,
facilities, infrastructure and lands. In addition, CSAH agreed that the annual rental shall not be higher than the prevailing
market rental for properties, facilities, infrastructure and lands located at similar locations. The annual aggregate amount of
rent payable by the Company to CSAH under the Property and Land Lease Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 is RMB105.40 million, which was determined with reference to the Rental
Assessment Results. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the rental incurred by the Group amounted to RMB105 million
pursuant to the Property and Land Lease Framework Agreement.

According to IFRS 16 — Leases, the Group, as the lessee, shall recognise a lease as a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group. As such, the proposed lease transactions
contemplated under the Property and Land Lease Framework Agreement should be regarded as an acquisition of asset
under the definition of transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(@@) of the Listing Rules. The aggregate value of the right-of-use
asset recognised under the proposed lease transactions contemplated under the Property and Land Lease Framework
Agreement is RMB281,086,012.70.
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On 28 October 2022, the Company entered into the 2023-2025 Financing and Leasing Services Framework Agreement
with CSA Leasing, an associate of CSAH, to renew the transactions under the 2020-2022 Financing and Leasing Services
Framework Agreement for a period of three years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

CSA Leasing agreed to continue to provide financial leasing services to the Company for leasing aircraft, leasing aircraft-
related assets and leasing aviation-related equipment, and operating leasing services to the Company for certain aircraft,
helicopters and engines, as the Company deems appropriate and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2023-2025 Financial and Leasing Services Framework
Agreement and the related implementation agreements formulated thereunder.

@)

The subject matter of the financial leasing transactions under the 2023-2025 Financial and Leasing Services
Framework Agreement includes the lease of aircraft, the lease of simulators and the lease of aviation related
equipment (including some of the aircraft, simulators and aviation-related equipment that the Company plans
to introduce from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025, which is subject to adjustment from time to time).
The total principal amount of the finance leasing transaction shall not exceed 100% of the consideration for the
purchase of the subject matter (including aircraft, simulators and aviation-related equipment). The applicable
interest rate will be further determined and negotiated by the Company and CSA Leasing, with reference to the
results of the invitation bidding or inquiry of the Company for financing of aircraft, simulators and aviation-related
equipment, and certain preconditions shall be met. The rent is the repayment of the principal and interest of the
subject matter under the finance lease transaction.

The lease terms of the subject matter under the 2023-2025 Financial and Leasing Services Framework
Agreement will be agreed upon when the separate finance lease agreements are entered into. Based on similar
transactions in the past, the lease terms of the leased aircraft under the different finance lease agreements will
be ten years. According to the practice of the aviation industry, the lease term of the simulator will be ten years.
The respective handling fees for each of the leased aircraft, the leased simulators and the leased aviation related
equipment which is not more than 1% of the principal of each leased aircraft, leased simulators and leased
aircraft related equipment, respectively will be paid by the Company to CSA Leasing before the commencement
of their respective delivery dates or on the agreed dates after each the respective delivery date.

On the assumption that () the maximum aggregate transaction amount (including the principal, interest payable
and handling fee) of the aircraft finance lease transactions shall not exceed 60% of the aggregate amount
(including the principal, interest payable and handling fee) of all the aircraft planned to be introduced under
the Company’s introduction plan from 2023 to 2025; and (i) the maximum aggregate transaction amount of
the finance lease of the simulators and the aviation related equipment shall not exceed total amount of the
simulators and the aviation related equipment to be introduced under the Company’s introduction plan from
2023 to 2025, the proposed total rental amount (including principal and interest) and handling fee under the
finance lease transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are US$4,133.27
million (or the equivalent amount in RMB), US$4,132.98 million (or equivalent amount in RMB) and US$3,628.68
million (or equivalent amount in RMB). Under IFRS 16, the Company (including wholly-owned or controlled
subsidiaries of the Company or its wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries) as lessee under the 2023-2025
Financing and Leasing Services Framework Agreement, whose finance lease transactions will be recognised
as right-of-use assets. For the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025, the proposed finance lease
caps under the 2023-2025 Financing and Leasing Services Framework Agreement are US$3,361 million
(or equivalent amount in RMB), US$3,331 milion (or equivalent amount in RMB) and US$2,896 million (or
equivalent amount in RMB).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total rental amount (including principal and interest) and handling
fee for the finance lease transactions in relation to leasing aircraft and other flight equipment under the 2023-
2025 Financing and Leasing Services Framework Agreement amounted to RMB7,494 million. The right-of-use
assets calculated by discounting the above total rental amount (including principal and interest) and handling fee
were RMB6,561 million.

The subject matter of the operating leasing transactions under the 2023-2025 Financing and Leasing Services
Framework Agreement includes aircraft (including brand new aircraft and middle-aged and old aircraft
disposed of by the Company by way of sale and leaseback), engines and aviation related equipment under the
introduction program borrowed by the Company under operating leases from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2025. The rental rates will be further determined and negotiated between the Company and CSA Leasing,
subject to the results of the Company’s invitation to bid or request for quotations for the leasing of aircraft,
engines and aviation related equipment, and subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions.

During the lease period, CSA Leasing owns the aircraft, engines and aviation-related equipment and the
Company has the right to use the aircraft, engines and aviation-related equipment. Upon the expiration of the
lease term, the Company shall return the aircraft, engines and aviation-related equipment to CSA Leasing.

On the assumption () that the total transaction cap (including principal, interest and handling fee) for aircraft
operating lease transactions will not exceed 50% of the total amount of all aircraft planned to be introduced
under the introduction plan; and (i) the total transaction cap for operating leases of engines and aviation-
related equipment will not exceed the total amount of engines and aviation-related equipment planned to be
introduced under the Company’s introduction plan from 2023 to 2025, the proposed maximum annual rental
expense under operating lease transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025
are US$197 million (or equivalent amount in RMB), US$356 million (or equivalent amount in RMB) and US$486
million (or equivalent amount in RMB), respectively. The total proposed maximum rental under operating lease
transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are US$1,524 milion (or equivalent
amount in RMB), US$1,436 million (or equivalent amount in RMB) and US$1,119 million (or equivalent amount
in RMB), respectively. Pursuant to IFRS 16, the operating lease transactions by the Company as lessee under
the 2023-2025 Finance and Lease Service Framework Agreement will be recognised as right-of-use assets,
the proposed caps for the Operating Lease for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 under the
2023-2025 Finance and Lease Service Framework Agreement are US$1,262 million (or the equivalent amount
in RMB), US$1,174 milion (or the equivalent amount in RMB) and US$916 million (or the equivalent amount in
RMB), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company paid the rental fees (namely actual amount of rental fees
payable to CSA Leasing by the Company each year, including twelve-month rental fees for current aircraft,
helicopters and engines as well as newly added aircraft, helicopters and engines during the year) of RMB574
million in the operating lease transactions under the 2023-2025 Financing and Leasing Services Framework
Agreement. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total rental amount for new aircraft and helicopters
(leased by the Company from CSA Leasing on an annual basis under operating leases for a period of two to
twelve years) and the right-of-use assets calculated by discounting the aforementioned rental amount were
RMB 0 million.
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(6) Share Issuance in 2020

On 27 December 2019, the Company’s 2019 second extraordinary general meeting, the 2019 first class meeting for holders of
A shares, and the 2019 first class meeting for holders of H shares considered and approved the resolution to issue to CSAH not
more than 2,453,434,457 A shares (including 2,453,434,457 A shares) (‘2020 A Share Issuance”) and to enter into the A shares
subscription agreement with CSAH and the resolution to issue not more than 613,358,614 H shares (including 613,358,614 H
shares) to Nan Lung (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH) (“2020 H Share Issuance”) and to enter into the H shares subscription
agreement with Nan Lung. The proceeds from the 2020 A Share Issuance shall be utilised in the procurement of aircraft and the
repayment of the Company’s borrowings, and the proceeds from the 2020 H Share Issuance shall be utilised to supplement the
general working capital of the Company.

On 15 April 2020, the Company issued 608,695,652 H shares in total to Nan Lung at the issue price of HK$5.75 per H share
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 30 October 2019 entered into between Nan Lung and the Company. The net
price of each new H share issued under the 2020 H Share Issuance was HK$5.74 per H share. The gross proceeds and the
net proceeds raised from the 2020 H Share Issuance was HKD3,499,999,999 and RMB3,175,094,454.53 respectively. As at
31 December 2022, all proceeds raised from the 2020 H Share Issuance has been utilised. The use of proceeds utilised was
consistent with the intended use of proceeds as previously disclosed.

On 18 June 2020, the Company issued 2,453,434,457 A Shares in total to CSAH at the issue price of RMB5.21 per A Share
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 30 October 2019 entered into between the Company and CSAH. The net price
of each new A Share issued under the 2020 A Share Issuance was RMB5.21 per A Share. The use of proceeds utilised was
consistent with the intended use of proceeds as previously disclosed.

Gross proceeds and the use of proceeds from 2020 A Shares Issuance are as follows:

Utilised Unutilised
Gross proceeds from Intended use of the proceeds as of proceeds as of Expected timeline
the 2020 A Share proceeds as previously 31 December 2023 31 December 2023 for the use of
Issuance (RMB) disclosed (RMB) (RMB) unutilised proceeds
12,782,393,520.97 Procurement of aircraft 8,070,415,000.31 1,205,670,313.11 On or before
31 December 2024
Repayment of the 3,500,000,000.00 0 N/A

Company’s borrowings

Note: The total amounts of funds raised from 2020 Non-public Issuance of A Shares was RMB12,782,393,520.97. After deducting
the underwriting expenses of RMB2,000,000.00 (including VAT), the net cash subscription amount actually received was
RMB12,780,393,520.97. After deducting other issuance expenses of RMB4,308,207.55 (including VAT) paid by the Company from
the net cash subscription amounts, the actual net proceeds raised was RMB12,776,085,313.42.

(7) A Share Convertible Bonds Issuance

On 14 May 2020, the thirteenth mesting of the eighth session of the Board of the Company considered and approved, among
others, the relevant resolutions on the issuance plan of the convertible corporate bonds in the total amount of not more than
RMB16 billion (including RMB16 billion) which are convertible into new A shares and proposed to be issued by the Company
within the PRC (the “A Share Convertible Bonds”) and the possible subscription for the A Share Convertible Bonds by CSAH.
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On 15 October 2020, the Company has completed the public issuance of 160 milion A Share Convertible Bonds in the total
amount of RMB16 billion with a nominal value of RMB100 each and the initial conversion price of BMB6.24 per share, out of
which CSAH subscribed for 101,027,580 A Share Convertible Bonds. The A Share Convertible Bonds were listed on the SSE on
3 November 2020.

On 21 April 2021, the conversion of the A Share Convertible Bonds was commenced, with the initial conversion price being
RMB6.24 per share and the conversion period being from 21 April 2021 to 14 October 2026. With effect from 28 November
2022, the conversion price was adjusted to RMB6.17 per share.

The use of proceeds utilised was consistent with the intended use of proceeds as previously disclosed.

Gross proceeds and the use of proceeds from the issuance of the A Share Convertible Bonds are as follows:

Gross proceeds Utilised Unutilised

from the A Shares Intended use of the proceeds as of proceeds as of Expected timeline

Convertible Bonds proceeds as previously 31 December 2023 31 December 2023 for the use of

issuance (RMB) disclosed (RMB) (RMB) unutilised proceeds

16,000,000,000.00 Purchasing aircraft and 9,355,821,287.97 1,187,554,120.03 On or before
aviation material, 30 September 2025Me

aviation equipment and
maintenance projects

Introduction of spare 636,228,511.72 0 Not applicable
engines

Supplementing working 4,800,000,000.00 0 Not applicable
capital

Notes: 1. The expected timeline for the use of un-utilised proceeds is determined based on the expected time for the Group’s
purchasing of aviation material and aircraft maintenance as at the date of this report.

2. The total amount of funds raised from 2020 Public Issuance of A Share Convertible Bonds was RMB16,000,000,000.00.
After deducting the underwriting expenses of RMB17,691,726.00 (including VAT), the net cash subscription amount actually
received was RMB15,982,308,274.00. After deducting other issuance expenses of RMB2,704,354.28 (including VAT) paid by
the Company from the net cash subscription amount, the actual net proceeds raised was RMB15,979,603,919.72.

As of 31 December 2023, the A Share Convertible Bonds with a nominal value of RMB5,896,314,000 were outstanding. If
the outstanding A Share Convertible Bonds were fully converted during the reporting period based on the conversion price of
RMB6.17 per share, the Company would have issued approximately 955,642,463 A shares and the total issued shares of the
Company would have increased to approximately 19,076,549,269 shares, while the shares held by the controlling shareholder of
the Company, CSAH, would have decreased to approximately 63.18% of the total issued shares of the Company. The A Share
Convertible Bonds may be conditionally redeemed by the Company during the conversion period. It is expected that the full
redemption of the outstanding A Share Convertible Bonds during the reporting period would not have material adverse impact on
the financial and liquidity position of the Company. Please refer to note 18 and note 27 to the financial statements for the dilution
impact on loss per share may be brought by the full conversion of the outstanding A Share Convertible Bonds during the reporting
period and other details of the A Share Convertible Bonds.
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(8) Proposed Share Issuance

On 31 May 2023, the Board of the Company resolved to put forward to the extraordinary general meeting and class meetings to
approve and authorise the Board of the Company to issue not more than 5,436,269,319 new A Shares (including 5,436,269,319
A Shares) to not more than 35 specific investors (including CSAH) at the A Share subscription price (the “A Share Issuance”), and
as part of the A Share Issuance, to enter into the A Share subscription agreement (the “A Share Subscription Agreement”) with
CSAH, pursuant to which CSAH will subscribe for new A Shares at the A Share subscription price in the amount of not less than
RMB5,000 million and not more than RMB10,000 million. The total funds to be raised from the A Share Issuance will be not more
than RMB17,500 million (including RMB17,500 million), which will be utilised to purchase new aircraft and supplement the general
working capital of the Company. On the same day, the Board of the Company also resolved to put forward to the extraordinary
general meeting to approve the issuance of not more than 855,028,969 new H Shares (including 855,028,969 H Shares) to Nan
Lung (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH) at the H Share subscription price (the “H Share Issuance”, together with the “A Share
Issuance” referred to as the “Proposed Share Issuance”) and to enter into the H Share subscription agreement (the “H Share
Subscription Agreement”) with Nan Lung, and the total funds to be raised from the Issuance will be utilised to supplement the
general working capital of the Company. The total funds to be raised from the H Share Issuance will be not more than HK$2,900
million (including HK$2,900 milion). The aggregate nominal value of the new A Shares and new H Shares to be issued under
the Proposed Share Issuance is not more than RMB6,291,298,288. The net price of each new A Share and new H Share to
be issued under the Proposed Share Issuance will be determined and disclosed upon completion of the A Share Issuance and
the H Share Issuance, respectively, as well as the determination of the relevant expenses incurred or to be incurred in relation to
the Proposed Share Issuance in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The A Share Issuance and the H Share
Issuance are not inter-conditional upon each other. The new A Shares to be issued pursuant to the A Share Issuance will be
allotted and issued under the specific mandate sought from the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
and class meetings. The new H Shares to be issued pursuant to the H Share Issuance will be allotted and issued under the
general mandate, and are subject to independent shareholders’ approval at the extraordinary general meeting.

The other specific investors for the A Share Issuance shall include securities investment and fund management companies,
securities companies, trust companies, financial companies, insurance institutional investors, qualified foreign institutional investors,
and other domestic legal entity investors, natural persons or other qualified investors that satisfy the requirements of CSRC.
Securities investment and fund management company, securities company, qualified foreign institutional investor and Renminbi
qualified foreign institutional investor subscribing for the Shares through more than two products under their management shall be
regarded as one subscriber under the A Share Issuance. Trust companies, as subscribers under the A Share Issuance, are limited
1o use their own funds to subscribe for the Shares.

The A Share subscription price shall be not less than the higher of (i) 80% of the average trading price of the A Shares as quoted
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the 20 trading days immediately prior to the first day of the A Share Issuance period (the “Price
Benchmark Date”), and (i) the latest audited net asset value per Share attributable to equity shareholders of the Company prior
1o the issuance (rounded up to the nearest two decimal places). The average trading price of the A Shares in the 20 trading days
preceding the Price Benchmark Date of new A Shares equals to the total trading amount of A Shares traded in the 20 trading
days preceding the Price Benchmark Date divided by the total volume of A Shares traded in the 20 trading days preceding the
Price Benchmark Date. The closing price of each A Share quoted on the SSE on 31 May 2023 was RMB6.27. Where there are
any ex-right or ex-dividend events, including distribution of dividend, bonus issue, rights issue, and transfer to share capital from
capital reserve, during the period from the balance shest date of the Company’s latest audited financial report to the date of the
A Share Issuance, the abovementioned audited net asset value per Share will be adjusted accordingly. Where there are ex-right
or ex-dividend events including distribution of cash dividend, bonus issue and transfer to share capital from capital reserve during
the period from the Price Benchmark Date to the date of the A Share Issuance, the A Share subscription price shall be adjusted in
view of the ex-right or ex-dividend events. The adjustment methods are set out as follows:

1. When distributing cash dividends only, the adjustment formula will be: P, = P, - D
2. When issuing bonus shares or capitalising capital reserve, the adjustment formula will be: P, = P/(1 + N)

3. When distributing cash dividends, issuing bonus shares or capitalising capital reserve were performed simultaneously, the
adjustment formula will be: P, = (P, = D)/(1 + N)
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where P, represents the adjusted issue price, P, represents the issue price before adjustment, D represents cash dividends per
Share and N represents the number of bonus shares per Share or number of Shares resulting from capitalisation of capital reserve
1o be issued for each Share. Based on the above pricing mechanism, the final A Share subscription price will be determined
by the Board or its authorised person(s) within the authorisation of the extraordinary general meeting upon discussions with the
sponsor (the lead underwriter) based on the subscription quotations in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations and the
requirements of regulatory authorities after the A Share Issuance has been reviewed and approved by the SSE and approved by
the CSRC for registration.

The H Share subscription price shall be the higher of () the average trading price of the H Shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange in the 20 Hong Kong trading days immediately prior to the date of the Board meeting approving the H Share
Issuance (i.e., 31 May 2023, the “Board Meeting Date”), and (i) the latest audited net asset value per Share attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company in HK$ calculated based on the median exchange rate announced by the People’s Bank of China
on the Board Mesting Date (HK$1=RMB0.90372) (rounded up to the nearest two decimal places) prior to the H Share Issuance.
The average trading price of the H Shares in the 20 Hong Kong trading days preceding the Board Meeting Date equals to the
total trading amount of H Shares traded in the 20 Hong Kong trading days preceding the Board Meeting Date divided by the total
volume of H Shares traded in the 20 Hong Kong trading days preceding the Board Meeting Date. Where there are any ex-right or
ex-dividend events, including distribution of dividend, bonus issue, rights issue, and transfer to share capital from capital reserve,
during the period from the balance sheet date of the Company’s latest audited financial report to the date of issuance of such
new H Shares, the abovementioned audited net asset value per Share attributable to equity shareholders of the Company will be
adjusted accordingly. The average trading price of the H Shares in the 20 Hong Kong trading days preceding the Board Meeting
Date is HK$4.98 per Share. Where there are ex-right or ex-dividend events including distribution of dividend, bonus issue, rights
issue, and transfer to share capital from capital reserve during the period from the Board Meeting Date to the date of issue of
the new H Shares, the H Share subscription price shall be adjusted in view of the ex-right or ex-dividend events. The adjustment
methods are set out as follows:

1. When distributing cash dividends only, the adjustment formula will be: P, = P, - D
2. When issuing bonus shares or capitalising capital reserve, the adjustment formula will be: P, = P/(1 + N)
3. When conducting rights issue, the adjustment formula will be: P, = (P, +A x K)/(1 + K)

4. When distributing cash dividends, issuing bonus shares or capitalising capital reserve, and conducting rights issue were
performed simultaneously, the adjustment formula will be: P, = (P, =D +A x K)/(1 + K+ N)

where P, represents the issue price before adjustment, P, represents the adjusted issue price, D represents cash dividends per
Share, N represents the number of bonus shares per Share or number of Shares resulting from capitalisation of capital reserve
1o be issued for each Share, K represents the number of rights shares to be issued for each Share, and A represents the
subscription price of the rights shares.

In addition, pursuant to Rule 13.36(5) of the Listing Rules, the H Share subscription price shall not represent a discount of 20%
or more to the higher of (i) the closing price of the H Shares on the date of the H Share Issuance being approved by the Board
(i.e. 31 May 2023), and (i) the average closing price of the H Shares in the five trading days immediately prior to the date of such
Board’s approval. Accordingly, the H Share subscription price in any event shall be higher than HK$3.744, which represents a
discount of 20% of the higher of:

(@ the closing price of HK$4.51 per H Share quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the H Share Subscription
Agreement; and

(o)  the average closing price of HK$4.68 per H Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
prior to the date of the H Share Subscription Agreement.
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The proceeds from the Proposed Share Insurance, after deduction of expenses for issuance, will be used to purchase new
aircraft and supplement the general working capital, which will be able to expand the scale of the Company’s fleet, optimise
the age structure of the aircraft, enhance the level of aviation capacity, and lay the foundation for increasing the frequency
density of existing flight routes and opening new flight routes, as well as to enhance the capital strength and asset volume of
the Company and alleviate the pressure brought by the capital demand from the daily operation of the Company. At the same
time, the availability of the raised funds will help consolidate the Company’s foundation of business development, strengthen the
Company’s core competitiveness and profitability, promote the sustained and rapid growth of the Company’s principal business,
provide capital guarantee for the Company’s further expansion and growth, which has important strategic significance for the
realisation of the Company’s long-term sustainable development. As CSAH and Nan Lung are wiling to inject further funding to
the Company, the Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company to raise capital directly from CSAH and Nan Lung
by way of issuance to specific investors.

The A Shares Subscription Agreement shall take effect after the satisfaction of the following conditions:

—

(

) the approval of the Board, the approval at the extraordinary general meeting and Shareholders class meetings of the A
Share Issuance under the A Shares Subscription Agreement have been obtained;

(2)  the approval by the board of directors of CSAH or the regulatory authority stipulated in the articles of association of CSAH of
the subscription of the new A Shares under the A Shares Subscription Agreement by CSAH has been obtained;

(8)  all necessary licences, authorisations, permits, consents and other forms of approvals from the relevant approval authorities,
including but not limited to the competent authorities performing the duties of supervision and administration of state-owned
assets, for the A Share Issuance contemplated under the A Shares Subscription Agreement have been obtained; and

(4)  the A Share Issuance has been approved by the Shanghai Stock Exchange and approved by the CSRC for registration.
The H Shares Subscription Agreement shall take effect after the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(1) the approval of the Board and the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
H Share Issuance under the H Share Subscription Agreement have been obtained;

(2)  the approvals by the respective boards of directors of Nan Lung and CSAH of the subscription of new H Shares under the
H Share Subscription Agreement by Nan Lung have been obtained;

(8)  all necessary licences, authorisations, permits, approval, fiing and other related pre-approval or registration processes from
the relevant approval authorities, including but not limited to the competent authorities performing the duties of supervision
and administration of state-owned assets, CSRC and the Stock Exchange, for the H Share Issuance contemplated under
the H Shares Subscription Agreement have been obtained; and

(4) the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting approval for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the new H
Shares.

On 3 August 2023, the aforesaid A Share Issuance and H Share Issuance were considered and approved at the Company’s
2023 second extraordinary general meeting, the 2023 first class meeting for holders of A shares, and the 2023 first class meeting
for holders of H shares. As at the date of this report, no A Shares or H Shares have been issued pursuant to the Proposed Share
Issuance. For details of the Proposed Share Issuance, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2023
and the circular of the Company dated 19 June 2023.
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Annual Confirmations

The Company has confirmed that the execution and enforcement of the implementation agreements under the continuing
connected transactions above for the year ended 31 December 2023 has followed the pricing principles of such continuing
connected transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have confirmed to the Board that they have reviewed all non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are of the view that:

(@  those transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  those transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) those transactions were conducted in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their
unmodified letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company’s auditor has indicated
that:

(@ nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s board of directors.

(b)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group.

(c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

(d)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap as set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other related party transactions as disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements prepared
under IFRS Accounting Standards constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required to
be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A
of Listing Rules in respect of the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions.

Donations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made donations for charitable purposes with an amount of RMB2.3 million.
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Designated Deposits and Overdue Time Deposits

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s deposits placed with financial institutions or other parties did not include any designated
deposits, or overdue time deposits for which the Group failed to receive repayments.

Material Litigation

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was not involved in any material litigation.

Subsequent Events

From the end of the reporting period to the issue date of this report, there are no subsequent events that have significant impact
on the Group.

Auditors

A resolution is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company for the appointment of KPMG Huazhen
LLP to provide professional services to the Company for its domestic financial reporting and internal control reporting, U.S.
financial reporting and internal control reporting for the year 2024 and the appointment of KPMG to provide professional services
to the Company for its Hong Kong financial reporting for the year 2024. There has been no change in the Company’s auditors in
the past three years.

By order of the Board
Ma Xu Lun
Chairman

Guangzhou, the PRC
27 March 2024

070  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us

Operating
Results

Corporate
Governance

Financial
Report

CHANGES IN THE SHARE CAPITAL, SHAREHOLDERS'
PROFILE AND DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

(I) Changes in Shareholdings

1. Changes in Shareholdings

Unit: Share

31 December 2022

Increase/decrease during
the year 2023(+,)

31 December 2023

Percentage Percentage
Number (%) Number Subtotal Number (%)
l. Shares subject to 3,257,005,885 17.97 -2,453,434,457 -2,453,434,457 803,671,428 4.43
restrictions on sales
1. Shares held by state- 3,257,005,885 17.97 -2,453,434,457 -2,453,434,457 803,571,428 4.43
owned legal persons
Il Shares not subject to 14,863,886,825 82.03 2,453,448,553 2,453,448,553 17,317,335,378 95.57
restrictions on sales
1. RMB ordinary shares 10,219,889,517 56.40 2,453,448,553 2,453,448,553 12,673,338,070 69.94
2. Overseas listed foreign 4,643,997,308 25.63 0 0 4,643,997,308 25.63
shares
ll.  Total number of shares 18,120,892,710 100.00 14,096 14,096 18,120,906,806 100.00

2. Description of Change in Shares

The Company publicly issued RMB16 billion Convertible Bonds with the bond abbreviation of “Nanhang Convertible Bonds (F it
(&) on 15 October 2020. During the reporting period, the total number of shares being converted by the holders of “Nanhang
Convertible Bonds (Fai#g(&)” was 14,096 shares.

During the reporting period, the 2,453,434,457 A shares issued by the Company to CSAH in a non-public issuance on 17 June

2020 were released due to the expiration of the lock-up period.

3. Other Information Considered to be Disclosable by the Company or Required to
be Disclosed by the Securities Regulatory Authorities

Nil.
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(Il) Changes in Shares Subject to Trading Restrictions

Unit: Share
Increase in
Number of number of
shares subject shares subject Number of
to lock-up at the Number of tolock-up  shares subject
beginning of the  shares unlocked during the to lock-up at the
Name of shareholders (in full) year  during the year year end of theyear  Reasons for lock-up Date of unlocking
China Southem Air Holding 2,453,434,457  2,453,434,457 0 0 Non-public Issuance of 19 June 2023
Company Limited shares subject to trading
restrictions
China Southem Air Holding 803,571,428 0 0 803,671,428  Non-public Issuance of 24 November 2025
Company Limited shares subject to trading
restrictions
Total 3,257,006,885 2,453,434 457 0 803,571,428 / /
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Il. Particulars of Shareholders and De Facto Controller

() Total Number of Shareholders

As at the end of the reporting period, total number of ordinary shareholders of the Company was 168,806. As of 29 February
2024, total number of ordinary shareholders of the Company was 161,769.

() Particulars of Shareholdings

1. Particulars of the top ten shareholders

Unit: Share
Particulars of the top ten shareholders
Status of pledged, marked
or frozen shares
Increase/  Total number Number of
(decrease) during  of shares held Shareholding ~ shares subject
the reporting attheendof  percentage totrading  Status of Capacity of
Name of the shareholders (in full) period  reporting period (%) restrictions shares  Number  shareholders
China Southem Air Holding Company Limited 0 9404468936 51.90 803,571,428 N 0 Stated-owned legal entity
Nan Lung Holding Limited 0 2612124036 14.41 0 Ni 0 Stated-owned legal entity
HKSCC Nominegs Limited 561,890 1,750923,727 9.66 0 Unknown - Overseas legal entty
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 18,724,218 616,953,529 340 0 Ni 0 Overseas legal entity
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 0 320,484,148 177 0 I\ 0 Stated-owned legal entity
American Airiines, Inc. 0 270,606,272 1.49 0 Nil 0 Overseas legal entity
China National Aviation Fuel Group Corporation (176,000) 261,685,354 144 0 Ni 0 Stated-owned legal entity
Spring Airlines Co., Ltd. (115,200 140,296,361 0.77 0 I\ 0 Domestic non-stated-owned
legal entity

China Structural Reform Fund Co., Ltd. (107,039,558) 72,077 475 040 0 I\ 0 Stated-owned legal entity
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. - Guangfa Ruiyi Leading 945,300 70,644,579 0.39 0 Nil 0 Domestic non-stated-owned

Hybrid Securities Investment Fund legal entity
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2. Particulars of the top ten shareholders not subject to trading restrictions

Unit: Share
Particulars of the top ten shareholders not subject to trading restrictions
Number of Type and number of shares
tradable shares
not subject to
Name of the shareholders trading restrictions  Type of shares Number
China Southern Air Holding Company Limited 8,600,897,508 RMB ordinary shares 8,600,897,508
Nan Lung Holding Limited 2,612,124,086  Overseas listed foreign 2,612,124,036
shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,750,923,727  Overseas listed foreign 1,750,923,727
shares
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 616,953,529 RMB ordinary shares 616,953,529
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 320,484,148 RMB ordinary shares 320,484,148
American Airlines, Inc. 270,606,272  Overseas listed foreign 270,606,272
shares
China National Aviation Fuel Group Corporation 261,685,354 RMB ordinary shares 261,685,354
Spring Airlines Co., Ltd. 140,296,361 RMB ordinary shares 140,296,361
China Structural Reform Fund Co., Ltd. 72,077,475 RMB ordinary shares 72,077,475
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. — Guangfa Rulyi Leading 70,644,579 RMB ordinary shares 70,644,579

Hybrid Securities Investment Fund

Description of special repurchase account N/A
among the top ten shareholders
Description of the voting rights entrusted by the above N/A
shareholders, the voting rights the above shareholders
are entrusted with, the voting rights the above
shareholders abstained from
Explanation of the related party relationship or concert CSAH held aggregate 2,648,836,036 H shares of the Company
party relationship of the above shareholders through its wholly-owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong, namely Nan
Lung and Perfect Lines (Hong Kong) Limited. The Company is
not aware of any other related party relationship between other
shareholders.
Description of holders of preference shares with voting N/A
rights restored and the number of shares held
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3. Particulars of the top ten shareholders subject to trading restrictions and the

conditions of trading restrictions
Unit: Share

Number of  Listing status of shares which are subject to trading restrictions

shares held
subject to trading Number of new Conditions for
No. Name of the shareholders restrictions  Eligible listing time listed shares  trading restrictions
1 China Southern Air Holding 803,571,428 24 November 2025 803,571,428  Non-public Issuance of
Company Limited shares subject to trading

restrictions

Explanation of the related party relationship  CSAH held aggregate 2,648,836,036 H shares of the Company through its wholly-owned
or concert party relationship of the above subsidiaries in Hong Kong, namely Nan Lung and Perfect Lines (Hong Kong) Limited.
shareholders

4, Strategic investors or general legal entities becoming one of the top ten
shareholders of the Company as a result of placing of new shares

Nil.
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Ill. The Controlling Shareholders or De Facto Controllers

The chart below indicates the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and de facto controllers:

State-owned
Assets

Shenzhen

o Guangdong . Penghang
Supervision and Hengjian Ggi:g:::lﬂig:y Equity Investment
Administration Investment Fund Partnership

Commission Investment Group

Holding Co., Ltd. (Limited

of the State Partnership)

Council

® ®
68.665% 710.445% 710.445% 710.445%

China Southern Air Holding Company Limited
51.90%
Nan Lung Holding Limited

. 14.45% . 100%

China Southern Airlines Company Limited
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IV. Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, chief executive and Supervisors of the Company, the following
persons (other than the Directors, chief executive or Supervisors of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares (the
“Shares”) or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
Approximate  Approximate % of the total
% of the total % of the total  issued share

issued A issued H capital of the

Types of Number of Shares Shares Company

Name of shareholders Capacity Shares Shares held (Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 5)

CSAH Beneficial owner A Shares 14,840,738,255 (L) 110.12% - 81.90%
(note 1)

Interest of controlled H Shares 3,503,865,005 (L) - 75.45% 19.34%
corporations (note 2)

Subtotal 18,344,608,260 (L) - - 101.23%

Nan Lung Beneficial owner and interest  H Shares 3,503,865,005 (L) - 75.45% 19.34%
of controlled corporations (note 3)

American Airlines Group Inc. Interest of controlled H Shares 270,606,272 (L) - 5.83% 1.49%

(note 4) corporations
Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2023, CSAH was directly interested in 14,840,738,255 A Shares of the Company, which included 5,436,269,319
A Shares subscribed under the A Shares Subscription Agreement. As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, those
A Shares have not been issued.

2. As at 31 December 2023, CSAH was indirectly interested in 3,503,865,005 H Shares of the Company through its controlled
corporations Nan Lung and Perfect Lines (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Lung, which included 855,028,969
H Shares subscribed under the H Shares Subscription Agreement by Nan Lung. As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, those H Shares have not been issued.

3. As at 31 December 2023, Nan Lung was interested in 3,503,865,005 H Shares of the Company, which included the indirect interests
in the 31,150,000 H Shares held through Perfect Lines (Hong Kong) Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary, and the direct interests
in the 3,472,715,005 H Shares (which included not more than 855,028,969 H Shares subscribed under the H Shares Subscription
Agreement). As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report, those H Shares have not been issued.

4. American Airlines Group Inc. was deemed to be interested in 270,606,272 H Shares by virtue of its 100% control over American
Airlines.

5. The percentage was calculated according to the relevant total issued A Shares of 13,476,909,498 A Shares, total issued H Shares of
4,643,997,308 H Shares and the total issued Shares of 18,120,906,806 Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors, chief executive and Supervisors of the
Company, no other person (other than the Directors, chief executive or Supervisors of the Company) had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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I. Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management

(I) Changes in the Number of Shares held by Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management and their Remuneration

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company were as follows:

The total
remuneration
before tax
Number received from Had
ofshares ~ Number Increase or  the Company received
Appointment heldas  ofshares  decrease during the  remuneration
date Expiry date atthe heldasat  of shares reporting  from related
for the term for the term beginning  the end of during period  party of the
Name Position (note) Gender Age of office of office oftheyear  the year theyear ~ (RMBO'000)  Company
Ma Xu Lun Chaiman Mde 59 21 December 2020 up to date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Executive Director 8 May 2019 Up to date
Han Wen Sheng Executive Director Mde 57 8May2019 up fo date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Vice Chaiman 22 Jung 2021 up to date
President 22 June 2021 Up to date
Luo Lai Jun Executive Director Mae 52 28 December 2022 Up to date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Pansy Catiina Chiu King Ho - Independent Director Femde 61 3August2023 Up to date 0 0 0 833 No
Gu Hui Zhong Independent Director Mae 67 20 December 2017 Up to date 0 0 0 20 No
Guo Wei Independent Director Mae 61 30 Apr 2021 Up to date 0 0 0 20 No
(aiHong Ping Independent Director Mae 69 28 December 2022 Up to date 0 0 0 20 No
*LiuChang Le Independent Director Made 72 30Apri 2021 13 July 2023 0 0 0 1.67 No
Ren Ji Dong Chaiman of Supenisory ~ Male 59 28 December 2021 Up to date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Commitiee
Supenvisor 28 December 2021 up to date
Lin Xiao Chun Supenisor Mle 52 8May2019 up to date 0 0 0 49.95 Yes
Yang Bin Supervisor Mae 85 24 November 2021 up o date 0 0 0 10093 No
“Zhang Zheng Rong Executive Vice President ~—~ Male 61 10 August 2018 28 February 2023 0 0 0 0 Yes
W Ying Xiang Executive Vice President ~ Female 50 29June 2020 up o date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Yao Yong Executive Vice President~— Male 54 20 Aprl 2021 up o date 0 0 0 0 Yes
Chief Accountant
Chief Financial Officer
Gao Fei Executive Vice President ~ Male 47 28 February 2023 Uptodate 0 0 0 0 Yes
QuGuang Ji Executive Vice President ~~ Male 54 29 August 2023 Uptodate 0 0 0 0 Yes
Wu Rong Xin Executive Vice President ~ Male 52 30 August 2022 Uptodate 0 0 0 0 Yes
Chen Wei Hua Chief Legal Adviser Mde 57 16June 2004 Uptodate 0 0 0 9.30 Yes
Secretary to the Board 22 September 2022 Up o date
Li Sheo Bin Chief Training Officer Mde 59 21June 2019 up o date 0 0 0 113,04 No
Xie Bing Chief Economist Mae 50 22 September 2022 uptodate 0 0 0 0 No
*Feng Hua Nan COO Fight Safety Mde 61 15August2014 28 February 2023 0 0 0 0 No
Wang Ren Jie Chief Plot Mele 59 28 February 2023 upto date 0 0 0 21178 No
*Znu Hai Long Chief Operation Officer Male 60 30 December 2020 27 December 2023 0 0 0 208.36 No
Li Mian Song Chief Senvice Officer Mele 85 26June2023 upto date 0 0 0 7460 No
Li Zni Gang Chief Engineer Male 85  30August2022 Up to date 0 0 0 11314 No
LiYe COO Fight Safety Mae 51 28February 2023 Upto date 0 0 0 19657 No
Total / / / / / 0 0 0 1,167.62 /
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Notes:

1. According to performance appraisal plans of the Company, partial remuneration of some Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company shall be delayed based on evaluation results, total remuneration set out above includes such delayed
remuneration;

2. Mr. Wang Ren Jie, Mr. Zhu Hai Long and Mr. Li Ye serve as pilots, so their remunerations are inclusive of crew allowance;

3. Ms. Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho’s remuneration has been paid as an independent director of the Company since August 2023, and
Mr. Liu Chang Le ceased to be an independent director of the Company since July 2023;

4. Mr. Gao Fei’s remuneration has been paid by CSAH since March 2023, Mr. Qu Guang Ji’s remuneration has been paid by CSAH
since September 2023, Mr. Chen Wei Hua’s remuneration has been paid by CSAH since February 2023, Mr. Xie Bing’s remuneration
has been paid by Xiamen Airlines since September 2022, Mr. Wang Ren Jie’s remuneration has been paid as chief pilot of the
Company since March 2023, Mr. Li Mian Song’s remuneration has been paid as the Chief Service Officer of the Company since June
2023, Mr. Li Ye's remuneration has been paid as COO Flight Safety since March 2023, and Mr. Lin Xiao Chun’s remuneration has
been paid by CSAH since July 2023;

5. Mr. Zhang Zheng Rong retired in February 2023, Mr. Feng Hua Nan retired in February 2023, and Mr. Zhu Hai Long retired in
December 2023;

6. *represents personnel who have already resigned as of the date of this report.

As of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Chief Executive or Supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
SFO (including interests or short positions which are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were

required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

(Il) Changes of Information of Directors or Supervisors and Chief Executive
Officer under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Below is other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
Luo Lai Jun ceased to act as Vice Chairman of the seventh Council of China Communications and Transportation Association.
Luo Lai Jun ceased to act as Vice President of the fifth Council of China Air Transport Association.

Luo Lai Jun ceased to act as a non-executive director of TravelSky Technology Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 0696).

Ren Ji Dong was appointed as a member of the 14th session of Guangdong Federation of Trade Unions.

Save as disclosed above, to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Company after making all reasonable
enquiries, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2023 079



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND EMPLOYEES

(Ill) Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company received remuneration annually. Remuneration of Directors
and Supervisors are adjusted and paid pursuant to Administrative Measures on Remuneration of Directors of China Southermn
Airlines Company Limited and Administrative Measures on Remuneration of Supervisors of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited approved at the general meeting. Remuneration of Senior Management are adjusted and paid pursuant to Administrative
Measures on Remuneration of Senior Management of China Southern Airlines Company Limited after approval of the Board.

During the reporting period, the total remuneration before tax received from the Company by Directors, Supervisors and senior
management amounted to RMB11.5762 million (2022: RMB12.0902 million).

The emolument policy of the Directors and senior management of the Company are recommended by the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee to the Board, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics in accordance with the Administrative Measures on Remuneration of Directors and Administrative Measures on
Remuneration of Senior Management of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company are set out in notes 50 and 58
to the financial statements prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards.

Details of other employees’ pension scheme and housing benefits are set out in notes 13 and 51 to the financial statements
prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards.

Remuneration Band Number of Senior Management

HK$ 2023 2022
0-500,000 9 9
500,001-1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001-1,500,000 2 3
1,500,001-2,000,000 0 0
2,000,001-2,500,000 3 3
Total 15 16

(IV) Service Contracts of the Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company or its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or Supervisors has any material interests in any significant
contract to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party.
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(V) Profiles of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors

Ma Xu Lun, male, born in July 1964 (aged 59), graduated from the School of Mechanical Science & Engineering of Huazhong
University of Science & Technology, majoring in industrial engineering. He has a master’'s degree of engineering and is a certified
public accountant and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He started his career in August 1984. He has been the
Vice President of China National Materials Storage and Transportation Corporation, the Deputy Director General of the Finance
Department of the CAAC, the Vice President and a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of Air China Corporation
Limited. He was appointed as the Vice President of general affairs and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Air China
Corporation Limited in October 2002; and served as a director, the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of
Air China Limited in September 2004. He served as a member of the Party Leadership Group of China National Aviation Holding
Company from December 2004, and the Vice President and a member of the Party Leadership Group of China National Aviation
Holding Company from February 2007. In December 2008, he was appointed as Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group
of China Eastern Air Holding Company and the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited. He served as the Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of and the Vice President of China Eastern
Air Holding Company and the President of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited in October 2011. In November 2016, he
served as a Director, the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China Eastern Air Holding Company,
and the Vice Chairman, the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited
in December 2016. In January 2019, he served as a Director and Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China
Southemn Air Holding Company Limited. In February 2019, he served as the President of China Southern Air Holding Company
Limited. In March 2019, he acted as the President of China Southemn Airlines Company Limited. In May 2019, he acted as the
Vice Chairman of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. Since December 2020, he has served as the Chairman and Secretary
of the Party Leadership Group of China Southemn Air Holding Company Limited and Chairman and President of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited. In June 2021, he was appointed as the Chairman and Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of
China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and the Chairman of of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. Currently, he
also acts as the vice chairman of China Chamber of International Commerce, member of China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade and director of the board of International Air Transport Association.

Han Wen Sheng, male, born in January 1967 (aged 57), graduated from the Management Department of Tianjin University,
majoring in engineering management, with qualification of a master's degree, a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He
obtained a master’s degree of Engineering and is an economist. He began his career in August 1987. He served as the Deputy
Director General of Cadre Training centre of China Southern Airlines Company Limited, the Director of the Research Bureau of the
Company, the General Manager of the Labour Department and the Secretary of the CPC General Committee of the Company, the
Deputy Director General and a member of Party Committee of the Commercial Steering Committee, the General Manager as well
as Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of the Sales and Marketing Department of the Company, and the General Manager
and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Shanghai base. He acted as Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee and the
Deputy Director General of the Commercial Steering Committee of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since December
2009 and the Secretary of the Party Committee and the Deputy Director General of the Commercial Steering Committee of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited since October 2011. He served as the Vice President and a member of the Party Leadership
Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited from October 2016. From November 2017, he served as the Vice
President and a member of the Party Committee of China Southemn Airlines Company Limited. He was appointed as a Director
and Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and the Vice President of
China Southemn Airlines Company Limited in November 2018. From December 2018, he served as Deputy Secretary of the Party
Committee of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. Since January 2019, he has served as a Director and Deputy Secretary
of the Party Leadership Group of China Southermn Air Holding Company Limited. Since May 2019, he has served as a Director
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. Since June 2021, he has served as the President and Vice Chairman of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited. Since July 2021, he has served as the President of China Southern Air Holding Company
Limited. Currently, he also acts as the deputy to the 14th National People’s Congress.
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Luo Lai Jun, male, born in October 1971 (aged 52), graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, majoring
in Accounting and also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School
of Economics and Management and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in July 1993. He served
as the Manager of Finance Department in Shanghai Branch of China Southern Airlines Company Limited, Deputy Director of the
Purchasing Office in Finance Department of the Company, and Deputy Manager and Manager of Finance Department of Guizhou
Airlines Company Limited. He has acted as a member of the Party Committee, Chief Financial Officer and manager of Finance
Department of Guizhou Airlines Company Limited in June 20083; Director of Business Assessment Office of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited in June 2005; Deputy Director of Commercial Steering Committee and General Manager and a member of the
Party Committee of Financing Plan Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in November 2005; General Manager
and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Freight Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in February
2009; the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Dalian Branch of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited in July 2012; Executive Deputy Director General and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Commercial Steering
Committee of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in November 2016; Director General and the Deputy Secretary of the
Party Committee of Commercial Steering Committee of China Southern Airines Company Limited in August 2017; Executive
Vice President and a member of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and Executive Vice
President of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in March 2019; Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China
Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and Executive Vice President of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in September
2022; Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in November 2022; and a
Director and Deputy Secretary of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and the Executive
Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since December 2022. Currently, he also serves as the President of the Party
School of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and the standing committee member of the 13th session of Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho, female, born in August 1962 (aged 61), graduated from the Santa Clara University in California, the
United States with a Bachelor’s degree in Marketing and International Business Management. Ms. Ho served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited. Ms. Ho is a standing committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and the Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. Currently, Ms. Ho
serves as the Chairman and Executive Director of MGM China Holdings Limited; the Executive Chairman and Managing Director
of Shun Tak Holdings Limited; the Chairman of Occasions Asia Pacific Holdings Company Limited; the Chairman of Macau Tower
Convention & Entertainment Centre; the Non-Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the board of Phoenix Media Investment
(Holdings) Limited; a Director of Artyzen Hospitality Group Limited; and an Executive Director of Air Macau Company Limited and
etc. Ms. Ho was bestowed the Commander Medal of Solidarity Star by the Government of Italy in 2006; the Legion of Honour
Medal by the Government of France in 2018; the Medal of Merit-Tourism by the Government of Macau in 2019; and the Grand
Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2020. Ms. Ho is the Bearer of Red Flag
March 8 and was awarded the Bearer of Red Flag March 8 Medal by Beijing Government. Ms. Ho was bestowed the Legion of
Honour Officer Medal by the Government of France in 2022. Ms. Ho has been serving as an Independent Non-executive Director
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since August 2023.
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Gu Hui Zhong, male, born in November 1956 (aged 67), graduated from Zhengzhou University of Aeronautics and holds a
Master’s degree. He graduated with a Master’s degree from Beihang University majoring in International Finance and is a senior
accountant at a professor level. Mr. Gu is a member of the Chinese Communist Party and began his career in 1974. He served as
the Deputy Chief and Chief of the General Office of Financial Division of Aviation Industry Department, the Director of International
Affairs Financial Division of Aviation Industry Corporation of China, the General Manager of Zhongzhen Accounting Consultative
Corporation, the Vice Director-General of Financial Department of Aviation Industry Corporation of China and the Deputy Director-
General of Financial Department of State Commission of Science, Technology and Industry for National Defence. From June
1999 to February 2005, he acted as a member of the Party Leadership Group and the Vice President of NO.1 Aviation Industry
Corporation of China. From February 2005 to August 2008, he acted as a member of the Party Leadership Group, the Vice
President and the Chief Accountant of No.1 Aviation Industry Corporation of China. From August 2008 to January 2017, he acted
as a member of Party Leadership Group, the Vice President and the Chief Accountant of Aviation Industry Corporation of China.
He acted as the Chairman of AVIC | International Leasing Co., Ltd. and the Chairman of AVIC | Financial Co., Ltd., the Chairman
of CATIC International Holdings Limited, the Chairman of AVIC Capital Co., Ltd. and the Chairman of AVIC International Vanke
Company Limited. Currently, he is serving as an external director of Ansteel Group. He has been serving as an Independent Non-
executive Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since December 2017.

Guo Wei, male, born in February 1963 (aged 61), holds a Master’s degree. He graduated from the University of Science and
Technology of China. Mr. Guo is a senior engineer and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in
1988. Mr. Guo served as Executive Director and the Senior Vice President of the Lenovo Group. Currently, he is the Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of Digital China Holdings Limited, the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Digital China Group Co., Ltd and the Chairman of Digital China Information Service Co., Ltd. In
addition, Mr. Guo also served in a number of positions, such as a member of the Eleventh and Twelfth National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of the Fourth Committee of the Advisory Committee for
State Informatisation, the first President of China Strategic Aliance of Smart City Industrial and Technology Innovation, the Vice
President of Digital China Industry Alliance and the Vice President of the Society of Management Science of China. Mr. Guo was
an Independent Non-executive Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from June 2015 to December 2017. He has
been serving as an Independent Non-executive Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since April 2021.

Cai Hong Ping, male, born in December 1954 (aged 69), graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor’'s degree in
journalism. He served as the Office Director of Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited, an office member of the
Steering Group for Overseas Listing of Chinese Enterprises under the State Commission for Restructuring the Economic System
of the State Council and Chairman of the Joint Meeting of Secretaries of the Boards of Directors of Chinese H-share Companies,
Managing Director of Peregrine Investment Bank (B & £)#% & #217), the Chairman of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited
(China), Chairman of SBC (Asia), and Chairman of Deutsche Bank (Asia). He is currently the Chairman of Asia-Germany Industrial
Promotion Capital (Z{EEZ{E#E ), and the independent Director of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited, Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank Co., LTD., and BYD Company Limited, as well as a supervisor of China Merchants Bank Company
Limited. Mr. Cai served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since 28
December 2022.
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Supervisors

Ren Ji Dong, male, born in January 1965 (aged 59), Bachelor of Engineering, graduated from Power Engineering Department of
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics with a bachelor’'s degree, majoring in Aircraft Engine Design and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management,
and he is a senior engineer and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. Mr. Ren began his career in August 1986. He
served as the Deputy Director (deputy general manager) and a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of Urumqi Civil
Aviation Administration (Xinjiang Airlines) and the Deputy General Manager and a member of the Party Committee of the CPC of
Xinjiang Airlines. He acted as the Secretary of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of CSAH Xinjiang Company
from June 2004, the Secretary of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of Xinjiang Branch of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited from January 2005, a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited from February 2005, Deputy General Manager and a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited from March 2005, a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited and the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Xinjiang Branch from January 2007,
a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from April 2009, Deputy General
Manager and a member of the Standing Committee of the CPC of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from May 2009, the
Executive Vice President of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from July 2018, and the Chairman of the Labour Union of
China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and China Southern Airlines Company Limited since August 2021; He served as
the employees’ representative director of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited since November 2021 and Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since December 2021. Currently, he also acts as Vice
Director General of Guangdong Lingnan Fund (34 &R E$€) and a member of Guangdong Federation of Trade Union.

Lin Xiao Chun, male, born in May 1971 (aged 52), graduated from the Peking University Law School with a Bachelor's degree
of laws, majoring in international law. He obtained his Master of Business Administration from the Beijing University of Technology
and the City University of the United States and his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from Tsinghua University
School of Economics and Management, He obtained qualifications as an Enterprise Legal Adviser and a corporate lawyer, and
is @ member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in July 1995. He served as the Deputy Director of the legal
department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in October 2006, the Deputy General Manager of the legal department of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited in January 2009, the Deputy Director of the legal department of CSAH and the Deputy
General Manager of the legal department of China Southermn Airlines Company Limited in December 2009, the Director of the legal
department of CSAH in May 2013, and the General Manager of the Laws & Standards Division of China Southern Air Holding
Company Limited and the General Manager of the Laws & Standards Division of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in April
2017. He has served the head of the special inspection group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited since April 2023
and a Supervisor of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since May 2019.

Yang Bin, male, born in September 1968 (aged 55), Master of Business Administration. He is a qualified senior accountant and
a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in November 1991. He had been the Deputy General Manager
and the General Manager of the Finance Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited, the General Manager of the
Finance Department in China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, the General Manager of Hunan Branch of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited. He served as the General Manager of Audit Department in China Southern Air Holding Company
Limited and China Southern Airlines Company Limited from August 2021. He served as a Supervisor of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited since November 2021. Currently he also serves as a Supervisor of Xiamen Airlines Company Limited, the
Deputy Director of the Financial Audit Committee of China Air Transport Association, a member of China Association of Interal
Audit, and the Vice Chairman of Guangzhou Internal Audit Association.
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Senior management

Wu Ying Xiang, female, born in November 1973 (aged 50), graduated from Business Administration Department of Central
South University of Technology ({7 T % AX£2) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in International Accounting and
obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management, and she is a qualified senior accountant, a certified public accountant, a Chartered Global Management Accountant
and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. Ms. Wu began her career in July 1994. She served as Assistant Director of
Finance Department of China Southern Airlines (Group) Company in March 2001; Vice Director of Finance Department of CSAH in
September 2005; Director of Finance Department of CSAH in September 2012; the head of Performance Appraisal Management
Department of CSAH in February 2017; the General Manager of Comprehensive Performance Appraisal Department of CSAH
and China Southern Airlines Company Limited in April 2017; the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee
of Shantou Airlines Company Limited in September 2018; Secretary of the Party Committee and Deputy Director General of
the Marketing Management Committee of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in October 2019; a member of the Party
Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited since May 2020; the Executive Vice President and a member
of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited as well as the Executive Vice President of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited in June 2020.

Yao Yong, male, born in November 1969 (aged 54), graduated from National Economics and Management College of Sichuan
University with a bachelor's degree in economics, majoring in National Economic Management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Electronic Science and Technology of China — Webster University. He is a qualified
senior accountant, senior auditor, Chartered Certified Accountant of ACCA and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He
began his career in July 1991. He acted as a member of the Capital Construction Audit Department of Sichuan Provincial Audit
Department, a deputy chief member and chief member of the Fixed Assets Investment Audit Department of Sichuan Provincial
Audit Department. He acted as the Director of Financial Management Department of Ertan Hydropower Development Co
Ltd. in March 2003. He served as the Deputy Chief Accountant and Director of the Finance Department of Ertan Hydropower
Development Co Ltd. in July 2007, and the Chief Accountant and Director of the Finance Department of Ertan Hydropower
Development Co Ltd. in October 2010. He served as the chief accountant of Yalong Hydro (FEEE/Timisi/K BFIZEARE A 7))
in November 2012, the Director of Finance Department of State Development and Investment Corporation (renamed as State
Development & Investment Corp., Ltd. in December 2017) in June 2017. He has served as a member of the Party Leadership
Group of China Southemn Air Holding Company Limited since March 2021, the Executive Vice President, chief accountant and
Chief Financial Officer of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since April 2021, and the Chief Accountant and a member
of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited since May 2021. Currently, he also serves as
a member of the financial planning consultancy group of the Interational Air Transport Association, Director of China Southermn
Airlines Overseas (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. and Chairman of China Southern Airlines Group Finance Company Limited.
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Gao Fei, male, born in August 1976 (aged 47), graduated from Flying College of Beihang University majoring in Wingmanship
and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from Lingnan College Sun Yat-Sen University. He subsequently
obtained a Master of Science degree from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the United States and is a member of the
Chinese Communist Party. Mr. Gao began his career in July 1998 and successively served as Deputy General Manager of Flight
Management Division of the Company; Deputy General Manager and a member of the Party Committee of Shenzhen branch of
the Company; Deputy General Manager of Safety Supervision Division of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and of
the Company. From October 2018, he has been General Manager of Safety Supervision Division of China Southen Air Holding
Company Limited and of the Company. In December 2020, he was appointed as Head and Deputy Secretary of the Party
Committee of Fleets Division of the Company. Since January 2023, he has served as Executive Vice President and a member
of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and Head and Deputy Secretary of the Party
Committee of Fleets Division of the Company. From February 2023, he served as a Deputy General Manager and a member of
the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and a Deputy General Manager of the Company.

Qu Guang Ji, male, born in February 1970 (aged 54), graduated from the Department of Economics and Statistics of Xi'an
Institute of Statistics with a bachelor’s degree in Statistics, obtained a master’s degree in Economics from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics, and achieved an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University,
French National School of Bridges and Roads and National School of Civil Aviation when he was on the job. He is an economist
and a member the Chinese Communist Party. Mr. Qu started his career in July 1993. Mr. Qu once served as the General Manager
and Deputy Secretary of the CPC General Committee of the Transportation Network Department of the Marketing Committee,
the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the CPC General Committee of the Network Revenue Department of the Marketing
Committee, the Deputy Director General and a member of the Party Committee of the Marketing Committee, etc. Mr. Qu acted
as the President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Hubei Branch of the Company in April 2017, the Standing Vice
President and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Xinjiang Branch of the Company in March 2019, the President and
Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Xinjiang Branch of the Company in July 2019, the President and Deputy Secretary
of the Party Committee of Shenzhen Branch of the Company in August 2021, and a member of the Party Leadership Group of
China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in July 2023. Since August 2023, Mr. Qu has been serving as the Executive Vice
President and a member of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and the Deputy General
Manager of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. Currently, He is also a Vice Chairman of the seventh Council of the China
Communications and Transportation of Association, a Vice Chairman of the fifth Council of the China Air Transport Association,
and a Non-executive Director of TravelSky Technology Limited.
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Wu Rong Xin, male, born in January 1972 (aged 52), graduated from the China Civil Aviation Institute with a bachelor’'s
degree, majoring in thermal power machinery and equipment. He also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
(EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management and is a member of the Chinese Communist
Party. He began his career in July 1994. He served as Manager of Finance Department of Aircraft Engineering Department of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited. In June 2008, he served as the Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Party
Committee of Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd., and Executive Vice President and Deputy Secretary of
the Party Committee of Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd. in April 2011. He served as Director of Planning
and Investment Department of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in November 2016, General Manager of Strategic
Planning & Investment Division of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and China Southern Airlines Company Limited in
April 2017, General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Aircraft Engineering Department of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited in March 2021, and General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Engineering
Technology Branch (Aircraft Engineering Department) of China Southern Airines Company Limited in September 2021. He has
also been serving as Chief Engineer of China Southern Airlines Company Limited in January 2022, and an Assistant to the General
Manager of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in June 2022. From August 2022, he served as Assistant to the General
Manager of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and Deputy General Manager of China Southern Airines Company
Limited, the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of the Engineering and Technology Branch (Aircraft
Engineering Department). He served a member of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited,
a Deputy General Manager of China Southern Airlines Company Limited and the General Manager and a Deputy Secretary of the
Party Committee of the Engineering and Technology Branch (Aircraft Engineering Department) in January 2024. He also served
as a Deputy General Manager of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in February 2024. He has been serving as a
Deputy General Manager and a member of the Party Leadership Group of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, and a
Deputy General Manager of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since March 2024. Currently, he also acts as a Director of
China Aviation Supplies Co., Ltd., the Chairman of Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd., the Chairman of MTU
Maintenance Zhuhai Co., Ltd., the Vice Chairman of Civil Aviation Maintenance Association of China, and a Vice Chairman of the
Council of the Aircraft Competitiveness Innovation Centre.

Chen Wei Hua, male, born in October 1966 (aged 57), graduated from Peking University Law School with a bachelor’s degree,
majoring in Law and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School
of Economics and Management. He is an economist, a qualified lawyer in the PRC, a qualified corporate legal counselor and a
member of the Chinese Communist Party. Mr. Chen began his career in July 1988. He successively served as Deputy Director of
Legal Department of China Southern Airlines (Group) Corporation, Deputy Director of the Office (Director of the Legal Division) of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited and China Southern Airlines (Group) Corporation. Mr. Chen was the Chief Legal Adviser
of China Southern Airlines Company Limited and Director of the Legal Division of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from
June 2004. Mr. Chen has been the Chief Legal Adviser and General Manager of the Legal Division of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited since October 2008. He has served as Chief Legal Adviser of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since
April 2017. Mr. Chen has been the Chief Legal Adviser and Secretary to the Board of China Southern Airlines Company Limited
since September 2022; He has served as Chief Compliance Officer of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited, Chief Legal
Adviser and Secretary to the Board of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since December 2022. From March 2023, he
served as Chief Compliance Officer and Secretary of the Board of Directors of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited,
Chief Legal Adviser and Secretary of the Board of directors of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From May 2023, he
served as Chief Compliance Officer, Chief Legal Adviser and Secretary of the Board of Directors of China Southern Air Holding
Company Limited, and Chief Legal Adviser and Secretary of the Board of Directors of China Southern Airlines Company Limited.
Currently, he also acts as a Director of Xiamen Airlines Company Limited, a Member Representative of the Standing Board of the
China Association for Public Companies, a member of the IATA Legal Advisory Council, and Vice Chairman of the Sixth Session
of the Council of the Listed Companies Association of Guangdong.
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Li Shao Bin, male, born in April 1964 (aged 59), graduated with a college degree from Chinese Language and Literature of
Xiangtan Teachers’ College, and obtained a university degree from the Party School of the Central Committee of Communist Party
of China majoring in economics and management. He is an expert of political science and a member of the Chinese Communist
Party. He began his career in July 1984. He was an officer of Public Relationship Section of Political Department of the Hunan
Bureau of Civil Aviation Administration, the Senior Staff Member of Publicity Division of Political Department of the Guangzhou
Bureau of Civil Aviation Administration and the Principal Staff Member of Publicity Department of the Company. He served as the
Deputy Director of Publicity Department of the China Southern Airlines (Group) Company in September 1994. He had been the
Director of Political Division of Flight Department of China Southern Airines Company Limited from December 1999. Mr. Li was
the Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Flight Department and Director of Political Division of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited from May 2002. Subsequently, he was appointed as the Secretary of the Party Committee of Guangzhou
Flight Operations Division of China Southern Airines Company Limited from May 2004. Mr. Li served as the Secretary of the Party
Committee and Vice President of Guangzhou Flight Operations Division of China Southern Airlines Company Limited from March
2006. Mr. Li has been the Chairman of the Labour Union of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since August 2012 and the
Executive Director of China Southemn Airlines Company Limited since January 2013. Mr. Li served as the President and Deputy
Secretary of the Party Committee of the Training Centre of China Southern Airines Company Limited since April 2017. Mr. Li also
has been the Chief Training Officer of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since June 2019.

Xie Bing, male, born in September 1973 (aged 50), graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, majoring
in Civil Aviation Management. He subsequently received a master’'s degree of business administration from the Management
School of Jinan University, a master's degree of business administration (international banking and finance) from the University
of Birmingham, Britain and a MBA, an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University,
respectively. Mr. Xie is a Senior Economist. Mr. Xie has the qualification for the Secretary to the Board of companies listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and also has the qualification for Company Secretary of companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Xie is a fellow member and FCS of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a member of the Chinese Communist
Party. Mr. Xie began his career in July 1995. He served as the Assistant of the Secretary to the Board of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited. Mr. Xie has been the Secretary to the Board and Deputy Director of the Secretary Office of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited from November 2007. From December 2009, Mr. Xie has been the Secretary to the Board and Director
of the Secretary Office of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From April 2017, he has been the Secretary to the Board of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited, and Director of the Board Office of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From
September 2022, he has been the Chief Economist of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. For now, he also acts as the
Vice Chairman, Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee and General Manager of Xiamen Airlines Co. Ltd., a Deputy to the 14th
People’s Congress of Fujian Province, Deputy President of Central Enterprises Overseas Students Sodality (R R (M2 22 A St
FHE), and Vice President’s representative of China Group Companies Association.
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Wang Ren Jie, male, born in October 1964 (aged 59), has bachelor’s degree from People’s Liberation Army Air Force No.1
Flight Academy (F7 B A RN E 225 5 — 1 T22FE) majoring in Aircraft Piloting and Aviation Theory and obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management. He is a First
Class Pilot and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in June 1983. He served as General Manager
and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Xi'an branch of the Company, and General Manager of the Flight Management
Division of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and of the Company. He served as Deputy Chief Flight Operations Officer
of the Company in May 2018; Secretary of CPC General Branch of Laws & Standards Division of China Southern Air Holding
Company Limited and of the Company in September 2018; Chief Flight Operations Officer of the Company and Secretary of CPC
General Branch of Laws & Standards Division of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and of the Company in November
2018; General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Northern branch of the Company since October 2019.
He has been appointed as Chief Pilot of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since February 2023. For now, he also serves
as Chairman of Zhuhai Xiang Yi Aviation Technology Company Limited.

Li Mian Song, male, born in November 1968 (aged 55), graduated from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature
of Sun Yat-Sen University majoring in Chinese Language and Literature, and obtained a university degree. He holds a Master
of Public Administration (MPA) degree from Peking University School of Government and an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management. He is a senior expert of
political science and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in July 1990. He served as Secretary of
the discipline inspection committee and a member of the Party Committee of Beijing branch of the Company, Secretary of the
Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of the Cabin Service Department of the Company in July 2014, Director of the
Human Resources Department of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in February 2017, Director of the Organisation
and Personnel Department (Office of the Party Group) of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited and Director of the
Organisation and Personnel Department (Office of the Party Group) of the Company in April 2017, and Deputy Secretary of the
Party Committee of headquarter offices of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited in June 2019. Since June 2023, he has
been serving as the Chief Service Officer of China Southern Airlines Company Limited.

Li Zhi Gang, male, born in May 1968 (aged 55), graduated from the China Civil Aviation Institute with a master’s degree, majoring
in thermal power machinery and equipment. He also obtained a master’s degree of Business Administration from Northeastern
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from Tsinghua University and is a member of the
Chinese Communist Party. Mr. Li began his career in July 1990. He has been the Director of Aircraft Maintenance Base (Aircraft
Engineering Department) in Northern Branch of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited. From June 2006, he has been the
Deputy General Manager and a member of the Party Committee of Aircraft Engineering Department and the Director of Shenyang
Maintenance Base of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From February 2007, he has been the Deputy General Manager
of Aircraft Engineering Department, Director and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Shenyang Aircraft Maintenance
Base of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From April 2009, he has been the Deputy General Manager and a member
of the Party Committee in Shenzhen Branch of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From December 2016, he has been
the General Manager and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Aircraft Engineering Department of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited. From March 2021, he has been the Secretary of the Party Committee and Deputy General Manager of the
Northern Branch of China Southern Airlines Company Limited. From August 2022, he has served as Chief Engineer of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited. For now, he is also a member of the board of directors of the Aircraft Competitiveness
Innovation Centre and a member of the National Academy for Outstanding Engineers of Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics.
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Li Ye, male, born in March 1973 (aged 51), graduated from the School of Economics and Management of Beihang University
majoring in business administration with postgraduate qualifications and a master’s degree of business administration. He is a
First Class Pilot and a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He began his career in August 1995. He served as the Deputy
General Manager and a member of the Party Committee of Guangzhou Flight Division of the Company. He was appointed as
the Deputy General Manager and a member of the Party Committee of Beijing branch of the Company in December 2017. Since
March 2021, He has been the General Manager of Safety Supervision Division of China Southern Air Holding Company Limited
and of the Company. From February 2023, he has been the General Manager of Safety Supervision Division of China Southemn
Air Holding Company Limited, and the Chief Flight Safety Officer and General Manager of Safety Supervision Division of the
Company. For now, he is also a member of the Security Advisory Committee of International Aviation Association, a member of
the fifth Council of the CATA, a member of the CATA Safety Work Committee, and a member of the fourth Council of China Airline
Pilots Association.

Liu Wei, male, aged 66, graduated from the Northwest University of China, the China University of Political Science and Law
and the University of Cambridge with a bachelor’s degree in Chinese literature, a master’s degree in law and a Ph.D. in Law,
respectively. Dr. Liu Wei also completed his Common Professional Examination (CPE) with the Manchester University in England,
as well as the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) with the University of Hong Kong. Dr. Liu Wei has PRC lawyer qualification
and is a solicitor qualified to practice law in Hong Kong and in England. Dr. Liu Wei is currently a partner of Jingtian & Gongcheng
LLP and has extensive experience in providing effective and commercially-valuable legal services for large-scale market-leading
enterprises relating to corporate finance, listing, regulatory and compliance matters. During the period from 26 November 2007 to
20 July 2015 and since 22 September 2022, Dr. Liu Wei acted as a Joint Company Secretary.

Save as disclosed above, none of the above Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company has any relationship
with any Directors, Supervisors, senior management or substantial shareholders of the Company.
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Il. Staff of the Company and Major Subsidiaries

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had an aggregate of 99,468 employees (31 December 2022: 97,899).

Number of current staff in the Number of current staff in major Total number of current staff
Company (by person) subsidiaries (by person) (by person)
64,393 35,075 99,468

1. Professions Composition

Number of professionals

Categories by profession (by person)
Flight 11,590
Service 40,314
Administration 6,809
Navigation matter 1,414
Maintenance 12,080
Information 1,640
Marketing 4,620
Comprehensive 14,853
Function 6,148
Total 99,468

2. Educational Level

Categories by education levels Number (by person)
Postgraduates 4,795
Undergraduates 55,102
Junior college 26,304
Technical School or below 13,267
Total 99,468

Annual Report 2023 091



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND EMPLOYEES

3. Emolument Policy of Employees

During the reporting period, in order to achieve high-quality development, the Company continued to deepen the management of
total salary, adhered to the coordinated business performance, and improved the control mechanism, and continued to promote
the downward penetration of total salary. At the same time, the Company increased incentives for key positions and key groups,
pursued the more accurate deployment of remuneration resources, and encouraged employees to strive for excellence; adhered
to the principle that remuneration distribution and salary adjustment mechanism is closely linked to organisational performance,
individual performance and labour efficiency, so that the remuneration can be increased or decreased. The Company established
and improved a market-oriented selection and employment mechanism as well as an incentive and restraint mechanism
to continuously promote the contractual management of the tenure system. It completed the signing of tenure contracts in
subsidiaries, branches, business operation units, etc. and achieved the strong linkage between remuneration and performance
appraisal. The Company actively explored medium and long-term incentive plans, built a multi-dimensional incentive mechanism
system to stimulate the vitality of the enterprise.

During the reporting period, details of the remuneration of the staff of the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements
prepared under IFRS Accounting Standards.

4. Training Plan

In 2024, the Company will effectively carry out various training programs for its officers and employees, promote the
implementation of training operation reform, issue measures on the management of teachers and courses, and complete
the construction of the training management system. It will provide a convenient platform for the professional skill training of
employees, and will continue to deepen the integration between industry and education, gradually improve the quality of training,
and provide sufficient talent support for the Company to accelerate the progress of building itself into a world-class air transport
enterprise. The Company will focus on promoting specialised training programs including: “Pearl Talent” management trainee
training, training for new employees of various systems, annual refresher training for pilots, basic licence training for maintenance
personnel, professional technical training for maintenance personnel, refresher training for dispatchers, familiarisation training for
international operations, air-ground service integration training, regular refresher training for flight attendants, emergency drill,
conversion training, and regular training for aviation safety officers.

5. Information on Labour Outsourcing

Total pay for
Total hours of outsourced labour outsourced labour (RMB)

33.4978 million hours 2,125 million
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company, according to the requirements of relevant laws and regulations, such as the Company Law, the Securities Law,
and the Articles of Association, has set up its corporate governance systems consisting of general meeting, the Board, Supervisory
Committee and operational management. This forms the Company’s operation mechanism based on which the Company’s organ
of authority, decision-making body, supervisory body and executive body cooperate, coordinate and interact mutually. There was
no material difference between the Company’s actual governance conditions and the requirements of normative documents, such
as the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies released by the CSRC. The Company, according to domestic and
international regulatory requirements, constantly modified and improved the Articles of Association and related rules to standardise
its operation.

Corporate Governance Code

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the Company, and considers that the Company has applied the
principles of the corporate governance practices and adopted sound governance and disclosure practices accordingly. The Group
has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are summarised below.

System Construction

The Company strictly follows the regulatory requirements of the place where it is listed to constantly improve the Articles of
Association and related governing rules. During the reporting period, the Company revised the Articles of Association of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited, and revised the Working Rules for the General Manager of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited in accordance with the latest regulatory rules.

Controlling Shareholder

The controlling shareholder of the Company is CSAH, one of the central enterprises supervised by the SASAC, and there is no
competition between CSAH and the Company. The controlling shareholder of the Company has regulated itself and has not
directly or indirectly interfered with the decision making and business activities of the Company beyond the general meeting.

During the reporting period, Mr. Han Wen Sheng, President of the Company, served as the president of CSAH, Ms. Wu Ying
Xiang, Mr. Gao Fei and Mr. Qu Guang Ji, Executive Vice Presidents of the Company, served as executive vice presidents of
CSAH, and Mr. Yao Yong, Executive Vice President, chief accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, served as
chief accountant of CSAH, and Mr. Chen Wei Hua, Secretary to the Board and Chief Legal Adviser of the Company, served as
secretary to the board and chief legal adviser of CSAH. From January 2023 to February 2023, Mr. Zhang Zheng Rong served
as Executive Vice President of the Company and executive vice president of CSAH. The Regulatory Department of Listed
Companies of the CSRC has agreed to exempt the restrictions on concurrent positions for aforementioned senior management.
The independent Directors of the Company unanimously believed that the Company and CSAH were able to strictly require
and regulate the performance of duties of the senior management of the Company, namely Mr. Han Wen Sheng, Ms. Wu Ying
Xiang, Mr. Yao Yong, Mr. Gao Fei, Mr. Qu Guang Ji, Mr. Chen Wei Hua and Mr. Zhang Zheng Rong in accordance with relevant
regulatory regulations in 2023, and ensured that they executed due care and diligence, gave priority to fulfiling their duties as
the Company’s senior management, and earnestly safeguarded the legitimate rights and interests of the Company and minority
shareholders. These senior management of the Company, namely Mr. Han Wen Sheng, Ms. Wu Ying Xiang, Mr. Yao Yong, Mr.
Gao Fei, Mr. Qu Guang Ji, Mr. Chen Wei Hua and Mr. Zhang Zheng Rong, strictly followed the Company Law, the Securities
Law and relevant laws and regulations of the place of listing, diligently discharged their responsibilities, and earnestly fulfiled their
commitments. They did not damage the legitimate rights and interests of the Company and minority shareholders due to holding
the abovementioned concurrent positions.
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The General Meeting

The general meeting of the Company is the top organ of authority and exercise all of its powers and functions legally. The
Company strictly followed the requirements of laws, regulations, the Articles of Association, and the Rules of Procedures for
General Meeting, and etc. to conduct all work of the general meeting and fully secure shareholders to legally exercise their rights
of shareholders. During the reporting period, the Company held 3 general meetings and 2 shareholders’ class mestings and
engaged lawyers to witness the convening and holding procedures of the general meetings. Such procedures were legal and
effective and ensured all shareholders, especially minority shareholders, to participate in decision to fairly exercise their rights by
online voting at the general meeting, without causing damage to the benefits of the minority shareholders.

The Board

The Board is the decision-making body of the Company and accountable to the General Meeting of Shareholders. Within
the scope of its functions and powers stipulated in the Articles of Association, it shall formulate the Company’s development
strategies in accordance with the procedures stipulated in the Rules of Procedure of the Board. In addition, it shall supervise the
implementation of the operation and management and the financial performance, and provide recommendations on appointment
of directors and senior management. It shall also make decisions on major contracts, transactions, financial matters as well as
other major policies. The Board reasonably authorised the executive directors and the senior management according to law,
which improved the level of decision-making and the efficiency of discussion, and promoted the development of the Company’s
production and operation.

At present, the Company has 7 Directors, including 3 executive Directors and 4 independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors accounts for more than half of the Board. In 2023, the Board of the Company operated in
accordance with the law and held 10 Board meetings, including 7 on-site meetings and 3 extraordinary meetings. The decision-
making procedures and contents of the proposals of the Board meetings complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
Articles of Association and relevant laws and regulations. Resolutions approved at such meetings were legal and effective.

The major issues which were brought before the Board for their decisions included:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, sales, disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;
5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system; and

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company.

As of 31 December 2023, the members of the 10th session of the Board comprise three executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. All of the Directors have a term of three years. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 81 to 90 of this annual report.

The Board held 10 meetings in 2023, all of which were convened in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company

held 3 general meetings and 2 shareholders’ class mestings in 2023, and the Directors actively participated general meeting in
person and have been doing their best to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders of the Company.
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The attendance of each Director is as follows:

Attendance of
General Meetings
and Class
Attendance of Board Meetings Meetings
Number of

meetings Number of
Whether Number of Number of participated Number of general
independent meetings meetings by way of meetings Numberof  Absenceintwo  meetings and
non-executive that required attended in conference attended by meetings  consecutive class meetings
Name of Directors  Director or not attendance person communication proxy absent  meetings attended
Ma Xu Lun No 10 10 3 0 0 No 5
Han Wen Sheng No 10 8 3 2 0 No 4
Luo Lai Jun No 10 8 3 2 0 No 1

Pansy Catiina Chiu
King Ho Yes 3 1 0 2 0 No 0
Gu Hui Zhong Yes 10 10 3 0 0 No 5
Guo Wei Yes 10 9 3 1 0 No 1
Cai Hong Ping Yes 10 9 3 1 0 No 5
Liu Chang Le Yes 7 7 3 0 0 No 1
Meetings of the Board held during the year 10
Of which: number of meetings attended in person 7
Number of meetings held by way of conference communication 3

Number of meetings held by combination of attendance in person and by way of

conference communication 0

The experience and views of our independent non-executive Directors are held in high regard and serve as an effective guidance
for the operation of the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience and bring in independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and management
process, taking into account the interests of all shareholders. The independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board. Independent non-executive Directors, Gu Hui Zhong, has the appropriate professional qualifications of
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. In addition, pursuant to the guidelines
on independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received an annual independence confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director and considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
during the reporting period. In addition, their extensive experiences in business and finance are very important to the Company’s
successful development. In 2023, the independent non-executive Directors expressed their views and opinions about certain
matters relevant to the shareholders and the Company as a whole at the Board meetings.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The summary
of the board diversity policy are as follows: The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board of Directors comprised seven members (including one female member), who possess

extensive experience in areas such as airline management, financial management, financial investment, culture and media, and
information technology.

Measurable objectives

The Board has the following measurable objectives for implementing a board diversity policy and for building a pipeline of potential
director succession that can achieve gender diversity:

1. at least one-third of the directors must be independent non-executive directors;
2. at least one director shall be a woman; and

3. at least one director has obtained accounting or other professional qualifications.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, all measurable objectives have been achieved.

The Board will monitor the implementation of the system and review the system when appropriate to ensure that it is working
effectively. The Board will discuss and adopt any changes that may be necessary.

Gender diversity for all employees

The Company values the gender diversity for all employees. As at 31 December 2023, the number of all employees of the
Company, including senior management, was 99,468, of which 60.89% were male and 39.11% were female.
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Directors

The members of the Board come from different industrial backgrounds, with rich experiences and professional knowledge as
to financial accounting, investment strategies, corporate cultures, corporate governance, and etc. Each Director serves a three-
year term of office and may be re-elected to a consecutive second term, but by principle only up to 6 consecutive years in the
case of independent non-executive Director. There is no major related relations among all Directors, including in terms of finance,
business, relatives or others. All Directors may obtain from the Secretary to the Board the related information on the regulations a
listed company’s Directors must observes and their regulatory and other consistent responsibilities and the latest developments
in such aspects, so as to ensure Directors understand their duties and secure the procedures of the Board are executed and
applicable laws and regulations are properly observed. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors work diligently and
conscientiously, and actively attend meetings of the Board and its committees, express independent opinions about connected
transactions, external guarantees, cash dividends, internal control, appointment and removal of senior management and many
other affairs, and give constructive advice and suggestions on the Company’s strategic development, production and operation.
During the reporting period, at the 2023 second extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2023, Ms.
Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho was elected as an independent non-executive Director of the 9th session of the Board.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors of the Company receive comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Directors of the Company are continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. In addition, continuing briefings and professional development for Directors will be arranged as necessary.

During the year of 2023, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training on the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements to all Directors. All Directors have provided to the Company records indicating that they have received required
training.

All Directors of the Company as at 31 December 2023 actively participated in continuous professional training, by attending
external seminars, attending in-house training or reading materials, with the topics covering regulations, corporate governance,
finance and business, to develop their knowledge and skills.

Chairman and President

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees the Board to ensure that it acts in the best interests of the Group.
The Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. In addition, the Chairman is also responsible for guiding and setting
the overall development goals and direction of the business of the Company. The President, assisted by the Executive Vice
President, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of the Group, attends to the formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operations of the Group. Working with the Executive
Vice President and the executive management team of each core business division, the President ensures the effective operations
and sustained development of the Group. The president maintains a continuing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to
keep them fully informed of all major business development issues. He is also responsible for building and maintaining an effective
executive team to support him in his role.
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Supervisory Committee

The Company’s Supervisory Committee is consisted of the shareholder representative supervisors who are elected and removed
by the general meeting, and staff representatives’ supervisors who are elected by the Company’s employee representatives.
Currently, the Supervisory Committee consists of 3 supervisors, of which, 2 are shareholder representative supervisors, and 1 is
employee representative supervisor. The Supervisory Committee has 1 chairman. None of the Company’s Directors, President,
Vice President or the responsible financial persons serve concurrently as supervisors. The Supervisory Committee of the Company
strictly follows the requirements of laws and regulations, Articles of Association, and Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory
Committee to standardise its operation. The supervisors of the Company work diligently, honestly, actively attend meetings of the
Supervisory Committee, sit in on the general meetings and the Board meeting, legally supervise the decision-making mechanism
of the Company’s financial management, connected transactions, cash dividends, external guarantees, and many other major
affairs, as well as the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior management. In addition, they also receive
the report on the preparation and audit work of the financial reports, and actively understand the construction and execution
of the Company’s internal control systems. During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee convened a total of 7 on-
site meetings and 1 extraordinary meeting. Meanwhile, it audited, as per the requirements of the Company Law, Articles of
Association, Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee, the Company’s major affairs, such as, the Company’s lawful
operation, financial management, regular reports, cash dividends, connected transactions, external guarantees, establishment and
implementation of internal control systems, and cash management of raised funds, and gave audit opinions.

Board Committees

The Board of the Company has put in place a Strategic and Investment Committee, an Audit and Risk Management Committee,
a Remuneration and Assessment Committee, a Nomination Committee and an Aviation Safety Committee. The number of
independent non-executive directors accounted for more than a half in each committee, of which three members of Audit and
Risk Management Committee are all independent non-executive directors and chairman is a senior accountant. The chairman of
each of Remuneration and Assessment Committee and Nomination Committee shall be an independent non-executive director.
Each committee under the Board of the Company has set up the working rules and strictly carried out the work according to the
working rules. Each committee will conduct in-depth studies on professional issues, and make recommendations for the Board.
Further details of the roles and functions and the composition of each of the committees are set out below:

Strategic and Investment Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Strategic and Investment Committee comprises three members and chaired by Mr. Han Wen
Sheng (executive Director) together with Mr. Gu Hui Zhong (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Cai Hong Ping
(independent non-executive Director) as members.

Strategic and Investment Committee held 3 meetings in 2023, which was held according to its rules and procedures, and
considered a report on the implementation of the major strategic investment matters of the Company. The attendance of each
member is as follows.

(No. of meetings)

Members of Strategic and Investment Committee Attended/required to attend
Han Wen Sheng (Chairman) 3/3
Gu Hui Zhong 3/3
Cai Hong Ping 3/3
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Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December
2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee was chaired by Mr. Gu Hui Zhong (independent non-executive Director)
together with Mr. Guo Wei (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Cai Hong Ping (independent non-executive Director)
as the members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. Among them, Mr. Gu Hui Zhong possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or financial management expertise to understand financial statements. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee has been provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice if necessary.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company are in compliance with the provision
of D.3.3 of the Corporate Governance Code, and applicable policies, rules and regulations that the Company is subject to.
The details of the roles and functions of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are set out in the Terms of Reference of
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.csair.com. In 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee carried out the
work, among other things, considering the appointment of auditors, reviewing the Company’s regular report, hedging plan, debt
financing plan, non-public issuance of shares, reviewing the efficiency of risk management and internal control system of the
Company and reviewing the internal audit plan, etc.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held 7 meetings in 2023. The Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed all its obligations under its terms of reference. The attendance of each member of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is as follows:

(No. of meetings)

Members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee Attended/required to attend
Gu Hui Zhong (Chairman) 7/7
Guo Wei 777
Cai Hong Ping 7/7

The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviewed the performance, independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditors
and was satisfied with the results.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee concludes that the independence of the auditors of the Company has not been
compromised by non-audit services provided for the Group.

At 2022 annual general meeting of the Company, the Company has considered and approved the appointment of KPMG
Huazhen LLP to provide professional services to the Company for its domestic financial reporting and internal control reporting,
U.S. financial reporting and internal control for the year 2023 and appointment of KPMG to provide professional services to the
Company for its Hong Kong financial reporting for the year 2023.
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The following table sets forth the type of, and fees (VAT tax inclusive) for, the principal audit services and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s external auditor to the Group in 2022 and 2023:

2023 2022

RMB Million RMB Million

Audit fees 15 14
Non-audit fees 1 1
Total 16 15

Note 1:  The total audit fees included the audit fees of RMB1 million (VAT tax inclusive) regarding the statutory audit services for certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Note 2:  Non-audit fees are mainly derived from tax advisory and circular services to the Group.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee comprises three members and chaired by Mr. Guo Wei
(independent non-executive Director) together with Mr. Han Wen Sheng (executive Director) and Mr. Gu Hui Zhong (independent
non-executive Director) as members.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy, structure and packages for Directors and senior management of the Company, and to establish regular and
transparent procedures on remuneration policy development and improvement. In particular, the Remuneration and Assessment
Committee has the duty to ensure that the Directors or any of their associates shall not be involved in the determination of their
own remuneration packages. The details of the roles and functions of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee are set
out in the Terms of Reference of Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the Company which has been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.csair.com.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee held 2 meetings in 2023, which were held according to its rules and procedures.
The meetings reviewed the resolutions including the performance contract for senior management and remuneration realisation,
realisation of annual remuneration of senior management. The attendance of each member is as follows.

(No. of meetings)

Members of Remuneration and Assessment Committee Attended/required to attend
Guo Wei (Chairman) 2/2
Han Wen Sheng 2/2
Gu Hui Zhong 2/2

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee consulted, when appropriate, the Chairman and/or the President about its
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and professional advice is available if necessary. The Remuneration and
Assessment Committee is also responsible for assessing performance of executive Directors and approving the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee has performed all its responsibilities under its terms of
reference in 2023.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee comprises three members and with Mr. Gu Hui Zhong (independent non-
executive Director) as the chairman and Mr. Ma Xu Lun (executive Director) and Ms. Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho (independent
non-executive Director) as members.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board in respect of the size and
composition of the Board based on the operational activities, assets and shareholding structure of the Company; study the
selection criteria and procedures of Directors and senior management and give advice to the Board by consideration of the
board diversity policy; identify qualified candidates for Directors and senior management; investigate and propose candidates for
Directors and senior management and other senior management members to the Board.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations as well as the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Nomination
Committee shall study on the selection criteria, procedures and terms of office for Directors and managers with reference to the
Company'’s actual situation and the board diversity policy. Any resolution made in this regard shall be filed and proposed to the
Board for approval and shall be implemented accordingly. The selection procedures of Directors and senior management are
(1) the Nomination Committee shall actively communicate with the relevant departments of the Company to research on the
demand of the Company for new Directors and senior management and report the same in writing; (2) the Nomination Committee
may extensively look for the candidates of Directors and senior management within the Company and its controlled (associated)
companies as well as in the market; (3) to obtain information regarding the occupation, academic qualification, job title, detailed
working experience and all the part-time positions of the initially proposed candidates and to report the same in writing; (4) to
seek the nominees’ acceptance on nomination, otherwise he or she shall not be put on the list of candidates of Directors and
senior management; (5) to convene meetings of the Nomination Committee and to inspect the qualification of initially proposed
candidates according to the job qualifications of Directors and senior management; (6) to make recommendations and submit
relevant materials about the candidates of Directors and senior management to the Board one to two months prior to the election
of new Directors and the appointment of new senior management; and (7) to conduct other follow-up work according to the
decision and feedback of the Board. The criteria to be considered as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing a
proposed candidate include the required skills, knowledge and quality to perform the duties. Details of the criteria are set out in the
Procedural Rules of the Board of Directors which has been published by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk on 8 November 2017. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and independently engage intermediate agencies to provide professional advice on its proposals if necessary. The details of the
roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are set out in the Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee of the Company
which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.csair.com.

The Nomination Committee held 4 meetings in 2023, to nominate Mr. Gao Fei as the Executive Vice President of the Company,
Mr. Wang Ren Jie as the Chief Pilot of the Company, Mr. Li Ye as the Chief Flight Safety Officer of the Company, Mr. Li Mian
Song as the Chief Service Officer of the Company, and Ms. Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho as an independent non-executive
Director candidate and a member of the Nomination Committee of the 9th session of the Board of the Company, and Mr. Qu
Guang Ji as the Executive Vice President of the Company. The Nomination Committee has performed all its obligations under their
terms of reference in 2023. The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is as follows.

(No. of meetings)

Members of the Nomination Committee Attended/required to attend
Gu Hui Zhong (Chairman) 4/4
Ma Xu Lun 4/4
Liu Chang Le (Resigned on 13 July 2023) 3/3
Pansy Catilina Chiu King Ho (Appointed on 29 August 2023) 0/0
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Aviation Safety Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the Aviation Safety Committee comprises three members and chaired by Mr. Ma Xu Lun (executive
Director), together with Mr. Han Wen Sheng (executive Director) and Mr. Guo Wei (independent non-executive Director) as
members.

The Aviation Safety Committee held 2 meetings in 2023, which were held according to its rules and procedures, and heard the
2022 work safety report, the 2023 work safety plan and the 2023 interim work safety report of the Company. The attendance of
each member is as follows.

(No. of meetings)

Members of Aviation Safety Committee Attended/required to attend

Ma Xu Lun (Chairman) 2/2

Han Wen Sheng 2/2

Guo Wei 2/2
Management

Responsibilities of the Management

The management of the Company is responsible for the daily production, operation and management of the Company according
to the resolutions of the general meeting of shareholders and the Board. In strict accordance with the authorisation of the general
meeting of shareholders and the Board, it is diligent and responsible, and leads all employees to carry out specific operations.
During the reporting period, the management effectively enhanced the organisation and leadership of safety work and the overall
safety situation was generally stable. The Company seized the opportunities brought by market recovery and deepened the
development of “big-operation”, as a result of which the quality of operation was steadily improved, the core functions were
strengthened, and the hub construction was further advanced.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Supervisors of
Listed Issuers

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, they confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2023. The code of conduct adopted by the Company regarding securities transactions by
Directors and Supervisors is no less stringent than the Model Code.
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Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be
read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the reports prepared by the auditor of the Group in this annual report, which
acknowledges the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s auditor.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of periodic accounts for each financial year which should give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group during that period.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, KPMG, are set out on pages 131 to 134 to auditor’s report. The Directors
consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied,
and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy of
the financial position of the Group and which enables the preparation of financial statements in accordance with PRC laws and
regulations and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the working principles of compliance, equality, initiative and honesty,
continuously carried out investor relations management in an efficient and professional manner, fully safeguarded the interest of
investors and further strengthened effective communication and improved service quality.

The Company has adopted a “Shareholder Communications Policy” to encourage and maintain timely and effective
communications with the Shareholders through the following means:

1. The Directors shall host the annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting each year to meet with the
Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The chairmen of the Board, Strategic and Investment Committee, Audit and
Risk Management Committee, Remuneration and Assessment Committee, Nomination Committee and Aviation Safety
Committee and the Company’s auditors shall attend the annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting to answer
questions from the Shareholders. A separate resolution shall be proposed to be considered by the attending Shareholders in
respect of each substantially separate issue, and voting on each resolution shall be conducted by way of a poll. The results
of the poll which include the number of votes cast for and against each resolution shall be posted on the Stock Exchange’s
and the Company’s websites on the same day of the meeting, respectively.

2. The Company shall update its Shareholders and the investors on the Company’s with latest business developments and
financial performance through announcements, circulars as well as annual, interim and quarterly reports to be issued by the
Company from time to time.

3. The Company responded to the new regulatory policies by efficiently and effectively holding performance briefings. It actively
innovated communication methods by participating in the civil aviation industry’s collective performance briefing for the first
time and pioneering a combination of cloud video live streaming and on-site interaction. This achieved a comprehensive
linkage with investors both online and offline.

4, The Company ensured smooth communication channels such as investor hotline, investor email, and investor website,
welcomed investor visits for research, actively responded to questions on “SSE E-interaction”, and built a comprehensive
investor relations service system. Throughout the year, the Company held and participated in over 150 all types of press
conferences, strategy meetings, and teleconferences, covering nearly 1,000 investors and analysts.
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5. Investors were invited to experience the Company’s production and operation frontline, deepening the capital market’s
recognition of the Company’s core competitiveness and high-quality development achievements. At the same time, the
Company listened to the capital market’s opinions and suggestions on its business development and promptly conveyed
them internally, promoting continuous improvement in the Company’s governance level and intrinsic value.

6. Investors and the public may visit the Company’s website (www.csair.com) to understand and obtain details relating to the
Company’s governance structure, organisational structure, stock information, production statistics, announcements and
circulars, etc. The detailed procedures are as follows:

(1) Open the Home page of the Company’s website and click “Investor Relations”
(2)  Click the content you want to read

For enquiries about shareholders’ general mestings and Board meetings, investors may contact the Secretary to the Board by
phone at (8620)8611-2480, by fax to (8620)8665-9040 or by e-mail to ir@csair.com. Investors may also raise questions directly at
the annual general meetings or extraordinary general meetings. Enquiries about attending annual general meetings or extraordinary
general meetings and the procedures for proposing resolutions at such meetings may also be made to the Secretary to the Board
by the above means.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the above shareholder communication policy on an annual basis.
For the year under review, the Board considers that the policy is adequate and effective for the following reasons: (a) the policy
provides multiple channels of communication to meet the different preferences of shareholders or stakeholders, including the
publication of updates on the Company’s official website (such as financial results and reports, announcements and circulars),
correspondence and email addresses for them to communicate in writing, and telephone number for them to communicate
directly with each other in conversation and physical general meetings; (b) the Directors and the chairmen of Board Committee,
the Company Secretary and/or other professional advisers (if any) attending the annual general meetings or extraordinary general
meetings will be available to answer questions from Shareholders; and (c) according to the changes in the regulatory rules for
the year, the Company reviewed various system documents in a timely manner and actively enhanced voluntary disclosure, and
designated officers of the Company will be responsible for responding promptly to enquiries or comments from Shareholders
or stakeholders to respond to the market concerns in a timely manner, improved information transparency and promote more
effective communication with the capital market.

During the reporting period, the Company’s relentless efforts in investor relations management have won widespread recognition
from investors. The Company was honoured with the China Securities Golden Bauhinia Award — Listed Company with
Outstanding Investor Relations Management (FEIZE 5 & 588 S iR B E A ETE LTHAF]") and the Panorama Investor
Relations Gold Award — 2022 Award for Interactions with Small and Medium Investors (2 =% & & MR & 822022 G E & ET /)
B H H E)EE"). As the only company selected in the civil aviation industry, the Company also won the fifth New Fortune — Best
Listed Company (T84 & “Bx{£_ A F]"), further consolidating the Company’s good image in the capital market.

In 2024, the Company will continue to strengthen investor relations management, pay attention to capital market performance,

and strive to align the Company’s market value with its intrinsic value. We are committed to maximising shareholder returns and
look forward to gaining more trust and support from investors.
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Information Disclosure

The Company has strictly complied with the relevant listing rules of all the listing places to perform its information disclosure
obligations in accordance with the standards of “truth, accuracy, completeness, timeliness, faimess and effectiveness”.

During the reporting period, the Company actively implemented the new securities regulatory rules by striving to improve the
quality of listed company, focusing on the development of information disclosure system, formulating and issuing the management
rules for regular reporting, and continuously improving the listing compliance system; the Company strengthened the foresight of
listing compliance management, established a listing collaborative management mechanism, and adjusted the listing compliance
control methods; the Company continued to strengthen the regulated operation management, and strengthened the process
control of key listing compliance matters such as financial data quality, connected transactions, external guarantees, management
of raised funds, commitments and performance.

During the reporting period, the Company received a level-A information disclosure rating for the year 2022-2023 from the SSE.
So far, the Company has obtained level-A information disclosure rating from the Shanghai Exchange Stock for ten consecutive
years.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

A special resolution was passed by the Company on 19 May 2023 to adopt the amended Articles of Association for modification
of the provisions on the number of the members of the Board of Directors and change of the scope of operations, which became
effective on the same date. For details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 4 April 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material changes to the Articles of Association for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Company Secretary

During the reporting period, Mr. Chen Wei Hua and Dr. Liu Wei were the joint company secretaries of the Company. Please refer
to the section headed “Profiles of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this report for the biographical details
of Mr. Chen Wei Hua and Dr. Liu Wei. Mr. Chen Wei Hua and Dr. Liu Wei confirmed that they have received not less than 15
hours of relevant career training during the reporting period.

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend distribution policy is as follows:
Principles of dividend distribution by the Company: Provided that the long-term and sustainable development of the Company are
ensured, the dividend distribution policy of the Company should pay close attention to ensuring a reasonable return of investment

to investors and establishing a firm intention of rewarding the shareholders, and such dividend distribution policy should maintain
its continuity and stability.

Ways of dividend distribution by the Company: The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash, shares, a combination of
cash and shares or in other reasonable manners in compliance with laws and administrative regulations.
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Conditions and proportion of distribution of dividends by the Company: Conditional upon the Company being profitable for the
year and after allocation to the statutory common reserve fund and discretionary common reserve fund as required, and there are
no exceptional matters including material investment plans or material cash outflows (material investment plans or material cash
outflows refer to proposed external investments, acquisition of assets or purchase of equipment in the coming 12 months that in
aggregate constitute expenditure exceeding 30% of the net assets of the Company as shown in the latest audited consolidated
statements) and there has not incurred any material losses (losses in the amount exceeding 10% of the net assets of the
Company as shown in the latest audited consolidated statements), the Company shall distribute cash dividends out of profit in
an amount not less than 10% of the distributable profit for the year (i.e. profit realised for the year after making up for losses and
allocation to reserve fund). The accumulated distribution of dividend by way of cash for the last three years may not be less than
30% of the Company’s average distributable profit for the last three years. The accumulated distribution of dividend by way of
cash for the coming three years may not be less than 30% of the Company’s average distributable profit for such three years.

Intervals for dividend distribution by the Company: Provided that the conditions of profit distribution are met and the Company’s
normal operation and sustainable development are ensured, the Company shall in principle distribute dividend on an annual basis,
and interim dividend may also be distributed based on the profitability and capital requirement conditions of the Company.

Conditions of profit distribution by way of share dividends: Provided that the minimum proportion of distribution of cash dividends
is met and reasonable scale of share capital and shareholding structure of the Company are ensured, and with particular attention
paid on keeping the steps of capital expansion in pace with the growth in operation results, if there are special circumstances
which prevent distribution by way of cash, the Company may consider distributing profit by way of share dividends as a return to
investors after consideration of its profitability and cash flow position and performance of the procedures required by the Articles of
Association. Where the Company made a payment of dividend satisfied by an allotment of new shares or completed conversion
of capital common reserve fund into capital, the Company may elect not to distribute dividend by way of cash in the same year,
and that year is not counted in the three years as stated above in this Articles of Association.

Shareholders’ Rights

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
published on the website of the Stock Exchange at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the website of the Company at “www.csair.com”
after the relevant shareholders’ mestings.

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Board on written requisition of shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding
10% or more of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying voting rights pursuant to Article 80(3) of the Articles of
Association. Such requisition must be stated in the agenda to be addressed in general meeting and signed by the applicant and
then reported to the Board and Company Secretary of the Company in written form. Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the Articles of Association for convening an extraordinary general meeting.

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send

their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights as mentioned above to the Board Office of the Company or via email as set out
in the above section headed “Communications with Shareholders and Investors and Investors Relations”.
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Training for Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

During the reporting period, the Company organised directors, supervisors, and senior management to actively study the laws
and regulations of listed companies and the changes in the regulatory system of overseas listed companies, and continued to
pay attention to the latest regulatory provisions and other key content. The Company arranged for Beijing Dacheng Law Offices,
LLP to provide in-depth explanations to directors, supervisors, and senior management on the Management Measures for
Independent Directors of Listed Companies, with a focus on interpreting the changes in the operation of the board of directors
and the independence and performance of independent directors; Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP interpreted the revision of the the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, focusing on analysing changes in the
issuance and repurchase of shares, and promoting directors, supervisors, and senior management to continuously update their
business knowledge and enhance their ability to perform their duties.
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. INFORMATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Whether an environmental protection-related mechanism is established or not Yes
Funds invested in environmental protection during the reporting period (unit: RMB in ten thousands) 8,852

(I) Information on Environmental Protection of Enterprises and Its Key
Subsidiaries which were classified as Major Pollution Discharge Units
Published by the Environmental Protection Authorities

1. Information on Pollution Discharge

The Group always adheres to the concept of green development, earnestly fulfils responsibilities for environmental protection, and
continuously improves the pollution prevention and control as well as the management of environmental protection. The Shenyang
Base of the Engineering Technology Branch of the Company is classified as a major pollution discharge unit for soil environment
of Shenyang, and Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Company, is classified as a major
pollution discharge unit for atmospheric environment of Guangzhou. The main pollutants are waste water, exhaust gas and
hazardous waste. The details are as follows:

Names of major Totd
Name ofthe Company polltants and Method of Ditrbuton of Concentrafion of mplemented polltant Total discharge Excessive
orits ubsidiaries featured polutants dlscharge discharge outets polltant discharged discharge standards dlischarge approved discharge
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Company Lied {oariogen 000: 33mg! 2008) e eyt Senge
ammona nogen, Tot ntogen:£84mg Discharge Stancv (GB4978-19%)
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Xene 53 mghm’ Sendars o Ar Pl s
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nirogen s, 0084 mort
ufr dorce
tlackress of e as
DA / /
Pk 46 mgi?
Vocs: 1 85 mgré

Non-methene ydocaron: 373 mgin?
Borzee s 165 mgin?
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Non-mebene ycrocabon: 28 mgin’

Pk 59 mofrt
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Nonmethene hykocarbon: 255 mgfré
Pk 44yt
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Name of the Gompany
orit Subsicaries

Names of major
polltants and
featured polltants

Method of
disharge

Distioufion of
discharge oufes

Concentration of
polltant discharged
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Names of major

Name of the Gompany polltants and Method of Distbution of Concentraton of
orit Subsicaries featured polltants discharge discharge outes polltant discharged

Implemented polltant
discharge standards

Total
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Total
discharge
approved

Excessive
discharge
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Names of major Total
Name of the Gompany polltants and Method of Distibution of Concentration of Implemented pollutant Tota discharge Excessive
orit Subsicaries featured polltants disharge discharge oufes polltant discharged discharge standards discharge approved discharge
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Names of major Total

Name of the Gompany polltants and Method of Distibution of Concentraton of Implemented polltant Tota discharge Excessive
orit Subsicaries featured polltants discharge discharge outes polltant discharged discharge standards discharge approved discharge
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Names of major Total
Name of the Gompany polltants and Method of Distibution of Concentration of Implemented pollutant Tota discharge Excessive
orit Subsicaries featured polltants disharge discharge oufes polltant discharged discharge standards discharge approved discharge
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During the reporting period, the discharge of pollutants of the Company was in compliance with the relevant national discharge
standards, and there were no violations of laws and regulations in respect of environmental protection, no major environmental
pollution accidents, or any severe or major damages to the ecological environment, nor was there any general environmental
pollution accidents or ecological damage events.
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2. Construction and Operation of Facilities to Prevent Pollution

The construction and operation of the Group’s “three wastes” pollution control facilities were strictly implemented in accordance
with the regulatory requirements of the competent ecological environment department and the “three simultaneous” of
environmental protection. The pollution control facilities and production facilities operated simultaneously. Domestic waste water
was discharged to a sewage treatment plant for treatment. Production waste gas was discharged in strict accordance with the
emission permit. Hazardous waste was collected and temporarily stored in hazardous waste temporary storage storerooms and
organic waste liquid storage tanks, and entrusted qualified enterprises/institutions to transfer and disposal on a regular basis. The
Group strictly followed various standards and complied with relevant environmental protection requirements.

3. Environmental Impact Assessment and Other Administrative Permission for
Environmental Protection

The construction projects of Shenyang Base of the Engineering Technology Branch of the Company and Guangzhou Aircraft
Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd. conducted environmental impact appraisal and inspection according to requirements of
environment protection laws and regulations, and obtained and strictly complied with the content of the pollutant discharge permit.

4. Emergency Plans for Environmental Contingencies

The Group actively established and improved emergency plans for environmental contingencies, and promoted to establish
special management plans for environmental impact assessment reports, environmental contingencies, fires, hazardous aviation
chemicals, and hazardous wastes, and emergency plans of each secondary unit, so as to establish a complete emergency
management system for environmental contingencies gradually. The Shenyang Base of the Engineering Technology Branch of
the Company has revised the emergency plans for environmental contingencies according to the requirements of competent
ecological environment authority in 2021, and completed the filing on 22 June 2021. Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering
Co., Ltd. has revised the emergency plans for environmental contingencies according to the requirements of competent ecological
environment authority in 2022, and completed the filing on 14 September 2022. On 30 September 2022, the Group released
Special Emergency Plans for Environmental Contingencies.

5. Environment Self-monitoring Solutions

In accordance with relevant requirements of the measures for self-monitoring and information disclosure by enterprises subject to
intensive monitoring and control of the state, the Group established and improved a pollution source monitoring and information
disclosure system, formulated annual pollutant self-monitoring plans, and entrusted third-party companies with environmental
monitoring qualifications to regularly monitor pollutants. During the reporting period, as monitored by the third-party company, the
Company’s discharge of major pollutants achieved up-to-standard. The Shenyang Base of the Engineering Technology Branch
of the Company and Guangzhou Aircraft Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd. have formulated the pollutant self-monitoring plans in
accordance with relevant technology standards and requirements of pollutant discharge permits, and regularly conducted on-site
monitoring according to the plans.

6. Administrative Penalties for Environmental Issues during the Reporting Period
Nil.

7. Other Environmental Information that shall be Disclosed
Nil.
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(Il) Information on Environmental Protection of Companies Other Than Major
Pollution Discharge Units

Nil.

() Information that is Conducive to Protecting Ecology, Preventing Pollution,
and Fulfilling Environmental Responsibilities

During the reporting period, the Company continued to push forward the Green Flight, advocated the concept of low-carbon
travel, and reduced environmental pollution by use of market mechanism.

1. Green Flight

During the reporting period, the Company continued to promote fuel saving, with focus on improving single-engine sliding and fuel-
efficient launching, retracting flap height, and replacing Auxiliary Power Units (APU) with bridge-mounted equipment, and made
progress in fuel saving. The Company pressed ahead meal-saving activities themed by “Green Flight” to encourage passengers to
dine according to needs and cancel meals on voluntary basis.

2. Took Forward the Implementation of the “Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality”
Program

During the reporting period, the Company formulated the “carbon peak and carbon neutrality” action plan and implementation
plan to systematically promote carbon peak and carbon neutrality through seven major actions, including optimisation of flight
efficiency, ground energy saving and carbon reduction, energy green transformation, environmental pollution prevention and
control, resource recycling, professional system construction, and coordination of innovation and exploration.

3. Reduced Impact of Carbon Emission on Climate Change by Market Mechanism

The Company has been supporting and actively participating in Chinese government’s various work regarding the market
mechanism of carbon trading. During the reporting period, according to the requirements of CAAC, the Company fully fulfilled
its performance for 2022 under the European Union carbon trading scheme in April 2023, and completed the carbon dioxide
emission reporting and verification for 2022 of the Guangdong carbon trading scheme in May 2023. We fully completed the
carbon dioxide emission report and verification of civil aviation flight activities in 2022 by using the self-developed flight carbon
emission data monitoring, reporting and verification system (MRV system).

4. Established and Improved Information System of Environmental Protection
and Management

During the reporting period, the Company continued the optimisation of an information management system of environmental
protection to realise online reporting and processing of data and information regarding energy consumption and pollutant
discharge, and online monitoring of environmental pollution sources, risk points, and prevention and control measures, and
continued to improving the quality and accuracy of the data.

5. Established and Improved the Emergency Management System for
Environmental Contingencies

During the reporting period, the Company focused on emergency plans for environmental contingencies, which were
supplemented by special management and plans for environmental impact assessment reports, environmental contingencies,
fires, hazardous aviation chemicals, and hazardous wastes, and supported by emergency plans of each secondary unit, so as
o establish a complete emergency management system for environmental contingencies, and carried out internal publicity and
implement training.
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6. Developed Passenger Carbon Account, Improved the Passenger Flight Carbon
Calculator and Launched Online Carbon Offset Service for Passengers

During the reporting period, the Company opened carbon accounts for passengers, which will record the reduced carbon
emission behaviours such as cancelling meals, use of electronic check-in and use of E-ticket, and upgraded the passenger
flight carbon calculator. The online passenger carbon offset service on the Company’s APP has had a cumulative total of 1,419
participants by the end of 2023, offsetting 250 tonnes of carbon dioxide.

7. Fully Promoted the Work of Plastic Pollution Control

During the reporting period, the Company implemented the overall plan for the treatment of plastic pollution, improved the
replacement standards for disposable non-degradable plastic products, continuously updated of standards for managing plastic
product bans and restrictions, strictly implemented the standards of management and control in the production and procurement
links, and carried out separate recycling and disposal. The Company has worked on promoting the development of industry
standards, innovation and research to build the CSA Building headquarters as a model.

8. Carried Out Noise Pollution Prevention and Control

During the reporting period, in accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Noise
Pollution, which came into effect in June 2022, the Company formulated a plan for noise reduction of aircraft take-off and landing.

(IV) Measures Taken to Reduce Carbon Emissions during the Reporting Period
and Results

Whether to take carbon reduction measures Yes
Reduction of carbon dioxide equivalent 330,662
emissions (unit: tonne)
Type of carbon reduction measures (such as During the reporting period, the Company formulated and implemented

using clean energy to generate electricity, its “Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality” action plan and the relevant
using carbon reduction technologies in the implementation plan, and systematically promoted the “Carbon Peak and
production process, developing and Carbon Neutrality” related work. Through continuous introduction of new
producing new products that contribute to generation highly energy-efficient aircraft, phasing out high-emission aged
carbon reduction, etc.) aircraft, carrying out aircraft weight reduction projects, installing aircraft

sharklet, and promoting refined management of jet fuel as well as other
aviation carbon emissions reduction measures, the fuel consumption per
tonne-kilometre decreased to 2.732 tonnes/10,000-tonne-kilometres. The
Company continued to promote the “oil-to-electricity” transformation of ground
vehicles, and introduced new energy field vehicles at the proportion set by
regulatory requirements. We ensured that aircraft used bridge-mounted air
conditioners and bridge-mounted power supplies instead of Auxiliary Power
Units (APU) when they were docked, reducing carbon emissions caused by
the consumption of aviation kerosene, gasoline and diesel. We promoted
energy-saving renovation of existing buildings and upgraded the environmental
protection and energy management system.
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Il. COMPANY’S WORK AS TO SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

External donations and

public welfare projects Quantity/content Details
Total investment 230 External donations by “Ten-Cent” Caring Foundation of CSA
(RMB in ten thousands)
Including: Funds 230 Donations to targeted places assisted by Guangdong Provincial
(RMB in ten thousands) Charity Federation, Xinjiang Public Security Heroes Foundation, and
Guangzhou Special Office of the State Administration of Taxation.
Number of people benefited /)
(person)

We actively fulfiled corporate social responsibility, actively implemented national strategies, built a high-quality Beijing hub,
enhanced the market control in the Greater Bay Area, and further enhanced the CSA ecosystem. We made continuous efforts
to deepen the poverty alleviation model with CSA’s characteristics, improved the management mechanism of assistance, and
enhanced the abilities of the cadres who undertook the assistance work. CSA undertook the assistance task of assisting 2
designated assistance counties in Xinjiang and 1 county, 1 town and 20 targeted poverty alleviation villages in other regions. CSA
selected 51 temporary assistance cadres to be responsible for the assistance work, investing and introducing RMB105 million of
assistance funds, demonstrating that “rural revitalisation is the responsibility of CSA”. In order to serve the national “Carbon Peak
and Carbon Neutrality” goal, the Company formulated a carbon peaking action plan, advanced full-process digital fuel saving,
promoted electronic air wayhbills, implemented on-demand catering services, and launched “Green Flight — Passenger Carbon
Offsetting Service”. A total of over 4.8635 milion passengers participated in our “Green Flight” on-demand catering service. In
2023, the Company saved a total of 175,100 tonnes of fuel and reduced carbon emissions by 551,600 tonnes, and was awarded
the “Environmental Airline of the Year (FF/EERIRMZE A F)” by CAAC Inflight Magazine.

We continuously carried out flight punctuality improvement actions and established a flight punctuality system from the
passenger’'s perspective. We promoted the provision of more people-oriented, digitalised, refined, personalised, and convenient
services for customers, improved the service quality management system, optimised the customer service full-chain business
processes and structure, and implemented the catering quality improvement plan. We were awarded the “Five-Star Diamond
Award” by the World Brand Lab and won the “Best Airline Award” by CAPSE for six consecutive years.
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Ill. CONSOLIDATE AND EXPAND THE PROGRESS IN POVERTY ALLEVIATION
AND FURTHER REVITALISE THE COUNTRYSIDE

Poverty alleviation and rural

revitalisation projects Quantity/content Details
Total investment 10,507.47 Funds for assistance
(RMB in ten thousands)
Including: Funds (RMB in ten 9,212.07 Funds for assistance
thousands)
Cash converted from 1,295.4 We donated 13 medical equipment
materials (RMB in
ten thousands)
Number of people benefited 168,685 People in townships and demonstration villages covered by village-

(person)

Forms of poverty alleviation
(industrial poverty alleviation,
employment poverty
alleviation, educational
poverty alleviation, etc.)

Industrial poverty
alleviation

Talent poverty
alleviation

Cultural poverty
alleviation

Ecological
poverty
alleviation

Organisational
poverty
alleviation

Consumption
poverty
alleviation
Aviation poverty
alleviation
Medical poverty
alleviation

based poverty alleviation, people covered by various trainings, people
benefited from medical equipment and students benefited from
campus improvement in total.

We entered into three-year supply and sale contracts with enterprises
in the poverty alleviation park of China Southern Airlines in Pixina
Township, Pishan County, Xinjiang; purchased various working
uniforms from the poverty alleviation park of China Southern Airlines in
Muyu County, Xinjiang; and promoted the plantation of “Kapok Red”
sweet potatoes of China Southern Airlines.

It organised 3 sessions of trainings for cadres on rural revitalisation
by China Southern Airlines and Zhejiang University; the program
on quality improvement of leaders in rural revitalisation by China
Southern Airlines Pearl; held training sessions for cadres of civil affairs
and association of disabled in Pishan County, Xinjiang; and 3 group
learning activities themed the “Path of Sunshine” with the participation
of villagers.

We carried out the improvement of China Southern Airlines Pearl No.
2 Primary School in Pishan County, Xinjiang; the Mandarin recitation
competition themed “My Country and I” for children; the donation
of books for the dream library; and the “publicity of civil aviation
knowledge on campus”.

We carried out the China Southern Airlines Pearl demonstration
village program; the program on the improvement of harmonious and
beautiful families of China Southern Airlines Pearl; and cultural and
food plaza activities of China Southern Airlines Pearl.

We advanced the construction of the “Home of Party Members”
in the demonstration village of China Southern Airlines; and the
construction of cultural stage and corridor with the theme of ethic
unity.

Consumption poverty alleviation totaled RMB26.08 million.

We newly painted the flight of “Rural Revitalisation in Hotan, Xinjiang”.
We purchased 13 imported medical equipment with a total value of

RMB12,954,000 and donated to the healthcare station for women
and children in Pishan County, Xinjiang.
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In 2023, the Group intensified the innovation and implementation of projects on rural revitalisation and poverty alleviation, and
implemented the building of highlights and the deepening of brands, achieving new results and influence in fixed-point poverty
alleviation and rural revitalisation.

During the reporting period, the Group boosted assistance efforts in industrial revitalisation and assistance, entered into contracts
with enterprises in the poverty alleviation park and purchased 234,700 uniforms of various categories. We stepped up assistance
efforts in talent revitalisation and assistance and organised training sessions for cadres of civil affairs and association of disabled
in Pishan County, Xinjiang; and 3 group learning activities themed the “Path of Sunshine” with the participation of villagers. We
intensified assistance efforts in cultural revitalisation and assistance, completed the improvement of China Southern Airlines Pearl
Primary School in Pishan County, Xinjiang and improved the hardware environment; and we organised donation of books for
the dream library and the “publicity of civil aviation knowledge on campus” as well as other voluntary activities. We increased
consumption poverty alleviation and participated in special activities such as “central enterprises’ consumption poverty alleviation
for the new year” and the “week of enriching rural areas”. We enhanced ecological and organisational revitalisation and assistance,
promoted the construction of demonstration villages of China Southern Airlines Pearl, built cultural and food plaza activities of
China Southern Airlines Pearl and completed the construction of the road lighting project in Pixina Township, Pishan County,
Xinjiang. We boosted aviation assistance, deepened the “assistance path in the air” and newly painted the flight of “Rural
Revitalisation in Hotan, Xinjiang”. We buiilt the air bridge and input 7 aircraft with 5 routes in Hotan, Xinjiang.
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. PERFORMANCE OF UNDERTAKING

Followup actons,
incase of
Reason fo not undertakings not
Background of Fufiment me Stictfuiment  fuffled inafimely ~ fulfledn a timely
undertaking Type of undertaking ~ Underaking party ~ Contentof undertaking Time of inderaking [t fany ~ Temofundeeking ~ intime,ifany ~ mamer mamer
Underaing eteto Ot (S Upon competon of the shae reform lan, and st o complence with the - Aprl 2007 Yes Longem Yes Ni Ni
e eom relvant s e eguaions o the PRC, CSAH wil suppot the Company
1 tespect of the fomueton and impementaion of & menegement equly
centiggysem.
Oherwcetding  Oher (S (SAH e Company eteed o & Sepeeon Ageement wih egardto e M 1995 Yes Longem Yes N NI
defiion and locafon ofte asses end it behveen CSAH and e

Company on 2 Mexch 9% famenced on 22 My 1997 Acoorlng fo the
Seoareon Agreement, CSAH and the Company areed fo compensate he
ol ey forthe clams, it and cots ome by S ety as el of
i uses, assets and bites el o hered by CSHH and e Company
usiant o e Sepaaon Agreemert,

Oberurceraig ~ Otr (S Tre rebient undtengs Lnder the Frnencl Senices Framenork Agement W 2009 Yes Longem Yes Ni NI
enteted o e the Company and Fance Compeny ckice: A Finence
Company s an nteprie group fence company culy ncoported nder
i At Nt for Entepyss Group France Comperis” and
ol relevant s and requetons, whose prncpel busness o proice
france menagement sevies, Such s depost and g for e members
of the Group and e reient captal fows ave keot witin e Gioup; B, he
peatons of Frence Company a  comolance wih e equiemerts of e
relvant s ad reueons and welkpeomed, herfore te ceposts peced
Wi and borowings fom Finence Compeny by the Compary e secued
I ftur, Fiance Company wil confnue to onerate n st complance
it the requiemens of the et ans and reqtors; C. n respect of
e Company’s ceposts with and bomowigs fom Frence Compeny, e
Compeny i contue o mlement s nemel voceduees and makscecison
on s onm n accordance wih eliant s and reguiions and the Afces
of Assookon, and GSAH wil ot nenene i the relvant dedison medng
mocess of e Compery; and D, CSAH il contue fo il espect e s
0f the Company to menage s onn operars, and vl ot enene in e
Gl ousness operaons of e Compary.
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Background of
undertaking

Type of undertaking  Undertaking party

Content of undertaking

(ther unceraing

(ther unceraking

Resoling ifetsnlend CSAH
) oer propertes

Otrer (S8

I respect of the comected rensacton enfred it befveen the Compeny
el CSAH on 14 August 2007 i elon o the o and purchess of varous
asels, te agplcaion for buidig tte cerficates for eght propees of Ar
Cateng i a totdl gross Toor avea of 801399 souare meteg) and 11
moperes of e Traning Cente (i a ol gros foor aea of 1394825
Squae metes| hve ot been mace for varous obethe reasons, On 19
December 2019, e Comoany receied te Undeakng Letier on Buldng
T etftes Appiction ot of Ar et and T G (B
FRRATREBOEEET ) fom O, e contolng
shareholer of e Company. 3o fr, e applcaton for buiig e cetfcates
for 12 propedies aorementioned hs een compleed i a ot gross foor
areaof 1417825 sqm. The mai eason for e incomplte appcaton ofte
remaini propety e certfcates e e lnd wherste propery s oceted
 eased . Due o the change of revant ans, reguiations and poics, te
appiaton for the propety e certfcates cannat b made. CSAH underook
it the Comoany ;1) i 1 case tht e applaton of et cetate
forreted propedy s aowed due fo subsequent ply changes, l e costs
a0 expenses g fom e apolcation of he et e cerfcates woukd
b bome and pai by CSAH, (2 any i paty amed aganst e Company
5 et ofthe propevtes ot avig te e cerfates, r he e oeect
0f the ropedes haing &n et on e ol aperaon of e Company and
g s 100ss, Such s sl be bome by CSAH and CSAH shel e o
1t o seekecovey fom e Compay

On 7 February 2016, e Company receed an ncerkig ety fom CSAH,
tre conoling shaeholdr ofthe Compary, in respect o certah B end
mroperes wihout g onmesnip certfates by the Compery, cetals of
it set0ut s folows: s et 30 Septemoer 2017 e Company and s
tranches, Ofcss ek 3 parels o nd it a e aea o 181,35042 e
mefers| and 342 propetes (it & el aea of 24422808 squae mefes)
tng b and progertes alocated o e Compeny fom CSAH on ot
ccasors, The regitefon of e abovementoned nd and popertes fas
b7 compieted o change et o te applcart, These nd and propetes
Were ensfned under the Separaton Agreement, Agreement regacing
tre Reorganiaton of Chine Norhem Arines Company and Xiang Aifnes
Company and Asses See & Puchese Agieement eneed it befveen e
Compy and CSAH i 1997, 2004 an 2007, espectiel. GSAH underook
trat f any thic paty et againt e Company & aresut of e lnd and
properes wihouthaing the onmesip cetfcate, or the e defect of e
fnd and popertes g an efect on e ol opeeation of the Compeny and
Gling i 10oss, uch s el e bome by CSAH and CSAH sl hve o
1t o seek ecovey fom e Compay.

Followup actions,
incase of
Reason for not undertakingsnot
Fulfiment time Stictfuiment  fuffledinatimely ~fulfiledina imely
Time ofnderiaking fmit fany ~ Temofunderiaking  ntime,fany  mamer mamer
Decerbr 019 Ves Longem 3 NI NI
Py 28 Vs Longem Yes Ni NI
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Followup actions,
incase of
Reason for ot undertakings not
Background of Fufiment fme Stictfufiment  fuffled inafimely ~ fulfiledn a timely
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{0 menage te shares diecty andlor indiecty held by the Company in
(0SA Logits issed o o te oferng an Isng, nor hel CSA Logitcs
repuchase such s, Wit 6 moif fom te e ofising of CSA
Logistes' e on e Shenghel Stock Exchnge, e cosng pre of CS4
Logscs’shaes s e ten e s e for 20 conste g s,
orhe closng pcs of A Logits' e s ey ten st pice o e
el of 6 marths uponising I the dayis not a acing cay, i e frst kg
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afte I, e o ssue e the prie e exciicknd and exigh
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Followup actions,
incase of
Reason for not undertakingsnot
Background of Fulfiment time Stictfuiment  fuffledinatimely ~fulfiledina imely
undertaking Type of undertaking ~ Underiaking party ~ Contentof undertaking Time of inderaking mt ifany ~ Temofundeeking  infime,iany  mamer mamer
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compied e et aopoval proceces; ) The Company il ecvel Al
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not im0 the ockcion f pios, e consucton o meinenanes, g
and o capebirte|,
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Il.  UTILISATION OF THE NON-OPERATING FUNDS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER AND ITS CONNECTED PERSONS DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the reporting period, neither the controlling shareholder of the Company, nor any of its connected persons has utilised the
non-operating funds of the Company.

Ill. GUARANTEES IN VIOLATION

During the reporting period, the Company did not provide external guarantees in violation of any specified decision-making
procedures.

IV. APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF AUDITORS

At the 2022 Annual General Meeting held on 27 June 2023, the Company has considered and approved the appointment of
KPMG Huazhen LLP to provide professional services to the Company for its domestic financial reporting and internal control
reporting, U.S. financial reporting and internal control for the year 2023 and appointment of KPMG to provide professional services
to the Company for its Hong Kong financial reporting for the year 2023, and authorised the Board of Directors of the company to
determine the remuneration according to the specific work conditions.

V. BANKRUPTCY OR RESTRUCTURING EVENTS

During the reporting period, the Company was not involved in any bankruptcy or restructuring events.

VI. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the reporting period, the Company was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration.

VIl. SUSPECTED VIOLATION OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF, PENALTY
ON AND RECTIFICATION ON THE LISTED COMPANIES, ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT, CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
AND THEIR DE FACTO CONTROLLERS

During the reporting period, the Company did not have the above situation.

124  China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us

Operating
Results

Corporate
Governance

Financial
Report

VIIl. Financial Business Between the Company and Its Related Financial
Company, and Between Financial Company Controlled by the Company

and Related Parties

1. Deposits Business
Unit: RMB million
Amount incurred
during the period
The Total amount  Total amount
maximum Balance at the deposited withdrawn Balance at
Related party daily Deposit interest  beginning of during the during the the end of
Related party relationship deposit limit rate range the period current period  current period the period
Finance Company  Under the same 20,000 0.3%-2.1% 14,118 478,610 483,788 8,940
controlling shareholder
Total / / / 14,118 478,610 483,788 8,940
Note: The deposit interest rate range does not include small foreign currency deposits.
2. Loan Business
Unit: RMB million
Amount incurred
during the period
Total
Balance at the Total loans repayment  Balance at
Related party Loan interest  beginning of during the during the the end of
Related party relationship Loan limit rate range the period current period current period the period
Finance Company  Under the same 20,000 2.8%-3.3% 6,363 13,768 12,689 7,442
controlling shareholder
Total / / / 6,363 13,768 12,689 7,442
3. Credit Business and Other Financial Business
Unit: RMB million
Related party
Related party relationship Type of business Total amount Amount incurred
Finance Company Under the same Commission charges 7.5 1
controlling shareholder
Finance Company Under the same Comprehensive credit facilities 30,000 9,843

controlling shareholder

Annual Report 2023 125



IMPORTANT MATTERS

IX. MAJOR CONTRACTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE

Trust, Sub-contracting and Lease

During the reporting period, the Company did not enter into any trust or sub-contracting arrangement.

Please refer to the sections headed “Summary of Flest Data” in “Principal Accounting Information and Financial Indicators” and
“Connected Transactions” in “Report of Directors” for matters related to the Company’s lease transactions during the reporting

period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a robust and effective risk management and internal monitoring system, evaluating its
effectiveness, and safeguarding the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets. The risk management and internal
monitoring systems established by the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.

The Board has established procedures to identify, assess and manage significant risks to the Company, including updating risk
management and internal monitoring systems when the business environments or regulatory guidelines are changed. The Board
has reviewed the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring systems for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2023 and
is satisfied with their effectiveness.

I. Internal control responsibility statement and internal control system
construction

The Board shall be responsible for the establishment and implementation of a sound and effective internal control system and the
evaluation of its effectiveness, and truthfully disclosing the internal control evaluation report. The objectives of the internal control of
the Company are to reasonably ensure its operation and management are in compliance with laws and regulations, assets safety,
the truthfulness and completeness of financial reports and relevant information, to improve operation efficiency and effects, and to
facilitate the Company to achieve its development strategic targets. Due to its inherent limitations, internal control can only provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the above objectives.

The Board has made a self-evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control in accordance with the Basic Norms
for Enterprise Internal Control and its accompanying guidelines, and believes that as at 31 December 2023 (the benchmark date
of the assessment report on internal control), the Company had effective internal control, there were no significant and important
defects in internal control related to financial reporting, and no significant and important defects in non-financial reporting related
internal control were found.

Il. DESCRIPTION OF AUDIT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

KPMG Huazhen LLP has issued relevant audit opinions in accordance with the Guidelines for the Evaluation of Internal Control
of Enterprises and the Practice Standards of Chinese Certified Public Accountants. For details, please refer to the website of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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lll. Exercise of internal control evaluation
1. Internal control organisation structure

The Company adopts the decentralised management of internal control, and has set out the linear management structure
composed of the Board of Directors, Audit and Risk Management Committee, Managers, Internal Control Team, and business
units and functional departments, which is shown as follows:

Board of Directors

Audit and Risk Management Committee

Managers

Internal Control Team

Business units and functional departments

The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the final achievements, and submitting annual statement on risk
management and internal control systems. Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for reviewing the internal control
of the Company, supervising the effective implementation of internal control and self-evaluation of internal control, evaluating the
effectiveness of internal control, urging the rectification of internal control defects, coordinating internal control audit and other
related matters, etc. Managers are responsible for organising and leading the daily operation of internal control of the Company.
The Internal Control Team is responsible for the specific organisation and implementation of the items. All business units and
departments are responsible for maintaining their respective internal control measures on-going and effective, describing and
updating their respective business processes and control points, identifying the record documents, recognising the significant
control measures, and organising the rectification of defects.
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2. Evaluation procedures of internal control

Based on the internal control framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the U.S. Treadway Commission
(“COSQ"), the evaluation of internal control of the Company is designed on five components of internal control, and fully complies
with relevant requirement of U.S. Sarbanes — Oxley Act, PRC Standard Regulations on Corporate Internal Control and its
supporting guidelines and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. In order to further enhance the quality of internal control, the Company
engaged a professional independent third-party institution for guidance.

The Company has determined the content involved in the evaluation of internal control in the qualitative and quantitative principles,
mainly including the Company-level internal control framework and the internal control at the level of business process. The
Company-level internal control framework is based on the five components set down by the COSO, namely control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The level of business process fully reflects the
industrial characteristics of aviation transport enterprises. The evaluation content covers the information related to both financial
reports and non-financial reports, and the evaluated units include the Company itself and all of its subsidiaries.

The Company performs the annual evaluation of internal control in the flow of plan, record, test, rectification and report stages.

Firstly, the internal control at the level of the Company and the business process is recorded and updated by means of interview,
questionnaire, etc. in order to identify and analyse the risks. The walk-through test is performed to evaluate the effectiveness of
the design of internal control. Secondly, the risks are marked and ranked to determine areas with high, moderate and low risks
and screen out key risk control points by combing the risk control points. These key risk control points are tested by means of
observation, interview, re-calculation, inspection, confirmation, knowledge evaluation, system inquiry, etc. so as to evaluate the
effectiveness of the implementation of internal control.

In case of any defects of the internal control, the Company will analyse the cause of such defects, put forward rectification
opinions and management suggestions and urge the process principal concerned to develop effective rectification measures and
implement the same for rectification purposes to eventually achieve effective risk control. Once great or major defects of internal
control are found, they will be reported to Managers and the Audit and Risk Management Committee without delay.

3. Key features of the evaluation of internal control

With years of accumulation, the evaluation of internal control of the Company has gradually developed the working method and
characteristics adapted to the management pattern of the Company. Firstly, the management structure has defined responsibility,
clear division of work and clear path of reporting complying with the listing regulatory requirements in the SSE and the Stock
Exchange. Secondly, the evaluation covers most organisation, relates to full processes and has a complete set of basic data.
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IV. Summary of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board recognises its responsibility for supervising the risk management and internal control system of the Group and
reviews the effectiveness of the same at least once a year by the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee assists the Board in performing its role in supervising finance, operation, compliance, risk management
and internal monitoring as well as financial and internal audit function resources of the Group and in corporate governance. The
Group has the internal audit function.

Based on the disclosure above, appropriate policies and monitoring have been established and formulated to ensure that the
encumbered assets will not be used or disposed of without approval and comply with and abide by relevant laws, regulations
and rules. Reliable financial and accounting records are kept in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Major risks with potential effect on the performance of the Group are properly identified and managed. The system
and the internal control can only make a reasonable but not absolute guarantee to prevent major misrepresentations or losses,
which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to meet business objectives.

The Company regulates the processing and issuance of inside information in accordance with a number of inside information
disclosure procedures to ensure the proper maintenance of confidentiality prior to the disclosure of such information and to
publish such information in an efficient and consistent manner.

As disclosed above, the Audit and Risk Management Committee held 7 meetings in 2023, where the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company were reviewed. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has conducted
through the Audit and Risk Management Committee an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company covering all significant financial, operating and compliance controls, and considers the risk
management and internal control of the Company is effective and adequate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 135 to 239, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS Accounting Standards”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets associated with tax losses

Refer to note 2(y), note 3(c), note 16 and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group reported deferred tax assets associated with
tax losses in the amount of RMB7,743 milion as of 31
December 2023. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
The Group’s forecast of future taxable profits used in the
recognition of deferred tax assets associated with tax losses
includes assumptions on traffic revenue growth rates and
related operating costs growth rates (“forecasted growth
rates”).

We identified the assessment of recognition of deferred tax
assets associated with tax losses as a key audit matter.
The forecast of future taxable profits involved a high
degree of subjectivity and auditor judgment to evaluate the
assumptions on the forecasted growth rates. The forecasted
growth rates are challenging to test as minor changes to
those assumptions would have a significant effect on the
Group’s assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets.
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The primary procedures we performed to address this key audit
matter included the following.

We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls over the Group’s
process in assessing the recognition of deferred tax
assets. This included controls related to the development
of forecasted growth rates used in the forecast of future
taxable profits;

We assessed the reasonableness of forecasted growth
rates adopted in the Group’s forecast of future taxable
profits by comparing them with internally and externally
derived data including the Group’s future operation plans
and industry data;

We evaluated the Group’s ability to accurately forecast by
comparing the Group’s historical forecasted growth rates
to the actual results; and

We performed sensitivity analysis over the forecasted
growth rates assumptions to assess their impact on
the assessment of recognition of deferred tax assets
associated with tax losses.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of interal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Operating revenue 5
Traffic revenue 151,445 80,901
Other operating revenue 8,484 6,158
Total operating revenue 159,929 87,059
Operating expenses
Flight operation expenses 7 76,799 51,241
Maintenance expenses 8 14,390 11,224
Aircraft and transportation service expenses 9 26,487 17,506
Promotion and selling expenses 10 6,349 4,355
General and administrative expenses 11 4,150 3,511
Depreciation and amortisation 12 27,165 24,266
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets 19/21 (123) 449
Others 3,835 2,710
Total operating expenses 159,052 115,262
_Othernetincome = .. “ .. 4680 5861
Operating profit/(losses) 5,557 (22,542)
Interest income 361 457
Interest expense 15 (5,928) (6,0006)
Exchange loss, net 37 (687) (3,619)
Share of associates’ results 24 (2,244) (13)
Share of joint ventures’ results 25 546 304
Changes in fair value of financial assets/liabilities 28 874 (388)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 215
Gain on disposal of associates - 42
Loss before income tax (1,521) (31,550)
Income tax 16 (1,436) (2,166)
Loss for the year (2,957) (33,716)
Loss attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 18 (4,140) (32,699)
Non-controlling interests 1,183 (1,017)
Loss for the year (2,957) (33,716)
Loss per share
Basic and diluted (expressed in RMB per share) 18 (0.23) (1.90)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Loss for the year (2,957) (33,716)
Other comprehensive income: 17
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
— Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income — net movement in fair value reserve (non-recycling) (112) 142
— Income tax effect of the above items 28 (35)

ltems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
— Differences resulting from the translation of foreign currency
financial statements 1

1
— Income tax effect of the above items - =
_Other comprehensive income fortheyear =~ =~ @©) ... 108
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,040) (33,608)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (4,185) (32,637)
Non-controlling interests 1,145 971)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,040) (33,608)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 19 93,575 90,517
Construction in progress 20 34,177 33,300
Right-of-use assets 21 127,634 131,954
Goodwill 22 237 237
Interests in associates 24 2,714 2,688
Interests in joint ventures 25 4,005 3,618
Aircraft lease deposits 386 354
Other equity instrument investments 26 547 659
Other non-current financial assets 26 3,419 436
Derivative financial assets 27 - 27
Amounts due from related companies 42 262 357
Deferred tax assets 29(b) 12,279 12,471
Other assets 30 2,422 2,274
281,657 278,792
Current assets
Inventories 31 1,565 1,387
Trade receivables 32 3,161 2,619
Other receivables 88 9,167 7,939
Cash and cash equivalents 34 9,531 19,889
Assets held for sale 35 198 709
Restricted bank deposits 137 174
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 695 619
Other financial assets 26 3,157 =
Derivative financial assets 27 4 2
Amounts due from related companies 42 324 116
27,939 33,454
Current liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 27 907 1,708
Borrowings 36 65,694 85,336
Lease liabilities 37 19,261 21,799
Trade and bills payables 38 2,004 1,537
Contract liabilities 39 1,509 1,496
Sales in advance of carriage 40 7,179 3,383
Current income tax 346 312
Amounts due to related companies 42 594 435
Accrued expenses 43 23,142 17,636
Other liabilities 44 8,800 7,816
129,436 141,458
Net current liabilities (101,497) (108,004)
Total assets less current liabilities 180,160 170,788
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 36 50,522 34,444
Lease liabilities 37 69,232 72,963
Other non-current liabilities 41 1,497 1,954
Amounts due to related companies 42 36 85
Provision for major overhauls 45 5,731 5,199
Deferred benefits and gains 46 752 760
Deferred tax liabilities 29(b) 23 24
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 127,793 115429
Net assets 52,367 55,359
Capital and reserves
Share capital 47 18,121 18,121
Reserves 18,950 23,154
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 37,071 41,275
Non-controlling interests 15,296 14,084
Total equity 52,367 55,359

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024.

Ma Xu Lun Han Wen Sheng
Director Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Fair value Non-
Share Share reserve Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium  (non-recycling) reserves losses Total interests  Total equity

(Note 47)  (Note 48(b)) (Note 48(c))  (Note 48(d))
RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million

Balance at 1 January 2022 16,948 47,378 156 3,390 1) 67,851 16,657 84,508
Changes in equity for 2022:
Loss for the year - - - - (32,699 (32,699) (1,017) (33,716)
Other comprehensive income = = 61 1 = 62 46 108
Total comprehensive income - - 61 1 (32,699 (32,637) 971) (33,608)
Distributions to non-controlling interests - - - - - - 912 912
Issuance of shares 1,173 4,873 - - - 6,046 - 6,046
Capital injection from non-controlling

interests - - - 15 - 15 12 27
Decrease in non-controlling interests

as a result of disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - (702) (702)
Disposal of an equity instrument
investment - - 40 - (40) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 18,121 52,251 257 3,406 (32,760) 41,275 14,084 55,359
Changes in equity for 2023:
Loss for the year - - - - (4,140) (4,140 1,183 (2,957)
Other comprehensive income - - (46) 1 - (45) (38) (83)
Total comprehensive income - - (46) 1 (4,140) (4,185) 1,145 (3,040)
Distributions to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (909) (909)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests

in a subsidiary - - - (19) - (19) (1) (30)
Capital injection from non-controlling

interests - - - - - - 1,017 1,017
Decrease in non-controlling interests as

a result of liquidation of subsidiaries - - - - - - (30) (30)
Balance at 31 December 2023 18,121 52,251 21 3,388 (36,900) 37,0M 15,296 52,367

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Operating activities
Cash generated from operating activities 34(b) 41,370 5,807
Interest received 387 444
Interest paid (6,414) (6,359)
Income tax paid (1,236) (2,342)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 34,107 (2,450)
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets 1,736 4,799
Dividends received from associates 56 34
Dividends received from joint ventures 240 97
Dividends received from other equity instrument investments and
other non-current financial assets 5 8
Acquisition of certificates of deposits (6,146) =
Acquisition of term deposits (339) (648)
Proceeds from disposal of derivative financial instruments 5 -
Proceeds from maturity of term deposits 260 698
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other assets (11,369) (11,696)
Capital injection for an associate (2,340) =
Acquisition of associates (6) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - 724
Proceeds from disposal of associates - 43
Proceeds from disposal of other equity instrument investments and
other non-current financial assets - 90
Net cash used in investing activities (17,898) (5,851)
Financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings 34(c) 70,978 75,429
Proceeds from ultra-short-term financing bills 34(c) 10,700 27,500
Proceeds from corporate bonds 34(c) 2,000 3,900
Repayment of bank borrowings 34(c) (56,050) (36,359)
Repayment of ultra-short-term financing bills 34(c) (23,200) (39,600)
Repayment of corporate bonds 34(c) (8,000) (7,500)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 34(c) (23,058) (21,960)
Capital injections from non-controlling interests 1,017 116
Refund of aircraft lease deposits 26 13
Proceeds from disposal of derivative financial instruments 21 =
Payments for aircraft lease deposits (52) (18)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (914) (909)
Payments to non-controlling interests for liquidation of a subsidiary (30) =
Payment for purchase of non-controlling interest (30) =
Proceeds from issuance of shares - 6,046
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (26,592) 6,658
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (10,383) (1,643)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 19,889 21,456
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents 25 76
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 34(a) 9,531 19,889

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

Corporate information

China Southern Airlines Company Limited (the “Company”), a joint stock limited company, was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 25 March 1995. The address of the Company’s registered office is Unit
301, 3/F, Office Tower, Guanhao Science Park Phase |, 12 Yuyan Street, Huangpu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
Province, Chinese Mainland. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation of
civil aviation, including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery and other extended transportation services.

The Company’s majority interest is owned by China Southern Air Holding Company Limited (‘CSAH”), a state-owned
enterprise incorporated in Chinese Mainland.

The Company’s shares are traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Material accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting Standards,
which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRS Accounting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”). The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(b) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- other equity instrument investments (see Note 2(f));

- other financial assets and other non-current financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL”)) (see Note 2(f));
and

- derivative financial assets/liabilities (see Note 2(g)).

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell (see Note 2(r)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Annual Report 2023 141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS Accounting Standards that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

(i)

New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has applied the following new and amended IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB to these
financial statements for the current accounting period:

° IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

° Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: Definition of
accounting estimates

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

° Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: International tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period. Impacts of the adoption of the new and amended IFRS Accounting Standards are discussed below:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, which replaces IFRS 4, sets out the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements
applicable to issuers of insurance contracts. The standard does not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not have contracts within the scope of IFRS 17.

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors:

Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on the distinction between changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates. The amendments do not have a material impact on these financial statements
as the Group’s approach in distinguishing changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates is
consistent with the amendments.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2,

Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments require entities to disclose material accounting policy information and provide guidance on
applying the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosure. The Group has revisited the accounting policy
information it has been disclosing and considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising

from a single transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption such that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences on initial recognition such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax assets and
liabilities are required to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date.
For all other transactions, the amendments are applied to those transactions that occur after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the initial recognition exemption to lease transactions and
had recognised the related deferred tax, except that the Group previously determined the temporary difference
arising from a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on a net basis on the basis they arise from a single
transaction. Following the amendments, the Group has determined the temporary differences in relation to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. The change primarily impacts disclosures of components of deferred
tax assets and liabilities in the annual financial statements, but does not impact the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as the related deferred tax balances qualify for
offsetting under IAS 12.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: International tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

The amendments introduce a temporary mandatory exception from deferred tax accounting for the income tax
arising from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (‘OECD”) (income tax arising from such tax laws is
hereafter referred to as “Pillar Two income taxes”), including tax laws that implement qualified domestic minimum
top-up taxes described in those rules. The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements about such tax.
The amendments are immediately effective upon issuance and require retrospective application.

The Group operates regional routes and international flights, and has overseas offices across all continents, which
has recently enacted new tax laws to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the OECD. The new
tax laws take effect no early than 1 January 2024. As the new tax laws are not yet effective, the Group does not
expect any current tax impact for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-

LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance
takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions to
mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce the long service payment (‘LSP”) in respect of an employee’s
service from the Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before
the Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong” that provides accounting guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account for the accrued benefits derived from
mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

However, applying this approach, upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made; instead these deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of service in the same manner as
the gross LSP benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed its accounting
policy in connection with its LSP liability and has applied the above HKICPA guidance retrospectively. The
cessation of applying the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 in conjunction with the enactment
of the Amendment Ordinance resulted in a catch-up profit or loss adjustment in June 2022 for the service cost
up to that date and consequential impacts on current service cost, interest expense and remeasurement effects
from changes in actuarial assumptions for the rest of 2022, with the corresponding adjustment to the comparative
carrying amount of the LSP liability. This change in accounting policy did not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Intra-group transactions and balances and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction
gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

For each business combination, the Group recognised non-controlling interests (“NCI”) based on the NCI's proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

NCI are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. NCI in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between NCI and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of NCI and other contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with Note 2(p), Note 2(q) or Note 2(x) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group'’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related
NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2(|)iii), unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale) (see
Note 2(r)).

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred in the
acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Transaction costs are expensed
as incurred.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at each
reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

Associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies.

The Group has applied IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (“IFRS 117) to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

An interest in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method and is initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Subsequently, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of those investees, until the date on which significant influence or
joint control ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2())(iii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is tested
annually for impairment (see Note 2()(iii)).

Other investments in securities

The Group'’s policies for investments in securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVPL for which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see Note 4(g)(i). These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Non-equity investments
Non-equity investments are classified into one of the following measurement categories:
- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Expected credit losses, interest income calculated using the effective

interest method (see Note 2(z)(ii)(c)), foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Other investments in securities (continued)

(i) Non-equity investments (continued)

= fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as if the financial asset was measured at
amortised cost. The difference between the fair value and the amortised cost is recognised in OCI. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated in OCl is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- FVPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in OCIl. Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. If such election is made for a particular investment, at the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings and not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income (see Note 2(z)(ii)(0)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments and any
unrealised gains or losses, being changes in fair value of the derivatives, are recognised in the profit or loss immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land held under a lease and/or buildings which are owned to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(l)iii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of investment properties, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives or lease term. Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in accordance with Note 2(z)(ii)(@).
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(I)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(ab)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

When each major aircraft overhaul is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the component of
aircraft and is depreciated over the appropriate maintenance cycles. Components related to airframe overhaul cost, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over 6 to 12 years. Components related to engine overhaul cost, are depreciated on
the units of production method over the expected flying hours of 9-42 thousand hours. Upon completion of an overhaul,
any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous overhaul is derecognised and charged to the consolidated
income statement.

Except for components related to overhaul costs, the depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated
to write off the cost of items, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings 5 to 35 years
Owned aircraft 15 to 20 years
Other flight equipment
— Jet engines 15 to 20 years
— Others, including rotables 3 to 15 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 4 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in consolidated
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents advance payments for the acquisition of aircraft and flight equipment, office
buildings, various infrastructure projects under construction and equipment pending for installation, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 2())(iii). Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding
any delay in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant PRC authorities.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

China Southern Airlines Company Limited



(k)

About Us Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

Material accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

For a contract that contains more than a lease, a lessee and lessor shall separate the contract and account for
each lease component respectively. For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, a lessee
and lessor shall separate lease components from non-lease components. However, when the Group is a
lessee of land use right and buildings, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease
components, and instead, account for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component. When separate lease components from non-lease components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use assets and a lease liability, except for
leases that have a short lease term of 12 months or less, and leases of low-value items. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value item, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. If not capitalised, the associated lease payments are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability, and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use assets recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(i) and Note 2(l)(iii)).

For the measurement of component accounting for right-of-use assets and subsequent major overhaul performed,
see Note 2()).

The cost of acquiring land held under a lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of
lease terms which range from 30 to 70 years.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
has been reduced to zero.
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(k) Leased assets (continued)
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(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a lease modification, which means a change in the scope of
a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract, if such modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in right-of-use assets
and presents lease liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. Otherwise, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with Note 2(z)(ii)().

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use assets arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption described in Note 2(K)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

Under a finance lease, at the commencement date, the Group recognises the finance lease receivable and
derecognises the finance lease asset. The finance lease receivable is initially measured at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The net investment in the lease is measured at the aggregate of the unguaranteed
residual value and the present value of the lease receivable that are not received at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group recognises finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return. The derecognition and impairment of the finance lease receivable are recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2(). Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of net investment in the
lease are recognised as income as they are earned.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL”s) on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables); and

= lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securitiess measured at FVPL, equity securities designated
at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls between the contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following rates if the effect is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, and trade and other receivables: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate;
- lease receivables: discount rate used in the measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information that is available without

undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

= 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date; (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12

months); and

- lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected lives of the
items to which the ECL model applies.
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(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
= other financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

China Southern Airlines Company Limited



About Us Operating Corporate Financial
Results Governance Report

2 Material accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort, that demonstrates that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition even though the
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2(z)(ii)(c) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of

the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the group on terms that the group would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease receivables (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and lease receivable is written off to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group otherwise determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

After initial recognition at fair value, the Group, as an issuer of such a contract, subsequently measure it at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract and remeasures the above liability
at a higher amount when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than the carrying amount in
respect of the guarantees.

A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will default has increased significantly since
the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in Note 2(1)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
— Investment properties;
— Other property, plant and equipment;
- Right-of-use assets;
- Construction in progress;
- Goodwill;
- Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in the Company’s statement of financial position.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.
For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating units
(“CGU"s). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only

to the extent that the resulting carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see Note 2(I)(i) and 2(l)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill, if any, are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss of any, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

(n)

(o)

156

Inventories, which consist primarily of consumable spare parts and supplies, are stated at cost less any applicable
provision for obsolescence, and are charged to profit or loss when used in operations. Cost represents the average unit
cost.

Inventories held for sale or disposal are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 2(z)). A contract liability is also recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such latter cases, a corresponding
receivable is also recognised (see Note 2(0)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration and only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are initially measured at their transaction price.

Trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and other receivables are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost (see Note 2())(i)).
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently, these borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with
Note 2(ab).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables
are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal group comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and liabilities
on a pro-rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to deferred tax assets, employee benefits assets, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment properties, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been generally within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL (see Note 2(1)(i)).

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Deferred benefits and gains

In connection with the acquisitions of certain aircraft and engines, the Group receives various credits. Such credits are
deferred until the aircraft and engines are delivered, at which time they are applied as a reduction of the cost of acquiring
the aircraft and engines, resulting in a reduction of future depreciation.

Convertible bonds

(i)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component are compound financial instruments that can be converted to
ordinary shares at the option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with
changes in fair value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the difference
between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their
initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest is recognised in profit or loss. The equity component is not remeasured and is recognised in the
other reserve until either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the other reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bonds are redeemed, the other reserve is released directly to retained earnings.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

(x) Convertible bonds (continued)

)

(i) Other convertible bonds

For convertible bonds which do not contain an equity component, at initial recognition, the derivative component
is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)). Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the host liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the host liability and derivative components
in proportion to their initial carrying amounts. The portion of the transaction costs relating to the host liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance with Note 2(g). The host liability component
is subsequently carried at amortised cost using effective interest method. Interest related to the host liability
component is recognised in profit or loss.

If the bonds are converted, the derivative financial instruments, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax expenses comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable
is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related to income
taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any
tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

= taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill; and

- those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar
Two model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
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v)

(z)
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of
existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

° the same taxable entity; or
° different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for substantially all of its revenue transactions and recognises revenue on a gross basis.
In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
goods or service before they are transferred to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use
of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the goods or service. In limited revenue transactions,
the Group acts as an agent and recognises revenue on a net basis.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

(z) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties such as value added tax or other sales taxes.

(a)

Passenger, cargo and mail revenue

Revenue is recognised when passenger, cargo and mail transportation services are provided. Unearned
passenger revenue at the reporting date is included within “sales in advance of carriage” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Ticket breakage relates to a portion of contractual rights that the Group does not expect to be exercised.

When the Group expects that the consideration received in advance of carriage is not refundable, and the
customer is likely to give up a portion of the contractual rights, the Group recognises, in proportion to the
pattern of rights exercised by the customer, the breakage amount to which the Group expects to be entitled
as revenue. If the Group does not expect to be entitled to a breakage amount, the Group recognises the
expected breakage amount as revenue when the likelihood of the customer exercising its remaining rights
becomes remote.

Revenue from airline-related business is recognised when the customers obtain control of the relevant
services.

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained (for example, a sales
commission). As a practical expedient, the Group recognises sales commission (that are regarded as
directly related incremental costs of obtaining transportation contracts) as an expense when incurred, as the
amortisation period is one year or less.

Frequent flyer revenue

The Group maintains two major frequent flyer award programmes, namely, the China Southern Airlines Sky
Pearl Club and the Xiamen Airlines’ Egret Card Frequent Flyer Programme, which provide travel and other
awards to members based on accumulated mileages.

According to the frequent flyer award programmes, the Group allocates the transaction price received in
relation to mileage earning flights to flight and mileage awarded on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,
and recognised the portion allocated to mileage awarded as “contract liabilities”. The mileage awarded to
customers by third parties through means other than flights are initially recognised as “contract liabilities”.

The Group estimates the stand-alone selling price of mileage awarded through mileage eaming flights
based on inputs and assumptions derived from historical data, including the estimates on the percentage
of mileage awarded that are expected to be redeemed (“expected redemption rate”). Contract liabilities in
relation to mileage awarded are subsequently recognised as revenue when the mileage is redeemed and
the related benefits are received or used. Revenue on redeemed flights is recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(z)(i)(a), and revenue on redeemed goods or services is recognised when
the customers obtain control of the goods or services.
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2 Material accounting policies (continued)

(z) Revenue and other income (continued)

162

(i) Revenue from other sources and other income

(a)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term, of
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term
of the lease. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest rate” is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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(aa) Maintenance and overhaul costs

In respect of owned and leased aircraft, components within the aircraft subject to replacement during major overhauls
are recognised as Note 2(i) and Note 2(k). Other routine maintenance, repairs and overhauls are charged to consolidated
income statement as and when incurred.

In respect of certain leased aircraft, the Group has responsibility to fulfil certain return conditions under relevant lease
agreements. In order to fulfil these return conditions, major overhauls are required to be conducted. Accordingly, except
for the estimated costs of major overhauls recognised as right-of-use assets at the lease commencement date, see Note
2(k), other estimated costs of major overhauls are accrued and charged to the consolidated income statement over the
estimated overhaul period. Differences between the estimated costs and the actual costs of overhauls are charged to
consolidated income statement in the period when the overhaul is performed.

(ab) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

(ac) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement

schemes

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes are expensed as the related service is
provided.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate

employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

(ac) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Retirement benefits

According to IAS 19, Employee Benefits, an entity shall account not only for its legal obligation under the formal
terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal
practices where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay the employee benefits. The Group believes the
payments of welfare subsidy to those retirees who retired before the establishment of Pension Scheme are
discretionary and have not created a legal or constructive obligation. Such payments are made according to the
Group’s business performance, and can be suspended at any time.

(ad) Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Renminbi at the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into
Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which
the Group initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated
into Renminbi at the PBOC exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

(ae) Related parties

164

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
0] has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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(ae) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

U]

(i)

(i)

)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

(vil

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(af) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management, who is the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s financial position and results of operations are sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be reasonable and which form
the basis for making judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. On an ongoing
basis, management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and
conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. In addition to the assumptions and estimates regarding fair value measurements of
financial instruments disclosed in Note 4(g), the Group believes the following also involve key accounting estimates and
judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Impairment of long-lived assets (other than goodwill)

As discussed in Note 2())(iii), at the end of each reporting period, the Group tests for impairment for long-lived assets
or cash-generating units (“CGUS”) (a portion of which related to aircraft and other flight equipment including rotables in
property, plant and equipment, aircraft and engines in right-of-use assets (“aircraft and related equipment”)) to determine
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of long-lived assets or CGUs may not be recoverable, the assets or CGUs may be considered “impaired”, and
an impairment loss may be recognised.

The recoverable amount of assets or CGUs are the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. As
the fair value of certain assets or CGUs may not be publicly available, the Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions for projections of traffic revenue and operating costs and discount rates.
In particular, in determining the value in use of the Group’s aircraft and related equipment, significant judgements are
required on the accounting estimates which are based on the assumptions relating to traffic revenue growth rates,
operating costs growth rates and discount rates applied, among which, operating costs consist of jet fuel costs, landing
and navigation fees, maintenance expenses, payroll and welfare.

Frequent flyer revenue

According to the frequent flyer award programmes, the allocation of stand-alone selling price of the mileage awarded
involves the estimation of the expected redemption rate.

The expected redemption rate is estimated based on historical experience of mileage redemption, taking into
consideration expected future mileage redemption patterns, which are associated with changes in the terms of mileage
programs and customer behaviour. Different estimates could significantly affect the estimated contract liabilities and the
results of operations.
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Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax assets associated with tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. In determining the forecast of future taxable profits, significant
judgements are required on the accounting estimates which are based on the assumptions relating to traffic revenue
growth rates and related operating costs growth rates, among which, operating costs consist of jet fuel costs, landing
and navigation fees, maintenance expenses, payroll and welfare. Different estimates could significantly affect the
recognition of deferred tax assets associated with tax losses.

Depreciation and amortisation

As disclosed in Note 2() and Note 2(k), components related to engine overhaul costs under property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets were depreciated on the units of production method based on flying hours. The
expected flying hours of engines are based on the Group’s historical overhaul experience with similar engine models.
Except for components related to engine overhaul costs, other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives or lease term, which is shorter, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with
similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation expense to be recorded during any
financial year. The depreciation and amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Provision for major overhauls

As disclosed in Note 2(k) and Note 2(aa), provision for the cost of major overhauls to fulfil the lease return conditions
involves estimation of the expected overhaul cycles and overhaul costs, which are based on the historical experience
of actual costs incurred for overhauls of airframes and engines of the same or similar types and current economic and
airline-related developments. Different estimates could significantly affect the estimated provision and the results of
operations.

Ticket breakage revenue

The Group recognises, in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by the customer, the breakage amount to which
the Group expects to be entitled as ticket breakage revenue. Such portion is estimated based on the Group’s historical
experiences, and the estimated revenue is recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty is resolved. Different estimates could significantly
affect the ticket breakage revenue recognised in the current financial year.
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168

Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

The Group is exposed to liquidity, interest rate, currency, credit risks and commodity jet fuel price risk in the normal
course of business. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial market
and seeks to minimise the adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB101,497 million (31
December 2022: RMB108,004 million). For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a net cash inflow
from operating activities of RMB34,107 million (31 December 2022: net cash outflow RMB2,450 million), a net cash
outflow from investing activities of RMB17,898 milion (31 December 2022: RMB5,851 million) and a net cash outflow
from financing activities of RMB26,592 million (31 December 2022: net cash inflow RMB6,658 million), which in total
resulted in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB10,383 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,643 million).

The Group is dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations, its ability to maintain existing
external financing, and its ability to obtain new external financing to meet its debt obligations as they fall due and to
meet its committed future capital expenditures. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has obtained credit facilities of RMB396,794 million in aggregate granted by several banks
and other financial institute (31 December 2022: RMB320,530 million), among which approximately RMB266,766 million
was unutilised (31 December 2022: RMB223,729 milion). The Directors of the Company believe that sufficient financing
will be available to the Group when and where needed.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

2023 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but Carrying

1 year or less than less than More than amount at

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB milion RMB million RMB million

Borrowings 67,699 17,105 33,627 2,683 121,114 116,216

Lease liabilities 22,804 19,216 39,808 20,041 101,869 88,493
Trade, bills and other payables

and accrued charges 28,927 - - - 28,927 28,927

Long-term payables 198 97 7 - 302 289

119,628 36,418 73,442 22,724 252,212 233,925
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4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Liquidity risk (continued)

2022 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying

1 year or less than less than More than amount at

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

Borrowings 87,336 14,978 18,850 3,072 124,236 119,780

Lease liabilities 25,641 20,584 42,010 21,023 109,258 94,762
Trade and other payables and

accrued charges 22,290 - - - 22,290 22,290

Long-term payables 256 198 104 - 558 531

135,523 35,760 60,964 24,095 256,342 237,363

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities issued at floating and fixed interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively. The Group determines
the ratio of fixed-rate and floating-rate instruments according to the market environment and maintains an appropriate
combination of fixed-rate and floating-rate instruments by reviewing and monitoring it on a regular basis.

Interest rate swaps, denominated in United States Dollars (‘USD”), have been entered into to mitigate its cash flow
interest rate risk. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees with other third parties to exchange, at specified
intervals (primarily quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by
reference to the agreed notional amounts (Note 27(i)).

As at 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss after tax and decreased/increased the
Group's retained earnings by approximately RMB331 million (31 December 2022: RMB340 million).

In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating-rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss after tax (and retained earnings) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. This analysis is performed on the same basis as that for 2022.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax (and retained earnings) and
other components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those floating rate financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2023 169



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the PBOC or other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange or at a swap centre.

The Group has significant exposure to foreign currency risk as majority of the Group’s lease liabilities (Note 37) are
denominated in foreign currencies, principally USD, Euro and Japanese Yen. Depreciation or appreciation of Renminbi
against foreign currencies affects the Group’s results significantly because the Group’s foreign currency liabilities generally
exceed its foreign currency assets.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax and retained earnings that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. The range of such sensitivity was considered
to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date.

2023

Decrease/(increase)

Appreciation/ on loss after tax

(depreciation) of and increase/

Renminbi against (decrease) on

foreign currency retained earnings

RMB million

uSD 1% 320
(1%) (320)

Euro 1% 14
(1%) (14)

Japanese Yen 10% 13
(10%) (13)

2022

Decrease/(increase)

Appreciation/ on loss after tax

(depreciation) of and increase/

Renminbi against (decrease) on

foreign currency retained earnings

RMB million

uSD 1% 293
(1%) (293)

Euro 1% 15
(1%) (15)

Japanese Yen 10% 24
(10%) (24)
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of
the Group entities’ loss after tax and retained earnings measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments, borrowings, and lease liabilities held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables,
other non-current financial assets (amortised cost) and derivative financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are deposited with major reputable financial institutions in
Chinese Mainland, which management believes are of high credit quality. As the counterparties have favourable credit
ratings, the Group does not expect there to be a risk of default.

Trade receivables

A significant portion of the Group’s air tickets are sold by agents participating in the Biling and Settlement Plan (‘BSP”),
a clearing scheme between airlines and sales agents organised by International Air Transportation Association. The use
of the BSP reduces credit risk to the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the balance due from BSP agents amounted
to RMB632 million (31 December 2022: RMB287 million). The credit risk exposure to BSP and the remaining trade
receivables balance are monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis and the relevant credit risk is within management’s
expectations.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is further distinguished between air ticket receivables,
mileage credits sales receivables, receivables on cooperation flights and other trade receivables.
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4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for air ticket receivables as
at 31 December 2023:

31 December 2023

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rates amount allowance

% RMB miillion RMB million

Within 3 months 0.01% 2,155 -
More than 3 months but less than 1 year 50.00% 16 8
More than 1 year but less than 2 years 100.00% 28 28
More than 2 years but less than 3 years 100.00% 1 1
More than 3 years 100.00% 12 12
2,212 49

31 December 2022

Expected Gross carrying Loss

loss rates amount allowance

% RMB million RMB million

Within 3 months 0.01% 1,791 -
More than 3 months but less than 1 year 50.00% 43 21
More than 1 year but less than 2 years 100.00% 2 2
More than 2 years but less than 3 years 100.00% = =
More than 3 years 100.00% 13 13
1,849 36

Expected loss rates are estimated with reference to actual loss experience over the past years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

The credit risk of mileage credits sales receivables and receivables on cooperation flights are considered to be low. The
Group does not make credit loss allowance for these receivables.

The Group measures loss allowance for other trade receivables amounted to RMB15 million (31 December 2022:
RMB17 million) based on ECLs.
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Balance at 1 January 53 39
Amounts written off - 5)
Impairment losses reversed 4 4
Impairment losses recognised 15 23
Balance at 31 December 64 53

Other receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for other receivables equal to 12-month ECLs, unless when there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECLs.

Set out below are the movements of loss allowances measured at 12-month and lifetime expected credit losses for the

financial assets included in other receivables.

2023 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs

12-month  (not credit - (credit - 12-month (not credit - (credit -
ECLs impaired) impaired) Total ECLs impaired) impaired) Total
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million  RMB milion RMB milion RMB milion  RMB million
As at 1 January 3 14 119 136 1 9 148 168
Accrual - - - - 2 5 - 7
Reversal @ - - @ - = (29) (29)

As at

31 December 1 14 119 134 3 14 119 136

Derivative financial instruments

The Group entered into derivative financial instruments arrangements with counterparties such as banks. Such
arrangements are settled in net. As the counterparties have favourable credit ratings, the Group does not expect there to

be a risk of default.
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(e)

(f)
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Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Jet fuel price risk

The Group'’s results of operations may be significantly affected by fluctuations in fuel prices since the jet fuel expenses are
a significant cost for the Group. The Group may hedge a portion of the future fuel requirements through various financial
derivative instruments linked to certain fuel commodities to lock in fuel costs within a hedged price range. In 2023, the
Group entered into certain crude oil forward contracts to mitigate jet fuel price risk. As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of such financial derivative instruments is RMB4 million (31 December 2022: Nil) (Note 27).

A reasonable possible increase/decrease of 10% (2022:10%) in jet fuel price, with volume of fuel consumed and all
other variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the fuel costs by approximately RMB5,205 million (2022:
RMB3,267 million). The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s jet fuel costs that would
arise assuming that the change in fuel price had occurred at the beginning of the financial year.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives in managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
and to generate sufficient profit to maintain growth and provide returns to its shareholders, by securing access to finance
at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages its debt portfolio in conjunction with
projected financing requirements. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt ratio, which is calculated as total
liabilities divided by total assets. During 2023, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2022, was to maintain
a debt ratio at a range of levels to support the operations and development of the Group’s business in the long run. In
order to maintain or adjust the debt ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

Except for the compliance of certain financial covenants for maintaining the Group’s banking facilities and borrowings, the
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not

available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs
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4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(g) Fairvalue (continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into

Fair value at
31 December

Recurring fair value 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
measurement Note RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
Financial assets/(liabilities):
Other equity instrument

investments:

— Non-tradable listed shares 26 547 - - 547
Other non-current financial

assets:

— Listed shares 26 26 26 - -

— Non-listed shares 26 31 - - 31

— Certificates of deposit 26 3,065 - 3,065 -
Other financial assets:

— Certificates of deposit 26 3,157 - 3,157 -
Derivative financial assets:

— Crude oil forward contracts 27 4 - 4 -
Derivative financial liabilities:

— Derivative component of

convertible bonds 27 (907) - (907) -
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
Fair value at
31 December

Recurring fair value 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
measurement Note RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB million
Financial assets/(liabilities):
Other equity instrument

investments:

— Non-tradable listed shares 26 659 - - 659
Other non-current financial

assets:

— Listed shares 26 21 21 - -

— Non-listed shares 26 28 - - 28
Derivative financial assets:

— Interest rate swaps 27 29 - 29 -
Derivative financial liabilities:

— Derivative component of

convertible bonds 27 (1,708) - (1,708) -
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4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(g) Fair value (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

Fair value of certificates of deposit is measured by the expected recoverable amounts that would receive assuming
that these certificates of deposit had been sold at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of interest rate swaps in derivative financial assets is measured by discounting the expected receivable or
payable amounts under the assumption that these swaps had been terminated at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rates used are the US Treasury bond yield curve as at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of derivative component of convertible bonds is measured by using the Binomial Model. The major inputs
used in the Binomial Model are:

At 31 December At 31 December
2023 2022
Conversion price RMB6.17 RMB6.17
Stock price of A shares RMB5.88 RMB7.65
Stock market volatility 31.39% 33.29%
Risk-free interest rate 2.27% 2.46%
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range
Other equity instruments
investments
— Non-tradable listed shares Market approach- Discount for lack of marketability 32%
(M&(3) valuation multiples
Other non-current financial
assets
— Non-listed shares (2) Income approach- Expected profit growth rates during 8.95%-10.00%
discounted cash flow the projection period
Perpetual growth rates 1.66%-2.72%
Expected dividend payout rates 27%-33%
during the projection period
Perpetual dividend payout rates 80%
Discount rates 8.65%-11.77%
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4 Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(g) Fairvalue (continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

(1) The fair value of non-tradable listed shares are determined by market value adjusted for lack of marketability discount.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of marketability.

(2)  The fair value of these non-listed shares is determined by discounting projected cash flow series associated with
respective investments. The valuation takes into account the expected profit growth rates and expected dividend
payout rate of the investees. The discount rates used have been adjusted to reflect specific risks relating to respective
investees. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the expected profit growth rates during the projection
period, perpetual growth rate, expected dividend payout rates during the projection period and perpetual dividend
payout rate of respective investees, and negatively correlated to the discount rates.

(80  Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement of the Group’s non-tradable equity securities held for strategic
purposes are recognised in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive income. Upon disposal of the
equity securities, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income is transferred directly to retained earnings.

(i) Financial instruments not carried at fair value

All other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from/to related companies, trade
and other receivables, other non-current financial assets (amortised cost), trade and other payables, borrowings
and lease liabilities are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.
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5 Operating revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation, including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail
delivery, and other extended transportation services.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major service lines is as follows:

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Revenue from contracts with customers within
the scope of IFRS 15:
Disaggregated by service lines
— Traffic revenue
— Passenger 136,170 60,017
— Cargo and mail 15,275 20,884
— Commission income 3,164 2,073
— Cargo handling income 820 1,123
— Hotel and tour operation income 750 497
— Ground services income 473 282
— Alr catering service income 458 203
— General aviation income - 431
— Others 2,456 1,351
159,566 86,861
Revenue from other sources:
— Rental income
— Lease payments that are fixed or depend on an index
or arate 303 159
— Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate 60 39
19(e) 363 198
159,929 87,059

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes 6(b).
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Operating revenue (continued)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregated amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation, which is the unredeemed credits under the frequent flyer award programmes, amounted to RMB2,893 million
(81 December 2022: RMB3,173 million) (Note 39). This amount represents revenue expected to be recognised in the
future when the customers obtain control of the goods or services.

Segment reporting

Business segments

The Group has two reportable operating segments “airline transportation operations” and “other segments”, according
to internal organisation structure, managerial needs and internal reporting system. “Airline transportation operations”
comprises the Group’s passenger and cargo and mail operations. “Other segments” includes cargo handling, hotel and
tour operation, ground services, air catering services and other miscellaneous services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
based on financial results prepared under the People’s Republic of China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
(“PRC GAAP”). As such, the amount of each material reconciling item from the Group’s reportable segment loss before
taxation, assets and liabilities, which arises from different accounting policies, are set out in Note 6(c).

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties
at the then prevailing market prices.
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6 Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance is set out below.

The segment results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

Revenue from external customers 157,542 2,387 - - 159,929
Inter-segment sales 573 5,098 (5,671) - -
Reportable segment revenue 158,115 7,485 (5,671) - 159,929
Reportable segment (loss)/profit before

taxation (1,410) 613 (34) (814) (1,645)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit after

taxation (2,496) 474 (28) (1,032) (3,082)
Other segment information
Income tax 1,086 139 (6) 218 1,437
Interest income 352 20 (11) - 361
Interest expense 5,926 4! (69) - 5,928
Depreciation and amortisation 26,947 233 - - 27,180
Impairment losses 10 1 - - 11
Credit losses 10 (1) - - 9
Share of associates and joint ventures’

results - - - (1,698) (1,698)
Changes in fair value of financial assets/

liabilities - - - 874 874
Non-current assets additions during

the year* 27,981 745 (627) - 28,099
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6 Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

The segment results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million  RMB million
Revenue from external customers 85,935 1,124 - - 87,059
Inter-segment sales 410 3,161 (3,571) - -
Reportable segment revenue 86,345 4,285 (3,571) - 87,059
Reportable segment loss before
taxation (31,233) (452) ®) 167 (31,526)
Reportable segment loss after
taxation (33,339) (549) ®) 198 (33,698)
Other segment information
Income tax 2,106 97 = (31) 2,172
Interest income 549 20 (112) - 457
Interest expense 6,096 41 (131) - 6,006
Depreciation and amortisation 23,830 430 - - 24,260
Impairment losses 582 = = = 582
Credit losses 4 1 - - 3)
Share of associates and joint ventures’
results - - - 291 291
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates - - - 257 257
Changes in fair value of financial assets/
liabilities - - = (388) (388)
Non-current assets additions during
the year* 23,739 385 (312) - 23,812

Annual Report 2023 181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Airline
transportation Other
operations segments Elimination Unallocated* Total

RMB milion RMB milion RMB milion = RMB million RMB million

As at 31 December 2023

Reportable segment assets 291,170 7,654 (3,146) 13,548 309,226
Reportable segment liabilities 255,347 4,090 (3,115) 907 257,229
As at 31 December 2022

Reportable segment assets 301,356 5,677 (1,974) 6,942 312,001
Reportable segment liabilities 254,087 3,089 (1,997) 1,708 256,887

Unallocated assets primarily include interests in associates and joint ventures, other equity instrument investments, other
financial assets, other non-current financial assets (FVPL) and derivative financial assets. Unallocated liabilities primarily include
derivative financial liabilities. Unallocated results primarily include the share of results of associates and joint ventures, the fair
value movement of financial instruments recognised through profit or loss, dividend income from equity securities, and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

The additions of non-current assets do not include interests in associates and joint ventures, other equity instrument
investments, other non-current financial assets (FVPL), long-term receivables (including amounts due from related companies),
derivative financial assets and deferred tax assets.

(b) Geographical information

182

The Group’s business segments operate in three main geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis.

The Group’s revenue by geographical segment are analysed based on the following criteria:

(1)

Traffic revenue from services of both origin and destination within Chinese Mainland (excluding Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan (“Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan”)),
is classified as domestic revenue. Traffic revenue with origin and destination among Chinese Mainland, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan is classified as Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan revenue; while that with origin from or
destination to other overseas markets is classified as international revenue.
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6 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information (continued)

(2)  Revenue from commission income, cargo handling, hotel and tour operation, ground services, air catering services
and other miscellaneous services are classified on the basis of where the services are performed.

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Domestic 122,933 57,256
International 35,223 29,249
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 1,773 554
159,929 87,059

The major revenue earning assets of the Group are its aircraft fleet which is registered in Chinese Mainland and is
deployed across its worldwide route network. Majority of the Group’s other assets are located in Chinese Mainland.
CODM considers that there is no suitable basis for allocating such assets and related liabilities to geographical
locations. Accordingly, geographical segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed.

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment loss before income tax, assets and liabilities to
the consolidated figures as reported in the consolidated financial statements

2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Loss before income tax
Reportable segment loss before taxation 6(a) (1,645) (31,526)
Capitalisation of exchange difference of specific loans () (3) (25)
Government grants (ii) 1 1
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (iv) 126 -
Consolidated loss before income tax (1,521) (31,550)
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Assets
Reportable segment assets 6(a) 309,226 312,001
Capitalisation of exchange difference of specific loans () 11 14
Government grants (ii) (3) (4)
Adjustments arising from business combinations under
common control (iii) 237 237
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (iv) 126 -
Others (1) @)
Consolidated total assets 309,596 312,246
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(c)
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Segment reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment loss before income tax, assets and liabilities
to the consolidated figures as reported in the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount of reportable segment liabilities is the same as the amount of
consolidated total liabilities.

Notes:

() In accordance with the PRC GAAP, exchange difference arising on translation of specific loans and related interest
denominated in a foreign currency is capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying assets. Under IFRS Accounting Standards,
such exchange difference is recognised in income statement unless the exchange difference represents an adjustment to
interest.

(i) In accordance with the PRC GAAP, assets related government grants (other than special funds) are deducted from the cost of
the related assets. Special funds granted by the government and clearly defined in the approval documents as part of “capital
reserve” are accounted for as increase in capital reserve. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, assets related government grants
are deducted to the cost of the related assets. The difference is resulted from government grants received in previous years
and recognised in capital reserve under PRC GAAP.

(iii) In accordance with the PRC GAAP, the Company accounts for the business combination under common control by applying
the pooling-of-interest method. Under the pooling-of-interest method, the difference between the historical carrying amount
of the acquiree and the consideration paid is accounted for as an equity transaction. Business combinations under common
control are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year presented or, if
later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, relevant comparative figures are restated under PRC
GAAP. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, the Company adopts the purchase accounting method for acquisition of business
under common control.

(iv)  In accordance with the PRC GAAP, impairment loss of non-current assets cannot be reversed. Under IFRS Accounting

Standards, an impairment loss is reversed if there is indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset
other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased.
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7 Flight operation expenses
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Jet fuel costs 52,050 32,669
Flight personnel payroll and welfare 12,428 10,602
Air catering expenses 2,563 1,332
Civil Aviation Development Fund 1,305 704
Aircraft operating lease charges 1,110 791
Training expenses 885 898
Others 6,458 4,245
76,799 51,241
8 Maintenance expenses
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Aviation repair and maintenance charges 9,424 6,729
Staff payroll and welfare 3,581 3,162
Maintenance materials 1,385 1,333
14,390 11,224
9 Aircraft and transportation service expenses
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
LLanding and navigation fees 16,381 8,473
Ground service and other charges 10,106 9,033
26,487 17,506
10 Promotion and selling expenses
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Ticket office expenses 2,907 2,589
Sales commissions 1,406 442
Computer reservation services 810 289
Advertising and promotion 120 80
Others 1,106 955
6,349 4,355
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11 General and administrative expenses

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

General corporate expenses 3,594 3,255
Auditors’ remuneration 16 15
— Audit services 15 14
— Non-audit services 1 1
Credit losses 9 (©)]
Other taxes and levies 531 244
4,150 3,511

12 Depreciation and amortisation

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,124 8,659
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16,506 15,067
Other amortisation 535 540
27,165 24,266

13 Staff costs

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Salaries, wages and welfare 26,197 23,269
Defined contribution retirement scheme 3,210 2,798
Termination benefits 45 107
29,452 26,174

Staff costs relating to flight operations and maintenance are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately in Note 7 to Note 8 above.

Five highest paid individuals

None of the directors (2022: none), whose emoluments are reflected in Note 58, is among the five highest paid individuals
in the Group for 2023. The aggregate emoluments in respect of the five (2022: five) individuals during the year are as

follows:
2023 2022
RMB ’000 RMB 000
Salaries, wages and welfare 11,798 9,918
Retirement scheme contributions 821 749
12,619 10,667
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Five highest paid individuals (continued)
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The emoluments of the five (2022: five) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2023 2022

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 3 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 3

14 Other net income

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Government grants (Note) 3,785 4,688
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets

and assets held for sale

— Aircraft and spare engines 220 275

— Other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 140 25

Others 535 673

4,680 5,661

Note: Government grants mainly include subsidies granted by various local governments to encourage the Group to operate certain

routes to cities where these governments are located.

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies related to subsidies that have been recognised during the year

ended 31 December 2023.

15 Interest expense

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Interest on borrowings 3,000 2,797

Interest relating to lease liabilities (Note 21) 3,600 3,899
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss 6,600 6,696

Less: interest expense capitalised (Note) (672) (690)

5,928 6,006

Note: The weighted average interest rate used for interest capitalisation was 2.56% per annum in 2023 (2022

: 2.54%).
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16 Income tax

(@) Income tax expense in the consolidated income statement

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Current tax

— Provision for the year 1,203 1,854
— Under/(over)-provision in prior year 14 2
1,217 1,852

Deferred tax (Note 29)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 219 314
Income tax expense 1,436 2,166

In respect of a majority of the Group’s airlines operation outside Chinese Mainland, the Group has either obtained
exemptions from overseas taxation pursuant to the bilateral aviation agreements between the overseas governments and
Chinese government, or has sustained tax losses in those overseas jurisdictions. Accordingly, no provision for overseas
income tax has been accrued for overseas airlines operation in the current and prior years.

For the year of 2023, the Company and its branches and subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland are subject to income tax
rates ranging from 15% to 25% (2022: 15% to 25%), and certain subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong are subject

to income tax at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

(b) Reconciliation between actual income tax expense and calculated tax based on

accounting loss at applicable income tax rates

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Loss before income tax (1,521) (31,550)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to
loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned (Note 16(a)) (362) (7,678)
Adjustments for tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 109 90
Share of results of associates and joint ventures and
other non-taxable income 427 (76)
Unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences for which no
deferred tax assets were recognised 1,345 6,956
Reversal of tax losses recognised as deferred tax assets in prior years 33 2,916
Utilisation of unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences for
which no deferred tax assets were recognised in prior years (96) 1)
Under/(over)-provision in prior year 14 )
Super deduction of research and development expenses (34) (39)
Income tax expense 1,436 2,166
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17 Other comprehensive income
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Equity investments measured at FVOCI:
Changes in fair value recognised during the year (112) 142
Net deferred tax credited/(debited) to other comprehensive income 28 (35)
(84) 107
Differences resulting from the translation of foreign currency
financial statements 1 1
Other comprehensive income for the year (83) 108

18 Loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 is based on the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of RMB4,140 million (2022: RMB32,699 milion) and the weighted average of

18,120,900,578 shares in issue during the year (2022: 17,205,242,710 shares).

2023 2022

million million

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 18,121 16,948
Effect of issuance of shares - 257
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 18,121 17,205

The amount of diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as the effect of convertible bonds is anti-dilutive
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Annual Report 2023 189



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

19 Property, plant and equipment, net
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Other flight
equipment  Machinery,
Investment including equipment
properties Buildings Aircraft rotables and vehicles Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 541 23,505 116,090 25,353 10,634 176,023
Additions - 30 2,356 554 430 3,370
Transferred from construction in progress
(Note 20) - 788 4,360 65 141 5,354
Transferred from other assets (Note 30) - 1,012 88 - - 1,100
Reclassification on change of holding intention
- transferred to other property, plant and
equipment (122) 122 - - - -
- transferred from other property, plant and
equipment 146 (146) = = - -
Transferred from right-of-use assets on
exercise of purchase option (Note 21) - - 7,032 246 - 7,278
Transferred from right-of-use assets to
investment properties (Note 21) 19 - - - - 19
Transferred to assets held for sale - - (2,861) - - (2,861)
Disposals
— disposals 7 (65) (10,558) (186) (221) (11,087
— disposal of subsidiaries - 62) - 2,114) (39) (2,215)
At 31 December 2022 577 25,184 116,507 23,918 10,845 177,031
At 1 January 2023 577 25,184 116,507 23,918 10,845 177,031
Additions - 12 2,601 1,064 681 4,358
Transferred from construction in progress
(Note 20) - 618 2,625 673 100 4,016
Reclassification on change of holding intention
- transferred to other property, plant and
equipment (28) 28 - - - -
- transferred from other property, plant and
equipment 342 (342) - - - -
Transferred from right-of-use assets on exercise
of purchase option (Note 21) - - 12,943 - - 12,943
Transferred from investment properties to
right-of-use assets (Note 21) (12) - - - - (12)
Transferred from right-of-use assets to
investment properties (Note 21) 21 - - - - 21
Transferred to assets held for sale (a) - - (1,125) (55) - (1,180)
Disposals
- disposals (c) - (412) (4,973) (860) (358) (6,603)
- liquidation of subsidiaries - (23) - - - (29)
At 31 December 2023 900 25,065 128,578 24,740 11,268 190,551
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19 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

Other flight
equipment  Machinery,
Investment including equipment
properties Buildings Aircraft rotables and vehicles Total

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 236 6,108 56,900 15,250 6,343 84,837
Depreciation charge for the year 19 758 5,601 1,215 1,066 8,659
Reclassification on change of holding intention

— transferred to other property, plant and

equipment (38) 38 = = = =
— transferred from other property, plant and
equipment 25 (25) = = = =
Transferred from right-of-use assets on
exercise of purchase option (Note 21) - - 3,680 58 - 3,738
Transferred from right-of-use assets to
investment properties (Note 21) 1 = = = = 1
Transferred to assets held for sale - - 2,178) - - 2,178)
Disposals
- disposals (7) (29) (7,239 (137) (185) (7,597)
— disposal of subsidiaries - 39 - (1,279) 29 (1,347)
Provision for impairment losses = = 348 68 = 416
Impairment losses transferred from right-of-use
assets (Note 21) - - 429 - - 429
Impairment losses written off on disposals = — (444) — — (444)
At 31 December 2022 236 6,811 57,097 15,175 7,195 86,514
At 1 January 2023 236 6,811 57,097 15,175 7,195 86,514
Depreciation charge for the year 24 752 6,913 1,368 1,067 10,124
Reclassification on change of holding intention
— transferred to other property, plant and
equipment (19) 19 - - - -
— transferred from other property, plant and
equipment 134 (134) - - - -
Transferred from right-of-use assets on
exercise of purchase option (Note 21) - - 6,114 - - 6,114
Transferred from investment properties to
right-of-use assets (Note 21) (3) - - - - (k)]
Transferred from right-of-use assets to
investment properties (Note 21) 1 - - - - 1
Transferred to assets held for sale (a) - - (430) (15) - (445)
Disposals
- disposals (c) - (49) (3,660) (557) (309) (4,575)
- liquidation of subsidiaries - (21) - - - (21)
Provision for impairment losses 3 - - - - 3
Impairment losses transferred from right-of-use
assets (Note 21) - - 940 - - 940
Reversal of impairment losses (a) - - (126) - - (126)
Impairment losses transferred to assets held
for sale (a) - - (502) (35) - (537)
Impairment losses written off on disposals
— disposals (c) - - (929) (82) - (1,011)
- liquidation of subsidiaries - - - - @ @
At 31 December 2023 376 7,378 65,417 15,854 7,951 96,976
Net book value:
At 31 December 2023 524 17,687 63,161 8,886 3,317 93,575
At 31 December 2022 341 18,373 59,410 8,743 3,650 90,517
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19 Property, plant and equipment, net (continued)

192

@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment losses of RMB126 million in relation to certain aircraft and
related equipment were reversed as the assets’ values have increased significantly during the year. The estimated
recoverable amounts of above assets were based on the fair value less cost to sell, which was determined by
reference to observable market prices. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the above assets were
RMB198 million, and the amounts were classified as held for sale as the carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

As at 31 December 2023, no property, plant and equipment of the Group were mortgaged for bank borrowings
(81 December 2022: nil).

During the year, the Group disposed certain aircraft and related equipment directly, against which cost,
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses of the aircraft had been reduced with an aggregate amount of
RMB3,290 million, RMB1,787 million and RMB1,006 million respectively (2022: RMB8,662 million, RMB5,620
million and RMB444 million respectively).

In previous year, the Group derecognised certain aircraft under finance lease agreements as a lessor, against which
cost and accumulated depreciation of the aircraft, and a long-term receivable was recognised accordingly. As at
31 December 2023, the balance of long-term receivable was RMB739 million (including the balance due within one
year) (31 December 2022: RMB896 million) (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group is in the process
of applying for the property title certificates in respect of the certain properties located in Chinese Mainland, in
which the Group has interests and for which such certificates have not been granted. As at 31 December 2023,
carrying value of such properties of the Group amounted to RMB10,709 million (31 December 2022: RMB11,085
million). The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the use of and the conduct of operating activities
at the properties referred to above are not affected by the fact that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant
property title certificates.

The Group leased out investment properties and facilities under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the leases after that date at which time all contract
terms are renegotiated. In this connection, rental income totalling RMB363 million (2022: RMB198 million) was
recognised by the Group during the year in respect of the leases. Directors estimated the fair value of these
investment properties approximate the carrying amount.

The properties are reclassified between investment properties and other property, plant and equipment, upon the
intention of commencement or cessation of lease.

The Group’s total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Within 1 year 39 32
After 1 year but within 5 years 126 89
After 5 years 124 33
289 154
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20 Construction in progress

Advance payment
for aircraft and

flight equipment Others Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million
At 1 January 2022 30,122 1,725 31,847
Additions 11,918 957 12,875
Transferred to property, plant and equipment
(Note 19) (4,425) (929) (5,354)
Transferred to right-of-use assets (Note 21) (6,777) - (6,777)
Transferred to others (Note 30) - (291) (291)
At 31 December 2022 31,838 1,462 33,300
At 1 January 2023 31,838 1,462 33,300
Additions 10,392 1,618 12,010
Transferred to property, plant and equipment
(Note 19) (3,298) (718) (4,016)
Transferred to right-of-use assets (Note 21) (6,662) (118) (6,780)
Transferred to others (Note 30) - (337) (337)
At 31 December 2023 32,270 1,907 34,177
21 Right-of-use assets
Aircraft Land use
and engines rights Buildings Others Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million = RMB million
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 214,194 6,810 3,285 1,134 225,423
Additions 5,500 12 579 11 6,102
Transferred from construction in progress
(Note 20) 5,706 - - 71 5777
Transferred to investment properties
(Note 19) — 19 - - (19
Transferred to property, plant and equipment
on exercise of purchase option (Note 19) (7,032) - - (246) (7,278)
Disposals
— disposals (1,607) (63) (582) (145) (2,387)
— disposal of subsidiaries — @7 (13 (64) (124)
At 31 December 2022 216,761 6,703 3,269 761 227,494
At 1 January 2023 216,761 6,703 3,269 761 227,494
Additions 9,597 106 1,528 101 11,332
Transferred from construction in progress
(Note 20) 6,575 118 - 87 6,780
Transferred from investment properties
(Note 19) - 12 - - 12
Transferred to investment properties
(Note 19) - 1) - - 1)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment
on exercise of purchase option (Note 19) (12,943) - - - (12,943)
Disposals (3,900) (18) (1,634) (233) (5,785)
At 31 December 2023 216,090 6,900 3,163 716 226,869
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21 Right-of-use assets (continued)
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Aircraft Land use
and engines rights Buildings Others Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB milion = RMB million

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 84,080 1,087 1,543 274 86,984
Amortisation charge for the year 13,767 173 937 190 15,067
Transferred to property, plant and equipment

on exercise of purchase option (Note 19) (3,680) - - (68) (3,738)
Transferred to investment properties

(Note 19) - (1) - - 1)
Disposals

— disposals (1,594) (25) (563) (145) (2,327)

— disposal of subsidiaries - (12) ©) (31) (49)
Impairment losses transferred to

property, plant and equipment (Note 19) (429 - - - (429
Provision for impairment losses 33 - - = 33
At 31 December 2022 92,177 1,222 1,911 230 95,540
At 1 January 2023 92,177 1,222 1,911 230 95,540
Amortisation charge for the year 15,321 166 883 136 16,506
Transferred to property, plant and equipment

on exercise of purchase option (Note 19) (6,114) - - - (6,114)
Transferred from investment properties

(Note 19) - 3 - - 3
Transferred to investment properties

(Note 19) - () - - (1)
Disposals (3,900) (11) (1,615) (233) (5,759)
Impairment losses transferred to

property, plant and equipment (Note 19) (940) - - - (940)
At 31 December 2023 96,544 1,379 1,179 133 99,235
Net book value:
At 31 December 2023 119,546 5,521 1,984 583 127,634
At 31 December 2022 124,584 5,481 1,358 531 131,954

The Group was formally granted the rights to use certain parcels of land by the relevant PRC authorities for periods of 30

to 70 years, which expire before 2073.

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group is in the process of
applying for land use right certificates in respect of certain parcels of land used by the Group. As at 31 December 2023,
carrying value of such land use rights of the Group amounted to RMB2,882 million (31 December 2022: RMB2,903
million). The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the use of and the conduct of operating activities at
the land referred to above are not affected by the fact that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant land use right

certificates.

As at 31 December 2023, no land use right of the Group was mortgaged for bank borrowings (31 December 2022: nil).
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Right-of-use assets (continued)

In addition to the amortisation charged, the analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss is
as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) 3,600 3,899

Expense relating to short-term leases 1,566 1,067
Expense relating to leases of variable lease payments not included

in the measurement of lease liabilities 69 88

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements and newly acquired leasehold aircraft.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 34(d) and Note 37
respectively.

The Group applied the practical expedient in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 to all leases except for aircraft and engine leases
with eligible rent concessions received by the Group in 2022. There is no rent concession received for the year ended
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: nil).

Goodwill

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Cost and carrying amount: 237 237

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Southern Airlines Group Import and Export Trading Company (‘SAIETC”) 182 182
Xiamen Airlines Culture and Media Co., Ltd. 55 58
Total 237 237

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate which does not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates.

The cash flows of the above entities are discounted using pre-tax discount rates ranging from 10% to 13% (2022: 10.5%
to 13.5%).
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23 Subsidiaries

All the subsidiaries of the Company are unlisted. The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of

ownership
Place of interest
establishment/ held by the
Name of company operation Registered capital Company Principal activity
Xiamen Airlines Company  Chinese Mainland RMB14,000,000,000 55%  Airline transportation
Limited (“Xiamen
Airlines”) (i)
China Southern Airlines Chinese Mainland RMB6,000,000,000 60%  Airline transportation
Henan Airlines Company
Limited (i)
Chongaing Airlines Chinese Mainland RMB1,200,000,000 60%  Airline transportation
Company Limited (i)
Shantou Airlines Company  Chinese Mainland RMB280,000,000 60%  Airline transportation
Limited (i)
Zhuhai Airlines Company Chinese Mainland RMB250,000,000 60%  Airline transportation
Limited (i)
Guizhou Airlines Company  Chinese Mainland RMB1,281,000,000 60%  Airline transportation
Limited (i)
China Southern Air Chinese Mainland RMB1,818,181,820 55%  Logistics operations
Logistics Co., Ltd.
(“CSA Logistics”) (i)
Guangzhou Nanland Air Chinese Mainland RMB240,000,000 70.50%  Air catering
Catering Company
Limited (ii)
Beijing Southern Airlines Chinese Mainland RMB881,350,100 100%  Airport ground services

Ground Services
Company Limited (i)
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Proportion of

ownership
Place of interest
establishment/ held by the
Name of company operation Registered capital Company Principal activity
SAIETC (i) Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000 100%  Import and export
agent services
Zhuhai Xiang Yi Aviation Chinese Mainland RMB469,848,400 100%  Flight simulation
Technology Company services
Limited (i)
China Southern Airlines Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000,000 100%  Airline transportation
Xiongan Airlines
Company Limited (i)
Shenyang Northern Aircraft  Chinese Mainland RMB31,520,545 100%  Aircraft repair and
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (i) maintenance
services
Guangdong Southern Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100%  Hotel management
Airline Pearl Aviation services
Services Company
Limited (i)
Southern Airlines Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000,000 100% Leasing services

Nansha Finance Leasing

(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)

(i) These subsidiaries are PRC limited liability companies.

(i)  This subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company established in Chinese Mainland.

(i)~ Nan Lung International Freight Limited (“Nan Lung Freight”)

The Company previously held 51% of equity interests in Nan Lung Freight. In July 20283, the Company disposed its
equity interests in Nan Lung Freight to its subsidiary, CSA Logistics, and at the same time, CSA Logistics acquired
49% of equity interests in Nan Lung Freight from a third party. Since then, Nan Lung Freight became a wholly
owned subsidiary of CSA Logistics.

The above transactions had the following effect on the Group’s non-controlling interests and total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company:

RMB million
Cash consideration paid 30
Less: Portion of net assets of Nan Lung Freight acquired 11
Other reserves in equity 19
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23 Subsidiaries (continued)
(iv)  Material non-controlling interests
As at 31 December 2023, the balance of total non-controlling interests is RMB15,296 million (31 December 2022:
RMB14,084 million), of which RMB9,335 million (31 December 2022: RMB8,100 million) is for Xiamen Airlines and
RMB6,260 million (31 December 2022: RMB6,058 million) is for CSA Logistics. The rest of non-controlling interests

are not individually material.

- Set out below are the summarised financial information for Xiamen Airlines.

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Non-controlling interests percentage 45% 45%
Current assets 3,661 4,016
Non-current assets 52,691 47,173
Current liabilities (18,220) (18,235)
Non-current liabilities (17,903) (15,442)
Net assets 20,229 17,512
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests 9,335 8,100
Revenue 33,562 20,079
Profit/(loss) for the year 603 (2,122)
Total comprehensive income 520 (2,018)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non-controlling interests 286 (1,049)
Net cash generated from operating activities 9,813 3,423
Net cash used in investing activities (5,365) (1,999)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,618) (1,489)
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2023 2022
RMB million RMB million

Non-controlling interests percentage 45% 45%

Current assets 5,865 10,330
Non-current assets 11,527 6,543
Current liabilities (3,652) (3,535)
Non-current liabilities (52) (50)
Net assets 13,688 13,288
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests 6,260 6,058
Revenue 16,605 21,538
Profit for the year 2,429 4,654
Total comprehensive income 2,429 4,654
Profit allocated to non-controlling interests 1,102 2,113
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 909 881

Net cash generated from operating activities 3,620 4,069
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (6,168) 1,659
Net cash used in financing activities (2,117) (3,306)
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24 Interests in associates

2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million
Share of net assets 2,714 2,588

All the Group’s associates are unlisted without quoted market price. The particulars of the Group’s principal associates
as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Proportion of ownership
interest held by

Proportion of

Place of Group’s voting rights
establishment/ effective The held by
operation interest Company Subsidiaries the Group  Principal activity
Southern Airlines Group Chinese 48.59% 41.81% 6.78% 48.59%  Provision of
Finance Co., Ltd. Mainland financial services
(“Finance Company”)
Sichuan Airlines Co., Ltd. Chinese 39% 39% - 39%  Airline
(“Sichuan Airlines”) Mainland transportation
Southern Airlines Culture and ~ Chinese 40% 40% — 40%  Advertising
Media Co., Ltd. (“SACM") Mainland services
Beijing Xingming Lake Chinese 49% - 49% 49%  Catering and
Jinyan Hotel Co., Ltd. Mainland accommodation
services
Xiamen Aviation Industry Chinese 10% = 10% 11.11%  Aircraft repair and
Company Limited Mainland maintenance
services
Hong Kong Business Hong Kong 20% 20% - 20%  Airport services
Aviation Centre Limited
Shangzhou Aviation Chinese 37.90% = 37.90% 37.90%  Logistics
Logistics Co., Ltd. Mainland operations
Beijing Airport Inflight Chinese 30% 30% = 30%  Air catering
Kitchen Co., Ltd. Mainland services
Xinjiang Civil Aviation Chinese 42.80% 42.80% - 42.80%  Property
Property Management Mainland management
Limited
Civil Aviation Cares of Chinese 28.5% - 28.5% 33.33%  Software and
Xiamen Co., Ltd. Mainland information
technology
services

There is no associate that is individually material to the Group.
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24 Interests in associates (continued)

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method.
The aggregate financial information of these associates is summarised as following:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates 2,714 2,688
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:

Loss from continuing operations and total comprehensive income (Note) (2,244) (13)

Note: In 2023, each shareholder of Sichuan Airlines agreed for a capital contribution to Sichuan Airlines on a pro rata basis to their
existing shareholdings in Sichuan Airlines, after which, the shareholding of each shareholder will remain unchanged. In 2023,
the Group made a capital contribution of RMB2,340 million to Sichuan Airlines. Given the fact that the carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in Sichuan Airlines was reduced to zero in previous year and there was share of losses not recognised, the
Group recognised investment losses of RMB2,340 million which was lower than the accumulated unrecognised losses.

25 Interestsin joint ventures

2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million
Share of net assets 4,005 3,618

All the Group’s joint ventures are unlisted without quoted market price. The particulars of the Group’s principal joint
ventures as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Proportion of ownership
interest held by

Proportion of

Place of Group’s voting rights
establishment/ effective The held by the
operation interest Company  Subsidiaries Group  Principal activity
Guangzhou Aircraft Chinese 50% 50% - 50%  Aircraft repair and
Maintenance Engineering Mainland maintenance
Co., Ltd. (‘GAMECOQO") services
MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Chinese 50% 50% - 50%  Engines repair and
Co., Ltd. ("MTU?) Mainland maintenance

services

There is no joint venture that is individually material to the Group.
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25 Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity
method. The aggregate financial information of these joint ventures is summarised as follows:

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial joint ventures 4,005 3,618
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:
Profit from continuing operations and total comprehensive income 546 304
26 Financial assets
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Other equity instrument investments (FVOCI) ()
— Non-tradable listed shares 547 659
547 659
Other non-current financial assets (FVPL) ()
— Listed shares 26 21
— Non-listed shares 31 28
— Certificates of deposit (iii) 3,065 =
Other non-current financial assets (amortised cost) (ii)
— Long-term receivables 297 387
3,419 436
Other financial assets (FVPL)
— Certificates of deposit (iii) 3,157 =
3,157 =
Notes:
(i) Dividend income generated from the investments amounted to RMBS5 million for the year of 2023 in total (2022: RMB7 million).

(i) In previous year, the Group derecognised certain aircraft under finance lease agreements as a lessor and recognised long-term
receivables. As at 31 December 2023, long-term receivables (including the portion due within one year) was RMB739
million (31 December 2022: RMB896 million), among which RMB354 million was recorded in the amounts due from related
companies (31 December 2022: RMB404 million) (Note 42(a)).

(i)  As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the negotiable certificates of deposit was RMB6,222 million. The Group expected
to sell the certificates of deposit rather than held-to-maturity, and based on the Group’s working capital forecast, RMB3,157
million was expected to be sold within one year and was then recorded in other financial assets (FVPL), while RMB3,065
million was expected to be sold over one year and was then recorded in other non-current financial assets (FVPL).
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27 Derivative financial assets/(liabilities)

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Derivative financial assets:
Jet fuel forward contracts
— Current 4e) 4 -
Interest rate swaps i)
— Non-current - 27
— Current - 2
Derivative financial liabilities:
Derivative component of convertible bonds
— Current (i) (907) (1,708)

Notes:

In 2015, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate its cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate swaps allow
the Group to pay at fixed rate from 1.64% to 1.72% per annum to receive LIBOR. As at 31 December 2023, all interest rate
swaps had been settled prior to the due dates.

In October 2020, the Group issued a total of 160,000,000 A share convertible bonds with par value of RMB100 each at
par. The convertible bonds have a term of six years from the date of the issuance and the convertible bonds bear interest
at the annual rate of 0.2% in the first year, 0.4% in the second year, 0.6% in the third year, 0.8% in the fourth year, 1.5% in
the fifth year and 2.0% in the sixth year. Interest is paid once a year. Conversion rights are exercisable from 21 April 2021 to
14 October 2026 at an initial conversion price of RMB6.24 per share, subject to clauses of adjustment and downward revision
of conversion price, redemption and sell-back. Convertible bonds, which conversion rights have not been exercised in five
transaction days after maturity, will be redeemed at 106.5% of par value (including the interest for the sixth year).

Any excess of proceeds over the fair value amount initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the host
liability component. Transaction costs related to the issuance of the convertible bonds are allocated to the host liability and
are recognised initially as part of the liability. The derivative component is subsequently remeasured at fair value while the host
liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 870 convertible bonds were converted to A shares at the conversion price of
RMB6.17 per share (for the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,920 convertible bonds were converted to A shares at the
conversion price from RMB6.17 to RMB6.24 per share). As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of liability component
of the remaining 58,963,140 A share convertible bonds was RMB5,510 million (31 December 2022: 58,964,010 A share
convertible bonds with a carrying amount of RMB5,250 million) (Note 36(a)), and the fair value of the derivative component
of the remaining 58,963,140 A share convertible bonds was RMB907 million (31 December 2022: 58,964,010 A share
convertible bonds with fair value of RMB1,708 million). For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gain on the changes in fair
value of the derivative component amounted to RMB801 million was recognised (31 December 2022: loss on the changes in
fair value amounted to RMB486 million) (Note 28).
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28 Changes in fair value of financial assets/liabilities

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Other financial assets 32 =
Other non-current financial assets 52 (©))
Interest rate swaps (15) 49
Jet fuel forward contracts 4 -
Derivative component of convertible bonds (Note 27(ji)) 801 (486)
Forward foreign exchange and foreign exchange options contracts - 52
874 (388)
29 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
(a) Movements of net deferred tax assets are as follows:
(Charged)/
credited to Credited
At consolidated to other At
31 December income comprehensive 31 December
2022 statement income 2023
RMB million RMB miillion RMB million RMB million
For the year ended
31 December 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Lease liabilities 9,925 90 - 10,015
Accrued expenses 2,330 276 - 2,606
Provision for major overhauls 586 52 - 638
Contract liabilities/other non-current
liabilities 35 (3) - 32
Provision for impairment losses 618 (281) - 337
Provision for tax losses 7,960 (217) - 7,743
Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments 131 (131) - -
Others 190 80 - 270
21,775 (134) - 21,641
Deferred tax liabilities:
Right-of-use assets (8,452) (37) - (8,489)
Depreciation allowances under tax in
excess of the related depreciation
under accounting (685) 38 - (647)
Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments - (67) - (67)
Change in fair value of other equity
instrument investments (155) - 28 (127)
Change in fair value of other non-current
financial assets ©) (13) - (22)
Change in fair value of other
financial assets - 8) - )
Fair value re-measurement of identifiable
assets in business combination (23) 1 - (22)
Others 4 1 - 3)
(9,328) (85) 28 (9,385)
Net deferred tax assets 12,447 (219) 28 12,256
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29 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

(a) Movements of net deferred tax assets are as follows: (continued)

(Charged)/
credited to Charged  (Charged)/
At consolidated to other credited At
31 December income comprehensive to retain Disposal of 31 December
2021 statement income earnings  subsidiaries 2022
RMB million  RMB million RMB million RMB million  RMB million  RMB million
For the year ended
31 December 2022
Deferred tax assets:
Net effect on right-of-use assets 1,575 (102) = = = 1,473
Accrued expenses 1,542 788 - - - 2,330
Provision for major overhauls 483 103 - - - 586
Contract liabilities/other non-current
liabilities 56 1) - - - 88
Provision for impairment losses 1,493 (875) - - - 618
Provision for tax losses 8,093 (147) - 14 - 7,960
Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments 22 109 — = = 131
Change in fair value of other equity
instrument investments 15 = (1) (14) = =

Depreciation allowances under tax in
excess of the related depreciation

under accounting 74 (74) - - - -
Others 142 49 - - Q) 190
13,495 (170) 1) - (1) 13,323
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accrued expenses ©6) 6 - - - -
Depreciation allowances under tax in
excess of the related depreciation
under accounting (519) (166) - - - (685)
Change in fair value of other equity
instrument investments (121) - (34) - - (155)
Change in fair value of other non-current
financial assets 1n 8 - - - ©)
Fair value re-measurement of identifiable
assets in business combination (25) 2 - - - 23)
Others (10) 6 - - - @)
(698) (144) (34) - - (876)
Net deferred tax assets 12,797 (314) (35) - (1) 12,447

Deferred tax assets arise from deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the related tax benefit can be utilised. The Group’s
tax losses in Chinese Mainland are available for carrying forward to set off future assessable income for a maximum
period of five or eight years (According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance on the Taxation Policy for supporting the
prevention of pandemic of Covid-19 (No. 8, 2020), the carry over period for tax losses of enterprises in certain difficult
industries suffering from the epidemic in 2020 will be extended from 5 years to 8 years). Therefore, the Group’s tax
losses occurred in 2020 can be carried forward for 5-8 years, and the Group’s tax losses occurred in other years can be
carried forward for 5 years.
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29 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position:

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Net deferred tax assets in the statement of financial position 12,279 12,471
Net deferred tax liabilities in the statement of financial position (23) (24)
12,256 12,447

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group’s unused tax losses of RMB48,452 million (2022: RMB43,348 million) have not been recognised as deferred
tax assets, as it was determined by management that it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available before they expire. The expiry dates of unrecognised unused tax losses are
analysed as follows:

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million

Expiring in:
2023 - 109
2024 336 336
2025 100 157
2026 6,285 11,715
2027 27,502 27,317
2028 14,229 3,714
48,452 43,348

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s other deductible temporary differences amounting to RMB1,704 million
(81 December 2022: RMB1,610 milion) have not been recognised as deferred tax assets as it was determined by
management that it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available for these deductible temporary differences
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Leasehold
Software improvements Others Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
(Note)
At 1 January 2022 835 225 2,151 3,211
Additions 297 12 123 432
Transferred from construction in
progress (Note 20) 272 19 - 291
Transferred to property, plant and
equipment (Note 19) - = (1,100) (1,100)
Transferred to others - = (18) (18)
Disposal () = = ()
Disposal of subsidiaries (1) - = ()
Amortisation for the year (336) 91) (113) (540)
At 31 December 2022 1,066 165 1,043 2,274
At 1 January 2023 1,066 165 1,043 2,274
Additions 91 29 227 347
Transferred from construction in
progress (Note 20) 317 20 - 337
Disposal (1) - - (1)
Amortisation for the year (365) (89) (81) (535)
At 31 December 2023 1,108 125 1,189 2,422

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the amounts include prepayments of RMB429 million made to related parties for acquisition of
long-term assets (31 December 2022: RMB495 million) (Note 42(b) & 50(c)).

Inventories

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Consumable spare parts and maintenance materials 1,558 1,444
Other supplies 217 153
1,775 1,597
Less: provision (210) (210)
1,565 1,387

Provision for inventories is shown as below:
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
At 1 January 210 80
Provision for inventories 8 133
Written off upon disposal ) @
Disposal of subsidiaries - ()
At 31 December 210 210
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32 Trade receivables

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Trade receivables 3,225 2,672
Less: loss allowance (64) (53)
3,161 2,619

(a) Ageing analysis

Credit terms granted by the Group to sales agents and other customers generally range from one to three months.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables based on transaction date is set out below:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Within 1 month 2,259 1,942
More than 1 month but less than 3 months 517 425
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 315 231
More than 1 year 134 74
3,225 2,672

Less: loss allowance (64) (53)
3,161 2,619

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 4(d).

(b) Trade receivables by currencies

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

RVB 2,952 2,399
USD 110 189
EURO 54 8
HKD 1 5
AUD 22 17
BDT 3 7
Others 73 47
3,225 2,672
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33 Otherreceivables

2023 2022

Note RMB million RMB million

VAT recoverable 7,062 5,609

Government grants receivables () 826 985

Rebate receivables on aircraft acquisitions 329 493

Other deposits 186 166

Others (ii) 898 822

9,301 8,075

Less: loss allowance (iii (134) (136)

9,167 7,939

Notes:

(i) Government grants receivables are recognised as there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Group has

complied with the conditions attaching to them.

(i) The amounts include term deposits of RMB256 million (31 December 2022: RMB177 million), which have a maturity over 3
months at acquisition. The weighted average annualised interest rate of term deposits as at 31 December 2023 was 1.89% (31
December 2022: 1.91%).

(iii) The Group lost control of China Southern West Australian Flying College Pty Ltd. (“Flying College”) in December 2020. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, prepayment of training expenses made to Flying College amounting to RMB148 million was
fully impaired. In 2022, as the unsecured creditor, the Group received an interim amount of the liquidation distribution from
Flying College in the amount of RMB29 million, and thus reversed loss allowance of RMB29 million accordingly. In 2023, the
Group did not receive further liquidation distribution and as at 31 December 2023, the loss allowance was RMB119 million (31
December 2022: RMB119 million).

34 Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Deposits in banks and other financial institution - 1,173

Cash at bank and other financial institution and on hand 9,531 18,716
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement

of financial position 9,531 19,889
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34 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

RMB 8,049 17,864
USD 1,203 1,645
EURO 57 180
AUD 16 23
JPY 10 27
HKD 28 45
Others 168 105
9,531 19,889

(b) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash generated from operating activities:

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Loss before income tax (1,521) (31,550)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 12 27,165 24,266
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment 19 (123) 416
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 21 - 33
Disposal of subsidiaries - (215)
Credit losses 11 9 )
Share of associates’ results 24 2,244 13
Share of joint ventures’ results 25 (546) (804)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and assets held for sale 14 (360) (800)
Changes in fair value of financial assets/liabilities 28 (874) 388
Interest income (361) (457)
Interest expense 15 5,928 6,006
Dividends income from other non-current financial assets 26 (5) (7)
Exchange loss, net 609 3,496
Disposal of associates - 42)
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (178) 187
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities and
other non-current liabilities (304) 73
Increase/(decrease) in sales in advance of carriage 3,796 (833)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred benefits and gains 46 (8) 35
(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables (2,064) 1,364
Increase in operating payables 7,963 2,741
Cash generated from operating activities 41,370 5,807
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34 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Interest Derivative
Bank loans rate swaps  component of
and other Lease (liabilities/ convertible
borrowings liabilities (assets)) bonds Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
(Note 36) (Note 37) (Note 27) (Note 27)
At 1 January 2023 119,780 94,762 (29) 1,708 216,221
Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings 70,978 - - - 70,978
Proceeds from ultra-short-term
financing bills 10,700 - - - 10,700
Proceeds from corporate bonds 2,000 - - - 2,000
Repayment of bank borrowings (56,050) - - - (56,050)
Repayment of ultra-short-term financing bills (23,200) - - - (23,200)
Repayment of corporate bonds (8,000) - - - (8,000)
Proceeds from disposal of derivative
financial instruments - - 21 - 21
Capital element of lease rentals paid
(Note 34(d)) - (23,058) - - (23,058)
Total changes from financing cash flows (3,572) (23,058) 21 - (26,609)
Exchange adjustments (49) 612 - - 563
Changes in fair value - - 15 (801) (786)
Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year (Note 52) - 16,177 - - 16,177
Amortisation amount of convertible bonds 262 - - - 262
Impact of accrued interest expense (205) - - - (205)
Others - - 7 - (Ul
_Totelotherchanges . ST ot 0 T 16,227
At 31 December 2023 116,216 88,493 - 907 205,616
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34 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (continued)

Interest Derivative
Bank loans rate swaps component
and other Lease (liabilities/ of convertible
borrowings liabilities (assets)) bonds Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB milion RMB million
(Note 36) (Note 37) (Note 27) (Note 27)
At 1 January 2022 96,267 102,749 20 1,222 200,258
Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings 75,429 = = = 75,429
Proceeds from ultra-short-term
financing bills 27,500 = = = 27,500
Proceeds from corporate bonds 3,900 - - = 3,900
Repayment of bank borrowings (36,359) - - = (36,359)
Repayment of ultra-short-term financing bills (39,600) - - - (39,600)
Repayment of corporate bonds (7,500) - - - (7,500)
Capital element of lease rentals paid
(Note 34(d)) - (21,960) - - (21,960)
Total changes from financing cash flows 23,370 (21,960 = = 1,410
Exchange adjustments (42) 3,497 = = 3,455
Changes in fair value - - (49 486 437
Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year (Note 52) - 10,476 - - 10,476
Amortisation amount of convertible bonds 275 = = = 275
Impact of accrued interest expense (90) - = = (90)
Jowalotherchanges ... e 10406 . SO S 10661
At 31 December 2022 119,780 94,762 (29) 1,708 216,221
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34 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the following:
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Within operating cash flows (5,236) (5,054)
Within investing cash flows (106) (12)
Within financing cash flows (23,058) (21,960)
(28,400) (27,026)
These amounts relate to the following:
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Lease rentals paid (28,294) (27,014)
Acquisition of land use rights (106) (12)
(28,400) (27,026)
35 Assets held for sale
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Aircraft and other flight equipment 198 709

As at 31 December 2023, assets held for sale represents certain aircraft and other flight equipment to be delivered. The
carrying amount of aircraft and other flight equipment is RMB198 million (2022: RMB709 million). As at 31 December
2023, the transaction price with third party is no less than the carrying amount of the assets, and the sale is expected to

be completed in 2024.
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36
(a)

214

Borrowings

Borrowings are analysed as follows:

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Non-current
Long-term borrowings 38,130 15,316
Convertible bonds (Note 27(ii)) 5,498 5,240
Medium-term notes (Note (iii)) 6,894 13,888
50,522 34,444
Current
Current portion of long-term borrowings 5,153 10,773
Short-term borrowings 51,362 53,674
Ultra-short-term financing bills - 12,536
Current portion of corporate bonds and medium-term notes
(Notes (ji) & (iii)) 9,167 8,343
Current portion of convertible bonds (Note 27(ii) 12 10
65,694 85,336
Total borrowings 116,216 119,780
The borrowings are repayable:
Within one year 65,694 85,336
In the second year 16,334 14,167
In the third to fifth year 31,806 17,599
After the fifth year 2,382 2,678
Total borrowings 116,216 119,780

Notes:

)
(i)

(i)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any secured bank borrowings (31 December 2022: ni).

Xiamen Airlines issued corporate bonds with aggregate nominal value of RMB1,000 million on 16 March 2020 at a bond rate
of 2.95% per annum with a term of 3 years. The bonds were redeemed by Xiamen Airlines in 2023 upon maturity.

The Company issued medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB8,000 million in 2020 at annual interest rates
ranging from 2.44% to 3.28% with terms of 3 to 5 years. The medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB7,000
were redeemed by the Company in 2023 upon maturity. As at 31 December 2023, the medium-term notes with aggregate
nominal value of RMB1,000 million will mature over 1 year.

The Company issued medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB9,000 million in 2021 at annual interest rates
ranging from 2.90% to 3.20% with terms of 3 years. As at 31 December 2023, the medium-term notes will mature within 1
year.

The Company issued medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB3,800 million in 2022 at annual interest rates
ranging from 2.69% to 2.95% with terms of 3 years. As at 31 December 2023, the medium-term notes will mature over 1
year.

The Company issued medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB2,000 million in 2023 at annual interest rate of
2.98% with terms of 3 years. As at 31 December 2023, the medium-term notes will mature over 1 year.

Xiamen Airlines issued medium-term notes with aggregate nominal value of RMB100 million in 2022 at annual interest rate of
3.00% per annum with a term of 3 years. As at 31 December 2023, the medium-term notes will mature over 1 year.
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36 Borrowings (continued)
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(b) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s weighted average interest rates on short-term borrowings were 2.99% per annum

(c) Details of borrowings with original maturity over one year are as follows:

(31 December 2022: 2.16% per annum).

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Renminbi denominated borrowings
Fixed interest rates at 1.20%~3.43% per annum as at
31 December 2023 40,278 22,667
Medium-term notes — Fixed interest rates at 2.69%~3.28% 16,061 21,207
Convertible bond — Fixed interest rate (Note 27(i) 5,510 5,250
Floating interest rates at 57%~71% of benchmark interest rate
(stipulated by PBOC) as at 31 December 2023 3,005 3,422
Corporate bond — Fixed interest rate at 2.95% - 1,024
64,854 53,570
Less: borrowings due within one year classified as current liabilities (14,332) (19,126)
50,522 34,444

(d) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

(e)

(7)

2023 2022

RMB miillion RMB million

Renminbi 109,153 118,386
US Dollars 7,063 1,394
116,216 119,780

The balance of short-term and long-term borrowings as at 31 December 2023 included entrusted loans from CSAH via
Finance Company to the Group amounted to RMB15,008 million (31 December 2022: RMB13,007 million), among which
RMB8 million were repayable within one year (31 December 2022: RMB10,005 million), and RMB15,000 million were

repayable over one year (31 December 2022: RMB3,002 million) (Note 50(d)(ii).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s certain financial
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 4(a). As at 31

December 2023, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
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37 Lease liabilities

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were payable as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Within 1 year 19,261 21,799
After 1 year but within 2 years 15,994 17,412
After 2 years but within 5 years 34,623 36,225
After 5 years 18,615 19,326
88,493 94,762

Obligations by denominated currencies

Other
For the year ended Effective USD  Japanese Yen Renminbi Euro currencies Total
31 December 2023 interestrate  RMB miillion RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RMB million  RMB million
Fixed interest rates 1.76%~4.90% 35,964 4 5,980 8 24 41,980
Floating interest rates 0.83%~8.09% 715 176 43,662 1,960 - 46,513
36,679 180 49,642 1,968 24 88,493

Obligations by denominated currencies

Other
For the year ended Effective USD  Japanese Yen Renminbi Euro currencies Total
31 December 2022 interest rate  RMB million RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB milion ~ RMB million
Fixed interest rates 1.76%~4.90% 35,913 25 7,338 9 29 43,314
Floating interest rates 0.73%~7.72% 3,964 322 44,921 2,241 = 51,448
39,877 347 52,259 2,250 29 94,762

The Group has significant lease liabilities which are denominated in USD as at 31 December 2023. The net exchange
loss of RMB687 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: net exchange loss of RMB3,619 million) was mainly
attributable to the translation of balances of lease liabilities which are denominated in USD.
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38 Trade and bills payables

Ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on transaction date is set out below:

Financial
Report

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Within 1 month 756 420
More than 1 month but less than 3 months 674 437
More than 3 months but less than 6 months 271 265
More than 6 months but less than 1 year 109 129
More than 1 year 194 286
2,004 1,537

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Renminbi 1,436 1,149
uSD 554 382
Others 14 6
2,004 1,537

39 Contract liabilities

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Unredeemed credits under the frequent flyer award programmes (Note) 1,460 1,423
Others 49 73
1,509 1,496

Note: As at 31 December 2023, unredeemed credits under the frequent flyer award programmes represent the aggregated amounts
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation, which is expected to be recognised as revenue in
the future when the customers obtain control of the goods or services. Movement of unredeemed credits under the frequent

flyer award programmes is set out below:
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39 Contract liabilities (continued)

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Balance at 1 January 3,173 3,061
— Current 1,423 1,459
— Non-current 1,750 1,602
Addition as a result of increase of the unredeemed
credits under the frequent flyer award programmes 2,191 1,564
Reduction as a result of revenue recognised during the year (2,471) (1,452)
— Recognised as revenue from opening balance of contract liabilities (1,892) (1,084)
— Recognised as revenue from current year addition
of contract liabilities (579) (368)
Balance at 31 December 2,893 3,173
Representing:
— Current 1,460 1,423
— Non-current (Note 41) 1,433 1,750

40 Sales in advance of carriage

As at 31 December 2023, the amount of sales in advance of carriage represents revenue expected to be recognised in
the future when the customers obtain control of and accept the passenger transportation services to be provided by the
Group. During the year, RMB2,349 million which was included in the opening balance of the sales in advance of carriage
(2022: RMB2,408 million) was recognised as revenue.

41 Other non-current liabilities

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million

Unredeemed credits under the frequent
flyer award programmes 39 1,433 1,750
Long-term payables (Note) 64 204
1,497 1,954

Note: In 2020 and 2022, the Group disposed certain aircraft through sale and leaseback agreement, and the long-term payables
were additional financing provided by buyer-lessor to the Group in aircraft sale and leaseback transactions. As at 31 December
2023, long-term payables (including the portion due within one year) was RMB289 million (31 December 2022: RMB531
million), among which, RMB85 million was recorded in the amounts due to related companies (31 December 2022: RMB143
million) (Note 42(c)).
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42 Balances with related companies

(@) Amounts due from related companies

2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Current

CSAH and its affiliates 27 10
Associates 268 76
Joint ventures 29 30
50(c) 324 116
2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million

Non-current
Associates 50(c) 262 357

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts due from associates include long-term receivables of RMB354 million (including
the portion due within one year) relating to finance lease arrangements (31 December 2022: RMB404 million) (Note (26)(ii)).
Other than that, the remaining amounts due from related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. They are expected to be recovered within one year.

(b) Prepayments to related companies for acquisition of long-term assets

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million

Non-current
CSAH and its affiliates 429 429
Associates - 66
30&50(c) 429 495

(c) Amounts due to related companies
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Current

CSAH and its affiliates 308 262
Associates 4 14
Joint ventures 282 159
50(c) 594 435
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42 Balances with related companies (continued)

(c) Amounts due to related companies (continued)

2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million

Non-current
CSAH and its affiliates 50(c) 36 85

As at 31 December 2023, the amounts due to CSAH and its affiliates include long-term payables of RMB85 million
(including the portion due within one year) relating to finance lease arrangements (31 December 2022: RMB143 million)
(Note 41). Other than that, the remaining amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment. They are expected to be settled within one year.

43 Accrued expenses

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Repairs and maintenance 7,649 6,713
Salaries and welfare 4,968 4,564
Landing and navigation fees 2,413 1,327
Jet fuel costs 2,708 1,665
Computer reservation services 1,889 712
Provision for major overhauls (Note 45) 879 596
Others 2,636 2,059
23,142 17,636

44 Other liabilities
2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 3,217 3,507
Civil Aviation Development Fund and airport tax payable 1,638 554
Sales agent deposits 463 574
Other taxes payable 757 460
Deposit received for chartered flights 216 207
Others 2,509 2,514
8,800 7,816
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45 Provision for major overhauls
Details of provision for major overhauls in respect of aircraft held under leases are as follows:
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
At 1 January 5,795 4,944
Additional provision 1,105 922
Utilisation (290) (71)
At 31 December 6,610 5,795
Less: current portion (Note 43) (879) (596)
5,731 5,199
46 Deferred benefits and gains
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Maintenance rebates 430 467
Government grants 318 288
Others 4 5
752 760
47 Share capital
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Registered, issued and paid-up capital:
Trade-restricted:
803,571,428 A shares of RMB1.00 each owned by CSAH
(2022: 3,257,005,885 shares of RMB1.00 each) (Note (i) 804 3,257
804 3,257
Tradable:
8,600,897,508 A shares of RMB1.00 each owned by CSAH (2022:
6,147,463,051 shares of RMB1.00 each) (Note (ii) 8,600 6,147
4,072,440,562 A shares of RMB1.00 each (2022: 4,072,426,466
shares of RMB1.00 each) 4,073 4,073
4,643,997,308 H shares of RMB1.00 each (2022: 4,643,997,308
shares of RMB1.00 each) 4,644 4,644
17,317 14,864
18,121 18,121
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47

48
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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Share capital (continued)
Notes:

(i) All the A and H shares rank pari passu in all material respects. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(ii) In June 2020, the Company issued 2,453,434,457 A shares (2020 A shares”) to CSAH, and the 2020 A shares issued to
CSAH are restricted for trading within 36 months upon completion of the issuance. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the trading restriction on 2,453,434,457 A shares issued to CSAH was released.

In November 2022, the Company issued 803,571,428 A shares (2022 A shares”) to CSAH at the price of RMB5.60 per share.
The 2022 A shares issued to CSAH are restricted for trading within 36 months upon completion of the issuance.
Reserves
Dividends

The directors did not propose any final dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value of the shares of the Company and consideration for
the shares issued.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) mainly comprises the Group’s and share of an associate’s cumulative net change
in the fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period
(see Note 2(f)).

Other reserves

Other reserves mainly comprise statutory surplus reserve. According to the PRC Company Law and the Articles of
Association of the Company and its certain subsidiaries, the Company and the relevant subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of their annual net profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to a
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of dividend to shareholders and when there are retained earnings at the end of the financial
year.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by
the issue of new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding or by increasing the par value of the

shares currently held by them, provided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did not make any appropriation of statutory surplus reserve as the
Company recorded a net loss in 2023 (2022: nil).
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49 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2023 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million

Commitments in respect of aircraft, engines and flight equipment
— authorised and contracted for 102,883 97,329

Investment commitments
— authorised and contracted for
— share of capital commitments of a joint venture 19 52
— capital contributions for acquisition of interests in an associate 2,431 171

— authorised but not contracted for

— share of capital commitments of a joint venture 46 14
2,496 237
' Commitments for other property, plant and equipment
— authorised and contracted for 3,597 3,865
— authorised but not contracted for 5,878 5,450
e 2%S 9815
114,854 106,881

As at 31 December 2023, the approximate total future payments, including estimated amounts for price escalation
through anticipated delivery dates for aircraft, engines and flight equipment are as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

2023 - 33,968
2024 21,059 23,795
2025 25,591 21,306
2026 22,708 18,260
2027 and the years after 2027 33,525 =
102,883 97,329
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50 Material related party transactions

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
(excluding independent non-executive directors) as disclosed in Note 58, is as follows:

2023 2022

RMB ’000 RMB '000

Salaries, wages and welfare 9,473 9,796
Retirement scheme contributions 1,304 1,528
10,777 11,324

2023 2022

RMB ’000 RMB ‘000

Directors and supervisors (Note 58) 1,508 1,691
Senior management 9,269 9,633
10,777 11,324

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note 13).
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related
companies of the Group

The Group provided various operational services to CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related
companies of the Group during the normal course of its business. The Group also received operational services provided
by these entities.

Details of the significant transactions carried out by the Group are as follows:

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Income from CSAH and its affiliates
Rental income* (i) - 7
Aviation material sales income* (ii)/(iv) 36 24
Entrusted management income* (iii) 39 39
Pilot training income* (iv) 10 3
Air catering supplies income* () 4 3
Others* 15 7
Purchase of goods and services from
CSAH and its affiliates
Commission expenses and service fee* (V) 41 24
Maintenance material purchase expense and
lease charges for maintenance materials (ii) 58 68
Air catering supplies expenses* () 128 57
Lease charges for land and buildings* (Vi) 417 406
Property management fee* (vii) 177 165
Construction fee* (xix) 31 37
Pilot training fee* (iv) 18 -
Others* 3 )

Purchase of goods and services from

joint ventures and associates
Repairing charges (viii) 2,867 1,928
Repairing charges and maintenance material

purchase expenses (ix) 2,571 1,905
Ground service expenses ) 15 14
Advertising expenses* (xi) 105 103
Property management fee (xii) - 6
Lease charges for land and buildings (xiii) 173 13
Cargo handling expenses (xx) 154 -
Commission expenses (xiv) 10 2
Others 27 30
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related
companies of the Group (continued)

2023 2022

Note RMB million RMB million
Income received from joint ventures and associates
Cargo and mail revenue (xx) 566 =
Maintenance material sales and handling income (xv) 78 40
Entrustment income for advertising media business* (xi) 2 2
Repairing income (xiv) 3 10
Air catering supplies income (xiv) 24 4
Pilot training income (xiv) 8 7
Commission income (xiv) 14 6
Ground service income (Xiv)/(xx) 57 13
Transfer of pilots income (xiv) 2 8
Aircraft leasing income (xvi) 7 6
Building and equipment leasing income (xx) 11 -
Others* 24 8
Purchase of goods and services from

other related companies
Computer reservation services (xvii) 964 265
Others 12 =
Aircraft related transactions with CSAH
and its affiliates

Payment of lease charges on aircraft* (xvii) 6,306 5,727

(i) Shenzhen Air Catering Co., Ltd. (‘SACC”) is an associate of CSAH.
Air catering supplies expenses are payable by the Group in respect of certain in-flight meals and related services with SACC.

In addition, the Group leases certain land and buildings, equipment to SACC under operating lease agreements. The Group
also provides air catering supplies service to SACC.

(i) China Aviation Supplies Holding Company (“CASC”) is an associate of CSAH.

The Group purchases software service, as well as purchases and leases maintenance materials from CASC, and CASC also
purchases maintenance materials from the Group.
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related

companies of the Group (continued)

(i)

(v)

(V)

(vii)

(viil
(ix)

China Northern Airlines Co., Ltd. (‘CNAC”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH.

The Group provides entrusted management service to CSAH and CNAC.

China Southern Airlines General Aviation Limited (‘General Aviation Limited”), which became a subsidiary of CSAH in 2022,
provides pilot training service to the Group and purchases maintenance materials from the Group. In addition, the Group
provides pilot training service to General Aviation Limited.

Commission is earned by Shenzhen Baiyun Air Service Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH, in connection with the
air tickets sold by them on behalf of the Group. Commission is calculated based on the rates stipulated by the Civil Aviation
Administration of China and International Air Transportation Association.

Service fee is earned by Shenzhen Baiyun Air Service Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH, for providing
transportation and accommodation services to the Group. Service fee is calculated based on the rates stipulated by the Civil

Aviation Administration of China and International Air Transportation Association.

The Group leases certain land and buildings in Chinese Mainland from CSAH and its affiliates. The amount represents rental
expenses for land and buildings paid or payable to CSAH and its affiliates.

China Merchants Property Operation & Service Co., Ltd (previous name: China Southern Airlines Group Property Management
Co., Ltd.), became an associate of CSAH in 2022, provides property management services to the Group.

MTU, a joint venture of the Group, provides comprehensive maintenance services to the Group.
GAMECQO, a joint venture of the Group, provides comprehensive maintenance services to the Group.
The Group also purchases maintenance material from GAMECO.

Beijing Aviation Ground Services Co., Ltd. and Shenyang Konggang Logistic Co., Ltd., associates of the Group, provide
ground services to the Group.

SACM, an associate of the Group, provides advertising services to the Group. The Group provides certain media
resources to SACM.

Xinjiang Civil Aviation Property Management Ltd., an associate of the Group, provides property management
services to the Group.
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related

228

companies of the Group (continued)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Sichuan Airlines, Beijing Xingming Lake Jinyan Hotel Co., Ltd. and Xinjiang Civil Aviation Property Management
Ltd., associates of the Group, provide land and buildings lease services to the Group.

The Group provides repairing service and air catering supplies service to Sichuan Airlines.
Commission is earned by Sichuan Airlines in connection with the air tickets sold on behalf of the Group.

In addition, the Group provides pilot training service, commission service, ground services and transferred pilots to
Sichuan Airlines.

The Group imports and sells maintenance materials to GAMECO and MTU, and earns maintenance materials sales
and handling income.

The Group provides aircraft lease service to Sichuan Airlines and earns aircraft leasing income.

China Travel Sky Holding Company is a related party of the Group as a key management personnel of the Group
was appointed as the director of China Travel Sky Holding Company. It provides computer reservation services to
the Group.

China Southern Airlines International Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. (“CSA International”), a joint venture of CSAH,
provides aircraft and engines lease services to the Group.

Guangzhou Southern Airlines Construction Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSAH, provides construction
services, to the Group.

Shangzhou Aviation Logistics Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group, provides cargo handling services to the Group.
The Group also provides cargo and mail service, building and equipment lease services and ground services to
Shangzhou Aviation Logistics Co., Ltd..

These related party transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
provided in section “CONNECTED TRANSACTION” of the Report of Director.
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Balances with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related
companies of the Group

Details of amounts due from/to CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related companies of the

Group:

2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Current receivables:
CSAH and its affiliates 27 10
Associates 268 76
Joint ventures 29 30
42(a) 324 116
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Long-term receivables:
Associates 42(a) 262 357
2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Prepayments of acquisition of long-term assets:
CSAH and its affiliates 429 429
Associates - 66
30842(b) 429 495
2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Payables:
CSAH and its affiliates 308 262
Associates 4 14
Joint ventures 282 159
42(0) 594 435
2023 2022
Note RMB miillion RMB million
Long-term payables:
CSAH and its affiliates 42(c) 36 85
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Balances with CSAH and its affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related
companies of the Group (continued)

2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million

Accrued expenses:
CSAH and its affiliates 144 57
Associates 76 57
Joint ventures 1,471 1,505
Other related companies 1,819 770
3,510 2,389

Lease liabilities:

CSAH and its affiliates 25,854 24,755
Associates 48 3
25,902 24,758

Except the long-term receivables, long-term payables and lease liabilities, the amounts due from/to CSAH and its
affiliates, associates, joint ventures and other related companies of the Group are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

(d) Loans from and deposits placed with related parties

(i) Loans from Finance Company*

At 31 December 2023, loans from Finance Company to the Group amounted to RMB7,442 million (31 December
2022: RMB6,363 million).

The unsecured loans are repayable as follows:

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Within 1 year 7,442 6,325
After 1 year but within 2 years - 38
7,442 6,363

Interest expense charged on such loans amounted to RMB220 million (2022: RMB197 milion) and the interest
rates range from 2.80% to 3.30% per annum during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.00% to 3.30%).
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50 Material related party transactions (continued)

(d) Loans from and deposits placed with related parties (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Entrusted loans from CSAH*

In 2022, CSAH, Finance Company and the Group entered into entrusted loan agreements, pursuant to which,
CSAH, as the lender, entrusted Finance Company to lend RMB13,000 million to the Group. RMB10,000 million
was repaid in 2023.

In 2023, CSAH, Finance Company and the Group entered into entrusted loan agreements, pursuant to which,
CSAH, as the lender, entrusted Finance Company to lend RMB12,000 million to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the unsecured entrusted loans of RMB8 million (including accrued interest expense of
RMB8 million) were repayable within one year (31 December 2022: RMB10,005 million) and RMB15,000 million
were repayable over one year (31 December 2022: RMB3,002 million) (Note 36(¢)).

Interest expense charged on such loans amounted to RMB227 million (2022: RMB90 million) and the interest rate
was 2.00% to 3.43% per annum during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 2.00% to 3.85% per annum).

Medium-term notes subscribed by Finance Company*

In March 2020, the Group issued a tranche of medium-term notes in the amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with a
term of 5 years from the issuance date at an annual interest rate of 3.28%, and Finance Company subscribed for
RMB300,000,000 of the medium-term notes. In 2023, Finance Company has sold all the medium-term notes. As
at 31 December 2023, Finance Company did not hold any medium-term notes issued by the Group.

Deposits placed with Finance Company*

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s deposits with Finance Company are presented in the table below. The
applicable interest rates are determined in accordance with the rates published by the PBOC.

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Deposits placed with Finance Company 8,940 14,118

Interest income from such deposits amounted to RMB185 million during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB202 million).

* These related party transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
“CONNECTED TRANSACTION” of the Report of Director.
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Material related party transactions (continued)

Other assets related transactions with CSAH and its affiliates

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

Other flight equipment 58 =
Disposal of equity interest in General Aviation Limited - 1,177

The Company entered into an agreement with CSAH on 22 September 2022 whereby the Company agreed to sell and
CSAH agreed to purchase approximately 57.88% of the equity interest in General Aviation Limited for a consideration of
RMB1,177 million. The disposal was completed in December 2022, and General Aviation Limited became a subsidiary of
CSAH.

Employee benefits plan

Retirement benefits

Employees of the Group participate in several defined contribution retirement schemes organised separately by the PRC
municipal and provincial governments in regions where the major operations of the Group are located. The Group is
required to contribute to these schemes at rates ranging from 14% to 16% (2022: 14% to 16%) of salary costs including
certain allowances. A member of the retirement schemes is entitled to pension benefits from the Local Labour and Social
Security Bureau upon his/her retirement. The retirement benefit obligations of all retired staff of the Group are assumed
by these schemes. The Group, at its sole discretion, had made certain welfare subsidy payments to these retirees.

In 2014, the Company and its major subsidiaries joined a new defined contribution retirement scheme (“Pension
Scheme”) that was implemented by CSAH. The annual contribution to the Pension Scheme is based on a fixed specified
percentage of prior year's annual wage. There will be no further obligation beyond the annual contribution according to
the Pension Scheme. The total contribution into the Pension Scheme in 2023 was approximately RMB1,080 million (2022:
RMB884 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there is no forfeited contribution under the retirement schemes and Pension
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

Housing benefits
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to housing funds organised by municipal and provincial governments based
on certain percentages of the salaries of employees. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to the

contributions payable in each year.

The Group also pays cash housing subsidies on a monthly basis to eligible employees. The monthly cash housing
subsidies are charged to income statement.
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52 Supplementary information to the consolidated cash flow statement

53

54

55

Non-cash transactions

2023 2022
RMB miillion RMB million
LLease of aircraft 16,177 10,476

Contingent liabilities

@)

The Group leased certain properties and buildings from CSAH which were located in Guangzhou, Wuhan, Haikou,
etc. Although such properties and buildings were used by CSAH before being leased to the Group, as known
to the Group, such properties and buildings lack adequate documentation evidencing CSAH’s rights thereto.
Pursuant to the indemnification agreement dated 22 May 1997 entered into between the Group and CSAH, CSAH
has agreed to indemnify the Group against any loss or damage arising from any challenge of the Group’s right to
use the aforementioned properties and buildings.

The Group entered into certain agreements with CSAH in prior years to acquire certain land use right and buildings
from CSAH. The change of business registration of such land use right and buildings are still in progress. CSAH
issued letters of commitment to the Company, committing to indemnify the Group against any claims from third
parties to the Group, or any loss or damage in the Group’s operation activities due to lack adequate documentation
of the certain properties and buildings, without recourse to the Group.

The Company issued an undertaking to General Aviation Limited in prior years that the Company has injected the
relevant assets and liabilities into General Aviation Limited on 1 July 2016 and General Aviation Limited has received
all the assets and actually owned, controlled and used. In the event that any third party claims rights against
General Aviation Limited due to defective land use rights and property rights or General Aviation Limited suffers
losses due to defective land use rights and property rights affecting the normal business operations of General
Aviation Limited, such losses shall be borne by the Company and the contributed assets may be replaced in an
appropriate manner if necessary.

The Company and its subsidiary, Xiamen Airlines, entered into agreements with certain pilot trainees and certain
banks to provide guarantees on personal bank loans amounting to RMB696 million (31 December 2022: RMB696
million) that can be drawn by the pilot trainees to finance their respective flight training expenses. As at 31
December 2023, total personal bank loans of RMB102 million (31 December 2022: RMB143 million), under these
guarantees, were drawn down from the banks. During the year, RMBO0.1 million has been made by the Group due
to the default of payments of certain pilot trainees (2022: RMBO0.2 million).

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors of the Company consider the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be CSAH, a state-owned enterprise established in Chinese Mainland.

Non-adjusting events after the financial year end

After the financial year end, there were no non-adjusting events occurred up to the date of issue of these financial
statements.

Annual Report 2023 233



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

56 Company-level statement of financial position

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 47,487 48,508
Construction in progress 23,243 24,168
Right-of-use assets 121,342 126,081
Investments in subsidiaries 13,164 11,213
Interests in associates 3,658 1,318
Interests in joint ventures 1,832 1,832
Aircraft lease deposits 346 344
Other non-current financial assets 397 21
Deferred tax assets 10,801 11,007
Amounts due from subsidiaries and other related companies 2,939 4,987
Derivative financial assets - 27
Other assets 1,508 1,577
226,717 231,083
Current assets
Inventories 1,014 936
Trade receivables 789 480
Other receivables 6,093 5,439
Cash and cash equivalents 2,307 8,386
Assets held for sale - 26
Restricted bank deposits 97 92
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 411 489
Other financial assets 3,157 =
Derivative financial assets 4 2
Amounts due from subsidiaries and other related companies 10,727 10,188
24,599 26,038
Current liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 907 1,708
Borrowings 57,781 75,025
Lease liabilities 17,991 20,097
Trade payables 447 105
Contract liabilities 1,405 1,370
Sales in advance of carriage 5,782 2,544
Amounts due to subsidiaries and other related companies 2,563 1,804
Accrued expenses 17,851 14,061
Other liabilities 6,208 5,128
110,935 121,842
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31 December

31 December

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 45,072 30,201
Lease liabilities 64,240 70,786
Other non-current liabilities 1,429 1,864
Amounts due to related companies 36 85
Provision for major overhauls 2,864 2,762
Deferred benefits and gains 297 298
113,938 105,996
Net assets 26,443 29,283
Capital and reserves
Share capital 18,121 18,121
Reserves 57 8,322 11,162
Total equity 26,443 29,283
57 Reserves movement of the Company
Fair value Retained
reserve Earnings/
Share (non- Other (accumulated
premium recycling) reserves losses) Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million = RMB million
Balance at 1 January 2022 47,125 (45) 2,725 (13,661) 36,144
Changes in equity for 2022:
Total comprehensive income for the year - ) - (29,860) (29,855)
Issuance of shares 4,873 - - - 4,873
Disposal of an equity instrument investment - 40 - (40) -
Balance at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 51,998 - 2,725 (43,561) 11,162
Changes in equity for 2023:
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (2,840) (2,840)
Balance at 31 December 2023 51,998 - 2,725 (46,401) 8,322
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58 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution to
Directors’ wages and Housing a retirement
Name fees welfare allowance benefit scheme Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Executive directors
Ma Xu Lun (Note (i) - - - - -
Han Wen Sheng (Note (i) - - - - -
Luo Lai Jun (Note (i) & (ii)) - - - - -
Supervisors
Ren Ji Dong (Note (i)) - - - - -
Lin Xiao Chun (Note (vi)) - 418 - 81 499
Yang Bin - 840 - 169 1,009
Independent non-executive
directors
Liu Chang Le (Note (v)) 117 - - - 117
Guo Wei 200 - - - 200
Pansy Catilina
Chiu King Ho (Note (iv)) 83 - - - 83
Gu Hui Zhong 200 - - - 200
Cai Hong Ping (Note (ii)) 200 - - - 200
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58 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution to
Directors’ wages and Housing a retirement
Name fees welfare allowance benefit scheme Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Executive directors
Ma Xu Lun (Note (i) - - - - -
Han Wen Sheng (Note (i)) - - - - -
Luo Lai Jun (Note (i) & (ii)) - - - - -
Supervisors
Ren Ji Dong (Note (i) - - - - -
Lin Xiao Chun (Note (vi) = 687 = 157 844
Yang Bin = 687 = 160 847
Independent non-executive
directors
Liu Chang Le (Note (v)) 200 - - - 200
Guo Wei 200 - - - 200
Yan Yan (Note (jii)) 167 - - - 167
Gu Hui Zhong 200 - - - 200
Cai Hong Ping (Note (i) - - - - -
Notes:
(i) These directors did not receive any remuneration for their services in the capacity of the directors of the Company. They also

held management positions in CSAH and their salaries were borne by CSAH.
(i) Appointed on 28 December 2022.
(iii) Resigned on 28 October 2022.
(iv)  Appointed on 3 August 2023.
(V) Resigned on 13 July 2023.

(vi) Mr Lin Xiao Chun did not receive any remuneration for his service in the capacity of the supervisor of the Company since 1
July 20283. He also held management position in CSAH and his salary was borne by CSAH.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

58
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ termination benefits

None of the directors and supervisors received or will receive any termination benefits for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ and supervisors’
services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ and supervisors’ services (2022: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors and
supervisors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
and supervisors

As at 31 December 2023, there is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors and

supervisors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors and supervisors (2022: nil).

Directors’ and supervisors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company

was a party and in which a director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2022: nil).
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59 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a number of new or amended standards,

which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current (“2020 amendments’”) 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities
with covenants (“2022 amendments”) 1 January 2024

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack of
exchangeability 1 January 2025

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that except for the adoption of “Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
(2020 and 2022 amendments”)”, the adoption of the developments above is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, if the 2020 and 2022 amendments is adopted by the Group, the convertible bonds recorded
in non-current liabilities amounted to RMB5,498 million would be reclassified to current liabilities.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023
(Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared
under the PRC Accounting Standards.

2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Revenue 159,929 87,059
Less: Operating costs 147,582 105,862
Taxes and surcharges 531 240
Selling and distribution expenses 6,629 4,555
General and administrative expenses 3,779 3,560
Research and development expenses 511 389
Finance expenses 6,393 9,240
Including: interest expense 5,928 6,006
interest income 361 457
Add: Other income 3,779 4,670
Investment (loss)/income (1,688) 555
Including: (loss)/income from investment in associates and joint ventures (1,698) 291
Changes in fair value of financial assets/liabilities 874 (388)
(Provision)/reversal of credit losses ) 3
Impairment losses (11) (582)
Gain on assets disposals 409 330
Operating loss (2,142 (32,199
Add: Non-operating income 581 710
Less: Non-operating expenses 84 37
Loss before income tax (1,645) (31,526)
Less: Income tax 1,437 2,172
Net loss for the year (3,082) (33,698)

(1) Net loss classified by continuity of operations:
1. Net loss from continuing operations (3,082) (33,698)
2. Net loss from discontinued operations - -

(2) Net loss classified by ownership:
1. Shareholders of the Company (4,209) (32,682)
2. Non-controlling interests 1,127 (1,016)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
Assets

Total current assets 27,741 32,771
Long-term equity investments 6,718 6,205
Fixed assets and construction in progress 127,275 124,132
Intangible assets and other non-current assets 135,212 136,420
Deferred tax assets 12,280 12,473
Total assets 309,226 312,001

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities 129,436 141,458
Deferred tax liabilities 23 24
Other non-current liabilities 127,770 115,405
Total liabilities 257,229 256,887
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 36,784 41,057
Non-controlling interests 15,213 14,057
Total equity 51,997 55,114
Total liabilities and equity 309,226 312,001
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RECONCILIATION OF DIFFERENCES IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER
DIFFERENT GAAPS

(1) The effect of the differences between PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards on

loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is analysed as follows:

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Amounts under PRC GAAP (4,209) (32,682)
Adjustments:
Capitalisation of exchange difference of specific loans (@ (3) (25)
Government grants (o) 1 1
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (d) 126 -
Income tax effect of the above adjustments 1 6
Effect of the above adjustments on non-controlling interests (56) 1
Amounts under IFRS Accounting Standards (4,140) (32,699)

(2) The effect of the differences between PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards on

equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is analysed as follows:

2023 2022
Note RMB million RMB million
Amounts under PRC GAAP 36,784 41,057
Adjustments:
Capitalisation of exchange difference of specific loans (@ 11 14
Government grants (o) ) 4
Adjustment arising from the Company’s business combination
under common control (€ 237 237
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment (d) 126 -
Income tax effect of the above adjustments (1) @)
Effect of the above adjustments on non-controlling interests (83) 27)
Amounts under IFRS Accounting Standards 37,071 41,275
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RECONCILIATION OF DIFFERENCES IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER
DIFFERENT GAAPS (continued)

(2) The effect of the differences between PRC GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards on
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is analysed as follows:

(continued)

Notes:

(@)

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, exchange difference arising on translation of specific loans and related interest
denominated in a foreign currency is capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying assets. Under IFRS Accounting Standards,
such exchange difference is recognised in income statement unless the exchange difference represents an adjustment to
interest.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, assets related government grants (other than special funds) are deducted from the cost of
the related assets. Special funds granted by the government and clearly defined in the approval documents as part of “capital
reserve” are accounted for as increase in capital reserve. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, assets related government grants
are deducted to the cost of the related assets. The difference is resulted from government grants received in previous years
and recognised in capital reserve under PRC GAAP.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, the Company accounts for the business combination under common control by applying
the pooling-of-interest method. Under the pooling-of-interest method, the difference between the historical carrying amount
of the acquiree and the consideration paid is accounted for as an equity transaction. Business combinations under common
control are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year presented or, if
later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, relevant comparative figures are restated under PRC
GAAP. Under IFRS Accounting Standards, the Company adopts the purchase accounting method for acquisition of business
under common control.

In accordance with the PRC GAAP, impairment loss of non-current assets cannot be reversed. Under IFRS Accounting

Standards, an impairment loss is reversed if there is indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset
other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared
under International Financial Reporting Standards.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
Operating revenue 159,929 87,059 101,644 92,561 154,322
Operating expenses (159,052) (115,262) (116,340) (109,111) (148,608)
Other net income 4,680 5,661 4,767 4,686 5,124
Operating profit/(losses) 5,557 (22,542) (9,929) (11,864) 10,838
Interest income 361 457 675 322 74
Interest expense (5,928) (6,006) (6,202) (6,716) (5,845)
Share of associates’ results (2,244) (13) 9 (776) (178)
Share of joint ventures’ results 546 304 271 309 365
Exchange (loss)/gain, net (687) (3,619) 1,575 3,485 (1,477)
Other non-operating income/

(expenses) 874 (131) (809) 45 278
(Loss)/profit before income tax (1,521) (31,550) (13,910) (15,195) 4,055
Income tax (1,436) (2,1606) 2,894 3,368 971)
(Loss)/profit for the year (2,957) (33,716) (11,016) (11,827) 3,084
(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company (4,140) (32,699) (12,106) (10,847) 2,640
Non-controlling interests 1,183 (1,017) 1,090 (980) 444
(Loss)/profit for the year (2,957) (33,716) (11,016) (11,827) 3,084
(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic and diluted

(expressed in RMB per share) (0.23) (1.90) (0.75) 0.77) 0.22

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY

As at 31 December

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

Non-current assets 281,657 278,792 285,345 287,398 290,190

Net current (liabilities)/assets (101,497) (108,004) 73,124 56,696 78,752

Non-current liabilities 127,793 115,429 127,713 145,571 134,109
Total equity attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 37,071 41,275 67,851 69,584 64,106

Non-controlling interests 15,296 14,084 16,657 15,547 13,223
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